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FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 29, 2005

Dear Users of the County’s Basic Financial Statements:

The accompanying basic financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2004 include the financial statements and notes required under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America that are essential to fair presentation
of the County’s financial position and results of operations and the cash flows of the County’s
proprietary fund types. Additional information regarding the County’s financial activities for
2004 is available in the County’s separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(“CAFR?”) for the year ended December 31, 2004. Copies of the CAFR can be obtained from the
Auditor of State website at http://www.auditor.state.oh.us/AuditSearch/Search.aspx or by
contacting my office at:

Cuyahoga County Auditor’s Office
1219 Ontario Street, Room 121
Cleveland, OH 44113

Telephone: (216) 443-7022

Sincerely,
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Deloitte.

Suite 3300

127 Public Square
Cleveland, OH 44114-1291
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1 216 589 1369
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County of Cuyahoga, Ohio (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular
A-133, Auditor of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County as of December 31, 2004, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General Fund, Human Services Fund, Health and Human Services Levies Fund, Board of Mental
Retardation Fund, and Health and Community Services Fund, for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 16 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the
County’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no

opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the County’s financial statements
that collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
schedule is the responsibility of management of the County. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 8,
2005, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Dﬁ-m £ Tonedie LLP

June 8, 2005




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Cuyahoga County, we offer readers of Cuyahoga County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Cuyahoga County for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letters of transmittal, which can be found on
pages iv-xiii of this report.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Cuyahoga County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$638 million (net assets).

e The government's total net assets increased by $100.2 million.
As of the close of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $364.1 million, an increase of $137.7 million in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 82% of this total amount, $298.6 million, is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $124.8 million,
or 42.7% of total general fund expenditures.

e Additions to Cuyahoga County's total debt were $141.6 million during the current fiscal year.
Reductions in debt during 2004 amounted to $95.2 million for a net increase of $46.4 million. The
County issued new debt and refinanced existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Cuyahoga County’s basic financial
statements. Cuyahoga County's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government - wide financial statements. The govemment-wide financial stafements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Cuyahoga County’'s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Cuyahoga County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of aclivities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Cuyahoga County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govemmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Cuyahoga County include general




government, judicial, development, social services, health and safety and public works. The business-
type activities of Cuyahoga County include a sanitary sewer authority, an airport, a parking garage and a
crime information system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Cuyahoga County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate hospital for which Cuyahoga County is financially
accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 — 19 of the report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Cuyahoga County, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Cuyahoga County can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term

financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

Cuyahoga County maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances for the general, human services, health and human services levies, county
board of mental retardation and health and community services funds which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Cuyahoga County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and the other major funds
as well as the motor vehicle gas tax and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 — 29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Cuyahoga County uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitary sewer, airport,
parking garage and crime information system. Intemnal service funds are an accounting device used to




accumulate and allocate costs internally among Cuyahoga County's various functions. Cuyahoga
County uses internal service funds to account for its central custodial, maintenance garage, data
processing, printing, reproduction and supplies, communications and self-funded workers' compensation
services. As these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the sanitary
engineer which is considered to be a major fund of Cuyahoga County. Conversely, the internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements

elsewhere in this report.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 33 of this report.

Fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are not available to support Cuyahoga County’s own programs.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 34 of this report.

Budgetary fund financial statements. The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The budgetary statements for the general fund and all annually budgeted major
special revenue funds are presented to demonstrate the County’s compliance with annually adopted

budgets.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 35 — 67 of this report.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of Cuyahoga County, assets exceeded liabilities by $638 million at the close of the
most recent fiscal year. This is the third year for Cuyahoga County in implementing Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This statement requires a comparative
analysis of government-wide data in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section.

Cuyahoga County’s Net Assets
(December 31; amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Current and other assets............... § 841777 ¢ 758,688 $ 13898 $ 12,539 $ 855675 $ 771,227
Capital assets..........coeeveerieiniiinnns 619,334 609,851 44 165 45,071 663,499 654,922

Total @assets......ccvveniineaiiicannnns 1,461,111 1,368,539 58,063 57,610 1,519,174 1,426,149
Long-term liabilities outstanding.... 464,502 412,393 14,380 16,473 478,882 428,866
Other liabilities.......cccoeeeeenecriannne. 400,964 458,316 1,364 1,247 402,328 459,563

Total liabilities...........cceovvvviireine 865,466 870,709 15,744 17,720 881,210 888,429
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ........coooviveeeneciiiennn, 350,959 409,443 31,236 30,505 382,195 439,948
Restricted........ccccoeveeeevereineerienne 38,995 34,255 38,995 34,255
Unrestricted..............ccoevvvrmicinirnnns 205,691 54,132 11,083 9,385 216,774 63,617

Total net assets........c.cc.ccccueunnen. $ 995645 §$ 497830 § 42319 § 39890 $ 637,964 $ 537.720

At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental
and business-type activities.

By far the largest portion of Cuyahoga County's net assets (59.9%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. Cuyahoga County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens:
consequently, these assets are nof available for future spending. Aithough Cuyahoga County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets, restricted net assets (6.1%), represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($216.8 million) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

Current and other assets, long-term liabilities outstanding and net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt were all effected by the issuance of $84.5 million of new debt. Other liabilities decreased
due primarily to a methodology adjustment to the calculation of deferred revenue for personal property
taxes. Also the accrual for wages and benefits was significantly smaller in 2004 due to a reduction in the




number of days accrued. The combination of an increase in noncapital assets and a decrease in other
liabilities created a large positive variance in unrestricted net assets.

CUYAHOGA COUNTY'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Year ended December 31; amounts in 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services.........ovviviiiieeniinen $ 98354 § 90848 §$ 15468 §$ 15364 $ 113,822 $ 106,212
Operating grants and contributions ......... 578,794 551,540 145 38 578,939 561,578
Capital grants and contributions.............. 25,305 27,942 25,305 27,942
General revenues:
Property taxes ......cocuveeeeeee e, 315,172 257,640 315,172 257,640
Sales and other taxes..............cocvvremnnnn. 197,562 188,313 197,562 188,313
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs ................... 41,982 35,556 41,982 35,556
ORhEr .ot 64,598 60,360 102 61 64,700 60,421
Total revenUES..........cccciieniesiimnrionienens 1,321,767 1,212,199 15,715 15463 1,337482 1,227,662
Expenses:
General Government........cceovevineniieciianns 69,154 59,963 69,154 59,963
JUHICIAE . csiviiesvsmamsnsnsmssnrmsmsimviesisisnas smivise 292 417 277,314 292 417 277,314
Development...........oooioeooeeeiceiiciceenn, 32,524 25,332 32,524 25,332
Social SeMVICeSs.....cccoccivrmivrireisisisseisianes 570,871 578,700 570,871 578,700
Health and Safety............cccceviiieciiciicenns 178,342 152,904 178,342 152,804
Public Works ........ococeieiiieieececee e 59,421 67,025 59,421 67,025
Interest. st st msiommane 18,412 13,813 18,412 13,813
Sanitary Engineer..........ccoocoeeeveevivieennne 9,604 10,069 9,604 10,069
U] T SRR 1,302 1,617 1,302 1,617
Huntington Park Garage.... 2,418 1,753 2,418 1,753
Cuyahoga County lnfurmehun System.... 2773 2188 2773 2,188
Total expenses............ 1,221,141 1,175,051 16,097 15,627 1,237,238 1,190,678
Increase (Decrease) in nel assets
before transfers ...........cccovveevevveciiceceecnnnn 100,626 37,148 (382) (164) 100,244 36,984
B 7=1a0c) 2=1 o I S {2,811) (940) 2811 940
Change in net assets........ocevveeiieiceneecneeeen. 97,815 36,208 2,429 776 100,244 36,984
Net assets — Beginning of year .................. 497,830 461,622 39.890 39.114 537,720 500,736
Net assets — End of year............ccccccene.enn, $ £095640 $ 497.830 $42319 $39.890 $ 637,964 $ 537,720




The government's net assets increased by $100.2 million during the current fiscal year. The net increase
was due primarily to a new 4.9 mill property tax levy which passed in May 2003. The new levy
generated an additional $57.5 million of property tax revenue in 2004. Additional increases in net assets
resulted from various programs such as the Community’s Alternative Funding System (CAFS) amounting
to $9.6 million, various charges for services which grew by $7.5 million and a non-prosecution agreement
concerning a criminal case against various brokerage firms for lack of supervision of a broker who
defrauded clients in Cuyahoga County amounting to $9.3 million. A portion of the CAFS revenue
increase resulted from settlement of a lawsuit against the State of Ohio for the years 1997 and 1999, and
additional revenue derived from rate adjustments in 2004 to match revenue with costs. The charges for
services growth included revenue for conveyance fees which are collected upon the sale of real property
amounting $1.4 million and indirect costs for the nongeneral fund portion of government management
services amounting to $4.9 million. In addition, the county realized an additional $9.2 million of sales tax
receipts due to the expansion of the sales tax base. The State of Ohio identified some services which
had previously been exempt from sales tax and which will now be taxed to the consumer.

The general government expense increases were primarily a result of personnel costs which rose
approximately 13.8% due to a cost of living increase amounting to 3%, medical insurance increase
amounting to 7% and the calendar year having 27 pays instead of the normal 26 pays which added 3.8%
to payroll. Also, the presidential election in 2004 cost an additional $1.4 million to the Board of Elections.
The judicial growth in spending was partially a result of the personnel cost increases. The health and
safety increases in spending resulted from additional subsidy payments to MetroHealth System
amounting to $5.8 million for its portion of the new levy. Also, Medicaid claims in the Mental Health

Board grew by $17.2 million.

Additional increases in business-type activities were a result of transfers of $2.2 million from the general
fund to two enterprise funds.




Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

g— h.i

a.

(Amounts in 000's) %

a. Charges for Sernvices ........oovvevviviiiciiicaeeecen, 98,354 7.4
b. Operating Grants and Contributions .................. 578,794 43.8
c. Capital Grants, Contributions and Interest......... 25,305 1.9
d.. Propemty Tak ... . s 315,172 23.8
€. SalesS TaX....ooici e ee s 168,634 12.8
T OWer Tak...mnimsniainnie i s 28,928 22
g. State Local Government............ccocovveviiicnennnnce. 38,259 29
h. Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific programs. .........ccccoevveieeiecieceeecneen 41,982 3.2
[ 26,339 20
Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
(Amounts in 000's)
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

b. C.

a.
(Amounts in 000's)

a. Charges for Sernvices........ccoocvevvuerieeen.. $ 15,468

b. Operating Grants and Contributions ...... 145

B DB s s s s v i 102

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

(Amounts in 000's)

B Expenses

@ Revenues

Sanitary Airport Huntington Park  Cuyahoga County
Engineer Garage Information System
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by $97.8
million. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The County passed a new property tax levy in 2003 that began collection in 2004 generating an
additional $57.5 million.

e CAFS program revenues amounting to $9.6 million including settlement of a lawsuit for the years
1997 and 1999 and rate adjustments.

o Charges for services increase amounting to $7.5 million for various fees and services.

* Non-prosecution agreement of $9.3 million.
Expansion of services subject to the sales tax prescribed by the State of Ohio amounting to $9.2

million.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased Cuyahoga County's net assets by $2.4
million. Key elements of this increase are as follows.

e Increase in net assets resulted from two transfers from the general fund. The first one was a $1
million transfer to the sanitary engineer fund to retire debt on a sewer project. The second transfer
was an additional general fund subsidy of $1.2 million to the cuyahoga county information system
fund in order to offset the loss of some system users in 2004 and for the cost of some system
upgrades necessary to market the service.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Cuyahoga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Cuyahoga County's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing Cuyahoga County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $364.1 million, an increase of $137.7 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately $298.6 million constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed (1) for restricted assets ($27.4 million), (2) for
loans ($19.1 million) or (3) to pay debt service ($19 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Cuyahoga County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $124.8 million, while fund balance reached $162.7
million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 42.7% of
total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 55.7% of that same amount.
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The fund balance of Cuyahoga County's general fund decreased by $23.6 million. The health and
human services levies, the County Board of Mental Retardation, the health and community services fund
and other governmental funds increased by $55.7 million, $13.3 million, $11.4 million and $80.8 million
respectively, during the current fiscal year. Key factors in these changes are as follows:

e The general fund decrease occurred primarily from a subsidy to the human services and health and
community services funds amounting to $22.3 million.

* In 2004, the health and human services levies fund was owed $26.6 million and $13.5 million from
the human service and the health and community service funds, respectively for advancing its
subsidy. The remaining balance was new levy money not yet distributed.

e The County Board of Mental Retardation intergovernmental revenue increased $13 million, the
majority of which was from CAFS program.

e The health and community services fund increase in fund balance of $11.4 million was partially a
result of the increases in subsidies to the Mental Health Board and homeless services of $3.2 million
and $1.8 million, respectively. There were also decreases in social service expenditures of $7.8
million relating to foster care placements costs. The Department of Children and Family Services
made many adjustments to reassign cases to proper levels of care, reunify children and reduce the
amount of children brought into custody. The drop in foster care placements was over 400 children
amounting to a savings of $12.3 million.

e The fund balance increase of $80.8 million in other governmental was a result of issuance of new
debt of $84.5 million deposited in the capital projects fund.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sanitary engineer at the end of the year amounted to $8.3 million and all
others amounted to $2.6 million. The total increase in net assets was $2.4 million. Other factors
concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of Cuyahoga

County’s business-type activities.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $22.7 million and can be
briefly summarized as follows:

* Increase in transfers out was partially a result of the purchase of Whiskey Island. The island will be
used as both a park and marina in the near term. The island could be used in the future to relocate
the port authority. The decision to purchase Whiskey Island was made in December 2004 and an
additional appropriation of $4 million was necessary to transfer funds to a capital projects fund.

* There was also an increase of $12.4 million in the general fund capital improvements subsidy. These
transfers represent transfers to various capital projects not funded with the bond issuance.

* Increase in subsidy to sanitary engineer amounting to $1 million to cover the cost of debt on a
completed sewer project and increase to the cuyahoga county information system for system
upgrades amounting to $1.4 million.

e Increase to cover cost of upgrades to the human resources management system amounting to $1.1
million.

o Cost of the 2004 presidential elections resulting in an additional budget adjustment of almost $1
million.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Cuyahoga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of December 31, 2004, amounts to $663.5 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in progress.
The net increase in Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1.3%
(a 1.6% increase for governmental activities and a 2% decrease for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CAPITAL ASSETS
(December 31; net of depreciation, amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2004 2003 2004 2003 20 2003
o e $ 44535 $ 38034 % 5,752 $ 5752 $ 50,287 $ 43,786
Land improvements................. 10,485 2,151 2,658 3,006 13,143 5,157
Utility plant.........cocivrniiineiiiennne 26,639 20,793 26,639 20,793
Buildings, structures and
improvements...........c..c.veu.... 305,279 260,101 6,742 7,418 312,021 267,519
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment ..............conue.e. 13,919 11,474 243 296 14,162 11,770
Vehicles......c.ccccoeevieeeveiiinnen 4,035 3,296 961 848 4,996 4,144
Infrastructure.........ccceeceeevienn.. 199,601 203,973 199,601 203,973
Construction in progress......... 41,480 90,822 1,170 6,958 42 650 97.780
Tl oo $ 610334 $ 600851 $ 44165 $ 45071 $663.499 $.654.922

The County was involved in a number of construction projects that resulted in the capitalization of various
assets in 2004 including renovations of the County Justice Center amounting to $22.6 million, the County
Courthouse amounting to $8.4 million and Juvenile Court amounting to $4.2 million. The County
purchased the Marion Building for $4.4 million and Whiskey Island for $4 million. The County built a new
County Kennel for $6.5 million. The County Engineer had renovations of various bridges and roads of
$7.7 million, and $8.5 million was used to clean up county land for future development.

Some sewer improvements were capitalized in Business-type Activities including the Schady Road
project for $5.3 million.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s capital assets can be found in Note E on pages 48 — 50 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $357.4 million. Of this amount, $241.4 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the government and $2.3 million is special assessment debt for which the government is liable in
the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of Cuyahoga
County’s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds) and
other debt such as notes to be financed by future bonds, loans and an installment purchase agreement
financed by non-tax sources.
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Cuyahoga County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Long-term Debt
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

General obligation bonds .............. $ 241,445 § 172250 $ $ $ 241,445 $ 172,250
Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment........... 2,250 2,440 2,250 2,440
Revenue bonds .........c.ccoevvvvennnnn, 113,735 115,975 113,735 115,975
Bond anticipation notes................. 2,440 5,850 6,110 5,950 8,550
L O8NS cwimasmsass s 3,054 3,332 4,729 6,016 7,783 9,348
Installment purchase agreements . 9.808 11,698 9.808 11,698
TOtAl et $ 368.042 $ 305695 $ 12929 $ 14566 $ 380971 $ 320261

Cuyahoga County's total debt increased by $60.7 million (19%) during the current fiscal year. The
County refinanced some revenue bonds and bond anticipation notes and issued new general obligation

bonds.

Cuyahoga County maintained a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s, “AAA" from Fitch and a “Aa1” rating
from Moody’s for general obligation debt. The revenue bonds have been rated “Aa3” by Moody's.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 1% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation (voted and unvoted) for Cuyahoga County is $565
million which is significantly in excess of Cuyahoga County’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s long-term debt can be found in Note F on pages 51 - 58 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for Cuyahoga County is currently 6.2%, compared to 6.8% a year ago.

e The percentage of jobs lost between the third quarter 2003 and the third quarter 2004 was 1.8% in
manufacturing, 3.4% in wholesale and retail and 1.3% in federal state and local government. In all
sectors, job loss amounted to only .7% as compared to 1.5% one year ago.

Each of these factors were considered in preparing Cuyahoga County’s budget for the 2004 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased $16.9 million. The
primary reason for the decrease in unreserved fund balance was due to a subsidy to the human services
and health and community services funds which was advanced in 2003.

In May 2003, the voters of Cuyahoga County approved a 4.9 mill health and human services levy to be
collected in 2004 through 2008. The levy generated an additional $57.5 million of property tax revenue in
2004.
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The County issued $84.5 million of new general obligation bonds to fund various project many of which
were in various stages of completion.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Frank
Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, Cuyahoga County, 1219 Ontario Street, Room 121, Cleveland, Ohio
44113.
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!Amounts in 000'3!

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type MetroHealth
Activities Activities Total System

ASSETS
Equity in pocled cash and investments. $ 286,218 § 10,864 $ 287,062 § 2,287
Cash and investments-segragated accounts.. 221,253
Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 335,098 335,008

Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles).. 649 268 917 58,041

Special assessments (net of allowance for uncollectibles)........ 2,496 2,496

Acorued INBrest ..o e e 2,096 2,096

Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles).... 19,078 18,078

Net receivables.... 356,921 2,764 359,685 58,041
Internal balances... 33 (33)
Due from other govemments. 165,711 264 185,975
Inventory of supplies............... 38 10 48 5,392
Prepaid expenses and other receivables.. 28,686
Other assels...........ocoecciieceeieee e 918 239 948 3,881
Restricted assets:

Cash and inVestMEentS. ... e e e vssieisasse s sie e ars 31,837 31,937 33,387
Capital assels (net of accumulated depreciation);

(-T2, o o et 44 535 5752 50,287 9,634

Land improvements, 10,485 2,658 13,143 968

Utility plant. 26,639 26,639

Buildings, structures and improvements.. 305,279 6,742 312,021 180,535

Fumniture, fixtures and equipment.. 13,919 243 14,162 41,950

Vehicles............ 4,035 %61 4,996 6,970

Infrastructure.. 199,601 193,601

Construction in progress 41,480 1,170 42 650 11,083

Net capital assels............... 619,334 44,165 663,499 251,151
TR ABEETS. -viv s s s e s e 1,461,111 58,063 1,519,174 604,078
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.... 60,587 1,082 61,669 20,744
Deferred revenue..... 307,105 307,105
Due to other governmenlts......... 20,080 13 20,083
Accrued wages and benefits 8,601 111 8712 25,090
Matured bonds payable... 14 14
Other liabiltties............. 1,410 158 1,568 15,717
Accrued interest payable.................o.eeceieveeeenoereessesras st 3167 3,167 3,846
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within 0n8 YBar...........c.c...oo s P 47 667 7,040 54,707 41,745

Due in more than ane year... 416,835 7,340 424,175 279,608
TOTAL LIABILITIES 865,466 15,744 881,210 387,750
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nel of related debt.................ocoveeini. 350,959 31,236 382,195 40,588
Restricted for:

Restricted assels ... 19,977 18,977 2,887

Debt service, - 19,018 19,018 27,692
L a0 L T 205,691 11,083 216,774 145,161
TOTAL NET ASSETS....... $ 595,645 $ 42,319 $ 637,964 $ 216,328

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(Amounts in 000's)

Charges for
Eunctions/Programs Expenses Services
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General QOVEMMENL.........cccoviia et - 69,154 § 64,865
Judleial i SRR s remeean 292 417 27,400
PBVBIODITIENL ... oociatiaunsnmensotismnimsss i e e e R S R R sl S e R i e 32,524 367
Social services..... 570,871 1,884
Healiand Balehr.......c i i s v S e e it 178,342 1,524
PUBIE WOPKS.. ... ie e et me et e s e e e ee e senee s 59,421 2,314
Interest on long-term debt..... 18,412
Total QOVEMMENIA] BCHVILIES.........cveve ettt ee e emee s esee e et eeeeeee oo eee oot eee e 1,221 141 98,354
Business-type activities:
SANMANY EROIBRE ousisioccicns shissssninisnssbesornss s Hs o000 Fitemite bR o o oo e e T e T e v 9,604 11,102
Alport...iiiiinmmns 1,302 663
BTG PR QAN i svivmsmsis vt i Ay o T o T T L 2418 2,266
Cuyahoga County Information System... 2,773 1,437
Total busINeSS-1YPE ACUVIIES. ... cocvinrswsimmsisins i vesiasstiras st siessssdaes s svsssessismtt sessas s brs as s iinias 16,097 15,468
Total PriMBIY GOVEMIMENL. ... ..o euersanessissisaisstssesiast sesasssssseiassssasssieinsssssiassssesins soansseessessseesssesaeaesstsasestions $ 1237238 % 113,822
Component unit:
MetraHEAIN SYSIEML. ittt e s e s eeees e mese s eeene e e tee e s s s e 3 562,298 §$ 498,434

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Capital Grants, Business- Component Unit
Grants and Contributions and Governmental Type MetroHealth
Contributions Interest Activities Activities Totals System
60 § (4,229) 3 $ (4,229} 3
51,218 (213,799) (213,799)
20,808 (11,349) (11,349)
378,758 (180,229) (180,229)
127,591 (49,227) {49,227)
359 25,305 (31,443) (31,443)
(18,412) (18,412)
578,794 25,305 (518,688) {518,688)
22 1,920 1,520
123 (516) (516)
(152) {152)
{1,336) (1,336)
145 (484) {484)
578,939 $ 25,305 (518,688) (484) (519,172)
31,031 § 183 (32,650)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
315,172 315,172
Sales and use.... 168,634 168,634
Other. e 28,928 28,928
State local government fund... 38,259 38,259
Unrestricted investment eamings 5,743 49 5,792 1,323
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific programs 41982 41,982
Miscellaneous.........ccccvcueues 20,596 53 20,649 24,714
THRANSTETS......c.rneeeee ettt b emree e s st s (2.811) 2,811
Total general revenues, and transfers............cccooeeee... 616,503 2,913 619,416 26,037
Change in net assets.......c.c.coooove e eeee e 97.815 2,429 100,244 (6,613)
Net assets-beginning of year............ccvnninnmnnnn 497,830 39,890 537,720 222,941
Net assets-end of year....... 595645 § 42,319 § 637,964 $ 216,328
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments.............ccoceoceeeenn.

Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectiblesy.....................
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) ...............

Accrued interest ...................

Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles).....................
Net receivables.........coooeeeeeivciii e
Due from other funds.............ccoceevevevveeevereiseeeeesens
Due from other governments. ..........c.cocoveveevcreseeeenenns

Restricted assets -

Cash and investments..........occeieeiririreeeeeee e,

TOTAL ASSETS........

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable..............ccoeieiiiie e,
Defermed roVENUE...ciiviivuiiimmiiidivirmssisssmemnssrnes
Due to other fUnS...........cccviriiimmiii i sisnesen:
Due to other governments..............ccccueeveeecceee e,

Accrued wages and benefits...........
Matured bonds payable..................

Other Liabililies. ...oc.we e e
TOTALLIABILITIES.......oooceeeoeeeee oo

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Restricted asSets.......co.oioeeeeeeie s ese e
Loans receivable..............ooocveueeeeeer oo seenees
DEbt SEIVICE. ..ot

Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund:;

Designated for self-insurance.........c..oooeeveveeccennnn,
Designated for proprietary funds..............cccvurvruennann.
UNAesIgaated, ..o iamemmmamisisimimmms
Special Revenue Funds............cccocoevvvveece e,
Capital Projects FUNd.............cccorvverreviereserececeresevnrans
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ........cooovoeiieeeeeeeeeeeee e
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES............

General
Fund

Human
Services

Health and
Human
Services
Levies

County
Board of
Mental
Retardation

$ 57,576

65,267
265
2,096
1,000

3

15,881

156,870

$ 33,004

79,668

68,628
41,935
26,443

31,937

82,630

156,870
40,120
10,369

79,668

11,619

$__ 226,519

$ 5,438
51,212

2,208

3,521

1,410

$ 82,630

$

$ 223,240

12,975

67,735

1,920

165,787

$ 124,291

$ 3,569
84,225
1,049

1,429

63,789

27,412
1,000
9,484

1,878
4,276
118,580

82,630

165,787

57,453

90,272

34,019

162,730

57,453

34,019

$_ 226,519

$

82630 $

223,240

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 124,291
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Health
and Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental
Services Funds Funds
$ 57,067 % 68,598 $ 232,126
11,798 21,495 335,098
372 637
2,096
18,078 19,078
12,170 39,573 356,909
82,055
13,768 17,818 162,647
31,937
$ 83005 § 125,989 §$ 865,674
$ 27429 3% 9112 % 58,523
11,689 32,054 344 967
14,209 606 85,807
2,817 2,817
745 383 7,998
14 14
1,410
54,072 44,986 501,536
27,412
18,078 19,078
9,534 19,018
1,978
4,276
118,580
28,933 30,758 151,163
22,633 22633
28,933 81,003 364,138

$ 83,005 $ 125,989

$ 865,674
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)

Total fund balances for GOVErNMENtAl fUMES. ............coiieeeecscee et ee oo et e s et se et $ 364,138

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding intemnal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds........c.cooovoooeoeoeeeeeeee 610,488

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are defemed iNthe FUNGS ..ot eas st sies s et es s e st stes s et et ee e eeeeeseee e seeesea 37,862

The assets and liabilities of the intemal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the Statement Of NEE ASSEES.............e.iieeeeeeeere et eeeee e ee s s s e et ee e e e e eenen 42,045

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Accrued interest payable (3,167)

Long-term debt.............ooceiivnnniiinnnnene (456,638)
Unamortized BONG ISSUBNCE COSES.......c.oceiiiiiisiiieciesererinnssseses sttt s so s esmsems sessasseses s s es e see e eees s 919 (458,8886)
TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES................. $ 595,645
_——

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taxes..........cccceoo....
Sales and use tax...
Othertax.....ccccceeeeienvnnnnnnnne.
State local government fund..
Licenses and permits.............
Charges for SerViCES............coveveeereeeeeeseeseeese e
Fines and forfeitures...................oooiivininieeeeeee .
Investment earnings......
Other intergovernmental............ccccocovvieeeieeeeciseeseieon,s
MiscCellaneous. ... ....ooviiiinnnnens et
TOTAL REVENUES ......c.... ittt eeeseeeeeeeeenansa e

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General GOVeMMEN .............c.oovieeeiieeeeeeeeee e een s
Judicial..................
Development................c........
Social services...................
Health and safety...
Public works...........
Capital oUtlay........c..ooiiviiiiieee e
Debt service:
Principal retirement......
Interest.........cocovuereennns
Bond issuance Costs..........uvvvcieeiiinisesene i
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.....cooveviiecee e

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.........covniinmreene e

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

B2 1 L e e e e

Transfers out:

Debt retirement. ... .o iammiimaimimin s
Other.....ocoeeieniee.
Capitalized leases.....
Issuance of debt....................
Bond premium (discount)-net..........c.oooeveeeeeeuveeevinnn,
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........ccooeevnn....

FUND BALANCES AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR.......ccceeiiitiiniis e s sssrssnenns

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR.. =

S I e S e
Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation
$ 21,146 § 5 170,467 § 86,420
167,871
126 76 42
38,518
89
70,113 1,588
5,833
4,324 26
10,158 258,530 23,448 89,478
12,651 1,321 1,607
330,830 261,439 193,991 177,563
51,798
226,592
6,841
5,778 309,362 166,651
978 26,918
25
292,012 309,382 26,918 166,651
38,818 (47,923) 167,073 10,912
607 48,133 FO 551
(7.221)
(55,827) {210) (111,409)
1,857
(62,441) 47,923 (111,339) 2,408
(23,623) 55,734 13,320
186,353 1,719 20,689
$ 162,730 $ 03 57,453 $ 34,019

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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e —_ . — .. _—
Health and Total
Community Other Governmental
Services Governmental Funds
$ 13,399 § 23,740 % 315,172
167,871
29,644 29,888
38,518
1,579 1,668
18,698 90,399
178 275 6,286
631 1,034 6,015
184,610 79,523 645,748
1,457 4,085 21,111
220,552 138,301 1,322,676
15,711 67 67,576
43,765 20,603 280,960
5,118 21,251 33,208
91,709 6,838 580,338
144,090 6,277 178,263
1,834 56,076 57,910
30,207 30,207
62,255 62,255
17,042 17,067
942 942
302,225 221,558 1,318,726
(81,673) (83,257) 3,050
87,718 37,598 184,677
(7,221)
(4,599) (6,702) (178,747)
1,857
127,320 127,320
5814 5,814
83,119 164,030 133,700
11,446 80,773 137,650
17.487 230 226,488
$ 28,933 $ 81,003 $ 364,138
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(Amounts in 000's)

Net change in fund balances-total govemmental o T $ 137,650

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets that meset capitalization requirements

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays ($39,146) exceeded depreciation ($30,824) in the current period............... 8,322

Net effect of sales and other disposals of capital ASSIS.. .ot ettt ee et een e (1,827)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the FUNTS et s et ee et sttt eeee s (395)

Expenses reported as compensated absences and special termination benefits in the statement of
activilies do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in govemmental funds........................ 16,388
Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the govemmental funds, butis
reported as incurmred in the statement of BOHIVIHES. ... e e e et e (1,334)
The issuance of lang-term debt, (notes, bonds, capital leases, etc.) provides current
financial resources to govemmental funds and is not reported in the statement of activities. (134,049)
Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities and is not reported in the statement of activities.
Capital lease obligations,.......cuuieveeeresreneserens 1,887
Environmental Protection Agency loan...........ccccoorvrveneinnn. . . 28
Ohio Department of Development I0an.................cooovvevvveeeeroeroooooe, 250
Installment purchase agrEBMENL.............c..oceoieeeeeiee oo oo o 1,890
General obligation and revenue bonds................cocooeovooovoo 60,365
Certain net expenses of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities in the statement of BCHVIUEE, s copmns s evissis s smis R S ST SR e e T T 8,640
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES...covuiisimeurrsrasssasssessesemressessssessssasesmsssnssssssensesemsenes $ 97,815

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

27



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Fropery taxes .....
Sales and use tax.

Stale local government fund
Licenses and permits.
Charges for service
Fines and forfaitures.
Investment earnings..
Other intergovemmaental. ..,
Miscellaneous.........
TOTAL REVENUES

EXFENDITURES

Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel.
Other...
Capital,
TOTAL GENERAL GO

JupiciaL
Personnel..
Gther...
Capilal.

TOTAL JUDICIAL...

DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT

SOCIAL SERVICES
Parsonnel..

Es

TOTAL SOCIAL SERV

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Capital.. ss
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ..

PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel.
Other..
Capital...

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS...

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......ocoveeiiieens
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCE

NET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCES...

FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR.........

FUND BALANCES{DEFICITS) AT

END OF YEAR. ...

General Fund

Human Services

Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual
Orlginal Final Amounts Original Final Amounts
5 16,843 3 20,158 $ 21,186 § $
158,020 165,408 165 408
45 128 128
38,526 38,528 38,526
107 100 88
58,336 65,450 70,155 1,744 1.500 1.588
6,250 6,587 5,008
14,000 12,000 11,7609
6,864 7,878 5,882 265,583 243,505 240,828
3,336 6‘4§£ 12,401 2,584 4,181 2,250
310,547 322,689 334,550 268,011 249,276 244 766
28,212 30,493 28,785
31,247 3z.2e1 22,833
a903 G648 565
60,462 63,432 52,983
156,443 157,136 158,507
73,130 78,142 73,8681
1,310 513 496
.............. 230,883 235,791 230,804
751 751 694
3,715 3,483 3,458
1 2 2
4,467 4,216 4,154
1,703 1.776 1,707 131,684 130,843 127,887
6,415 6,223 4,053 205,411 184,660 180,560
L] 69 48 421 486 307
8,124 8,068 5,808 337.516 216,089 308,854
867 T84 784
498 487 432
4 7 4
1,367 1,258 1,220
........................... 305,303 312,765 285,059 337,518 316,089 308,854
........................... 5,244 8,824 30,491 (67,805) (66,813) (64,088)
G807 67,508 123,134 62,495
(7,262) (7.422) (7,221)

(18,179) (24,269) {32,718) o {211 {210}
S(USES)......c..... (26,441) {41,721} {38,332} 67,508 122,823 52|255
(21,167} {31,707) 158 (87} 56,110 {1,803)

106,864 106,864 106,804 (57.901) {57.901) (57,801)
......................... 5 35i697 3 751057 $ 107.053 5 SE?IBBBI 3 (1.781) $_ (50.704)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual
Orlginal Flnal Amounts Criginal Final Amounts Qriginal Final Amounts
5 175,820 3§ 168,643 3 170,840 $ 87,1668 $ 85,518 % 86,621 $ 12,500 % 14,868 % 13,426
27 76 42
1,586 1,704 1,579
17,9608 17,579 18,730
142 159 178
22 22 a 582 77 633
17,174 24,512 23,447 82,774 85,855 86,228 171,043 146,389 106,885
970 3,468 1,597 4,719 6,015 1,449
193,103 193,182 194,463 170,832 174,063 174,519 208,551 187,485 232,660
11,363 11,120 11,088
5,008 4,732 4,505
63 16 13
16,435 15,868 15.614
28,023 28,750 27.507
18,184 19,304 16,087
318 437 3389
47,525 48,481 43,833
1,852 1,791 1,645
3.188 3,707 3,679
5 21 2]
5,043 5,519 5,334
88,380 88,380 86,544 352 400 a73
77,749 76,841 73,655 118,311 105,084 102,011
3,774 5,325 4,859 1 g 1
170,803 171,646 165,158 116,664 105,483 102,385
8,779 5,694 6,626
27.000 26,674 26,974 125,373 138,456 133,625
53 202 151
27,000 26,974 26,874 132,205 145,352 140,702
404 404 378
1,451 1,641 1,588
1 1

1,B56 2,045 1,666
27,000 26,874 26,874 170,803 171,646 185,158 318.728 322760 309,934
166,103 166,208 167,480 29 3,317 8,361 (111,177) (135.284) (77,274)
70 70 551 107,126 150,161 101,155
156,103 (151.528! (151,528} {3.880) !4,599!
(1566,103) {151,458) (151,458) 551 107,128 146,471 96,556
14,750 16,031 29 3,317 8,812 (4,051) 11,187 18,282
(150} (150) {150) 14,423 14,423 14,423 10,1689 10,168 10,158
¥ (150) 5 J4.600 S 15881 % 14,452 % 17.740 % 24 335 § 6118 % 21,356 % 29 451

Human Services Levies

Board of Maental Retardation

Haal!_l'-l and Communlity Services




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)

The notes to the financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.

[— - ——
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Governmantal
Othor Total Activitios-
Sanitary Enterprise Entsrpriso Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments..........c......ccooocveeoveerccsrns s ] 8112 % 2752 § 10,864 $ 54,002
Receivables:
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles),. 12 256 268 12
Spedial assessements (net of allowance for uncollectibles).. 250 250
Net receivables. 262 256 518 12
Due from other funds..... 45 46 6,867
Due from other govemments. 264 264 3,064
Inventory of supplies...... 10 10 38
TOlal CUMBNE BESEES.....osesusmsnssniinsos sissiinesivs onee s bbb asvirs sbs s cdoeni v e ik ries 8,374 3,328 11,702 64,073
Noncurrent assets:
Special assessments receivable {net of allowance for uncallectibles)..... 2,246 2,246
OHHEE BSSRIS.....vuumrmrrrsinsisissisisis s s s st et s eneemssesees s e e st st seeone 20 29
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation);
Land...... 472 5,280 5,752
Land Improvements 503 2,155 2,658
Utility plant ................ 26,639 26,639
Buildings, structures and improvements.. 2,703 4,039 6,742
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment...........c.voeiievennnn. % 205 38 243 8,049
L L Tt e 857 104 961 799
Censtruction in progress... s 868 302 1,170
Net capital assels......... 32,247 11,918 44,165 8,848
Total noncurrent assets . 34,622 11,918 46,440 8,848
TOTAL ABEBETS....ccueeseenimsesiassnriasms sussssiossnssstivsississborssossn mmsss sebemoci vons siace 42,896 15,246 58,142 72,921
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIC...ucvcerirrrr vesseassssisesiesenranns 551 5N 1,082 2,064
Due to other funds 297 37 334 2,827
Due to other govemments. 13 13 17,263
Accrued wages and benefils. i 398 114 512 2,608
Other liabilities 158 158
Capital lease obligations. 111
Special termination benefits 488 36 524 2,798
Loans payable 336 336
Notes payable : Fr T TS 5,950 5,950
Bonds payable.. i 190 190
Total current liabilities 8,381 T18 9,099 27,671
MNoncurrent liabilities:
Capital 1ease OblGatioNS.........cc.coveieivemcsnsssisisreessseeiesssssesssssess sossesssess 352
Special termination BENEILS...........ccccrisrisremesm s s s 477 49 526 2,598
Loans payable... e PR PP Ry P 4,393 4,303 .
Bonds payable. 2,060 2,060
Total noncurrent liabilities............. 6,830 49 6,979 2,950
TOTAL LIABILITIES..coveveceeeienresvsesremesssiaeneas R R R 15,311 767 16,078 30,621
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.. 19,318 11,918 31,236 8,385
Unrestricted................. 8,267 2,561 10,828 33,915
TOTAL NET ASSETS........ 27,585 § 14,479 $ 42,300
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of intemal service fund
activities related to enlerprise funds................. 255
NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES...ciereeeveee e esesssnesnesnns s 42,318
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
3 L
(Amounts in 000's)
P
BUSINESS-TYPE AGTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
DA S O BB R o T B i v ilt insmms sonsmnmnnane 3 11,102 $ 4,366 $ 15468 $ 77,486
Other revenue.......c.ovevvvenns 39 14 53 168
TOTAL OPERATING REVEMNUES 11,141 4,380 15,521 77,654
OPERATING EXPENSES
PErsonal SBMVICES. ......cocciriiiiies et e st st e s s s n e eas s essssrne s soe s nrens 6,012 1,406 7.418 35,795
Contractual services and claims... i 721 1,344 2,065 8,749
COMMOIIBs: i i s ioms s e T s 722 200 922 9,667
Depreciation.........uvinn vessnins 1,614 800 2414 1,743
Other expenses...........ocooeeveees & £29 2,964 3,583 13,358
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES........ccoieiececriiesianssveesvsssssssnsss s, 9,698 6,714 16,412 69,312
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS).......cvmirimuimmuesimsinsssensesssessesmremes s ssseneons 1,443 (2,334) {891) 8,342
NONOPERATING REVENLUES (EXPENSES)
ITEESE ORI s s v e S B sy 48 49
Interest expense.. (158) (15B) (11
GrantS.....ccorr et e seas 2 22 123 145
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capial assels............cc..ccoovovmrerens veenineennns 5 i 6 {90)
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES (EXPENSES)..... A e beee veasseensnmnses (82) 124 42 {101)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS......... 1,361 (2,210) (849) 8,241
TIESIERE Wi i e e s {RiES i mnnnnnnsnens 999 2,201 3,200 519
Transfers out;

Debt retirEMENL....... ..o e seemseene e (103) (103)

Other......coumenncs (286) (286) (2.039)
Capital CONIBULIONS........covsvnrrereessieecs e seseseese e eessessessesesessesesseene 2,386
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. ...t e eece e re e e 2,360 (308) 1,962 9,107
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF ¥EAR i i it i it vssnmsssnsans 25,225 14,877 33,193
TOTAL NET ASSETS

ENE O YRR - i simsassisienvinioss o iis abbeamsbiaiion o s s i o i 3 27,585 § 14, 4792 $ 42 300

e —

Adjustment to reflect consolidation of intemal

service fund activities related to enterprise funds.........cccoovvvereeveiennn. 467
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES .coomoeereran $ 2,429

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

!Amounts in 000‘5!

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers.
Other operating cash receipts........c. oo, 49 hbdnsammmanss peansamsuiqes
Cash payments to suppliers for

00008 AN BBIVICES. ... i iiitaiinnrsissieimssssse i s sosdsesasmem e neses

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other fUNES........c.cceeeee e eeee s
Transfer 10 ofher fUNGS. ... s sans sivetsssisenssmstsres
Proceeds from short-term interfund 108N-NEL...........o.ooeeeeoeeeeeereeesoe e
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES........ccoomieireeeseeer e eeessneenans e a—

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANGING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-temm debt........ccccoeeiinievvceeen,
Receipts from capital grants...................
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital @SSets...........veiveeeniriessseesesisnons
Principal paid on long-term debt..................
Interest paid on [Ong-term debL.............c..cceiiemieieeeeenseeeeee e e
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccoooeceeee s serersssssssens e

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on INVESIMENES.......covvecue. oo
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES . ....ovoveevieeeeooeeen

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..................

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR. ..o vooveereeeees e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
11,880 $ 4,353 § 16,233 § 168
44 15 59 72,334
(2,530) (4,583) (7,113) (36,092)
(6,418) (1,413) (7,831) {36,167)
2,976 (1,628) 1,348 243
999 2,201 3,200 519
(389) (389) (2,039)
15 15 1,816
999 1,827 2,826 296
5,991 5,991
272 123 395
62
{1,198) (309) (1,507) (2,120)
(7,586) {7,586) (51)
(280) (280) (11)
(2,801) (186) {2,987) (2,120)
8 8
8 8
1,182 13 1,195 (1,581)
6,930 2,739 9,669 55,673
8,112 § 2,752 § 10,864 $ 54,082
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (I0S5).....ccviceerierererisieeessretrsiessinssssessesassersaesssessssissrassssssns H] 1,443 § (2334) § (891) § 8,342
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DI BRI, . svocisinsmnyiinn sowsimpemiais sssion s bisas N R T R S e 1,614 800 2,414 1,743
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-nel.............c.c.couvuvenisesieeesicnns 4 {134) (130) {11)
Due from other funds................. {15) (15} (2,334)
Due from other governments (69) {69) (2,805)
INVentory of SUPPIIES. ..ot sisss sttt et s s sessesessmsesee et (1) n (8)
ACCOUMS PAYADIE.......cvvvooreesioeisieeacs oo ceseeesceseseesses e e sess e e ss s 213 174 387 (63)
Due 10 other Unds.... oo s it s s s skt st e desoesemes 232 11 243 288
Due to other govemments... - 13 13 (1,503)
Accrued wages and DENefitS............oouirmimiun i senessssesssessssees (87) (20) (107) {676)
Special termination benefits (4586) (40) (496) (2,729)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 1,533 706 2,239 (8,099)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES........... $ 2,976 § {1,628) $ 1,348 $ 243

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NOMCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets acquired through capital [€ase................coceveeeeeeieeeesrerersreens $ $ $ $ 376




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)

= e

Agency Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments.............ccccccoovvrvnvvccerienn. $ 213,066
Cash and investments-segregated accounts..........ccoovevrvveeeeeenene 36,071
T OXES TEOBIVADIE civssamser vrmisr s s s e 1,301,608
TOTALASBET S vvnniiiismuniiisisiimi st $ 1,550,745
LIABILITIES

Due to other govermnments..........c.oueercicccecesveesrces e sees s $ 1,505,695
AT NADIKIBS:. . coscsmcansssasmpmvossasmmmsssrsims s s 45,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES........ T TR B $ 1,550,745

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the

County's justice system.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance or equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. The County uses the following fund types:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, intergovernmental receipts and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay principal and
interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are derived primarily

from property taxes.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Permanent Funds: Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government's programs. The County does not utilize permanent funds at this time.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services that are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Infemal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources that have been collected by the County and will be distributed to other taxing districts

located within the County.

Private-purpose Trust Funds: Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for other trust arrangements
which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. For accounting measurement purposes, the
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

private-purpose trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. The County does
not utilize private-purpose trust funds at this time.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Reporting Entity: Cuyahoga County is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The three member board
of County Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal
officer. In addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in
Ohio Law. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which Cuyahoga County is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements (see Discretely Presented Component
Unit below for description) to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, the MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component
Unit in the County's basic financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general
public and care for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The
Hospital's annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is
included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with
the County. The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally

~ separate from the government. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested from the County

Auditor.

Basic Financial Statements:  Financial information of the County is presented as a set of basic financial
statements in the following format;

Govemment-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The policy of the County is to allocate indirect expenses to functions in
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have
been eliminated against the expenses and program revenue shown in the statement of activities.

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. State and local government fund shared revenues
are recognized when the provider government recognizes its liability to the County. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales and use taxes, other tax, state local government funds, licenses and permits and
interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within
the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Human Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and expenditures
used to provide entittement services, senior and adult programs, children and family services and employment
services to eligible county residents.

Health and Human Services Levies accounts for revenues from Health and Human Services Levies.
Levies and expenditures are determined by policies of the Board of County Commissioners,

County Board of Mental Retardation accounts for revenues primarily from the State and the special
mental retardation levy and expenditures thereof that are used for the benefit of the mentally retarded and
developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and
expenditures thereof as prescribed under the various health and community service functions including mental health
and alcohol and drug programs.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sanitary Engineer accounts for the maintenance operations of county sewer lines. The office also enforces
compliance of county sanitary regulations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The Hospital has elected to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants, contributions and interest
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

funds and of the County’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap-in fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Major Special Revenue funds which are
budgeted annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, County Beard of Mental Retardation
and Health and Community Services. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is approved by the
Board of County Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate budgetary report. The
Board of County Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the year as allowed by
State statute. The County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures/expenses and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other
costs. Elected officials and managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long
as amendments are within legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
Encumbrances are closed to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and
reappropriated at the start of the following year.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances — budget and actual (non-GAAP budgetary basis), comparing budget to actual results of operations for the
General fund and all annually budgeted major special revenue funds, is presented to demonstrate the County's
compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflects only budget revisions formally adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of revenues and expenditures throughout the
year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current information. Formal revisions to previous
budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances
may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the accompanying statements. The County has chosen not to
include the variance column in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and

Actual.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, there is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such

budgets.

The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP),

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budgetary) as opposed to being closed
to unreserved fund balanceffund net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year (GAAP).
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A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Net Change in Fund Balances
(Amounts in 000's)
Heaith and County

Human Board of Health and
General Human Services Mental Community
Fund Services Levies Retardation Services
GAAP DaSIS.........cimiiiniiicnmmnssemissssisreissnnnnee. . $ (23,623) 8 $ 55734 $ 13,320 $ 11,446
Increase/decrease:
Accrued receivables at 12/31/04
not recognized in the 2004 budget .....................  (137,008)  (82,630)  (207,359) (91,287) (25,038)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/03
recognized in the 2004 budget..................c........... 202,553 67,946 151,738 93,802 46,569
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/04 not recognized in the 2004 budget......... 63,789 82,630 165,787 90,272 54,072
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/03 recognized in the 2004 budget............... (65,379) (30,412)  (189,869) (100,920) (56,563)
Encumbrances at 12/31/04 recognized as
expenditures in the 2004 budget............ooooe.o....... (14,823)  (19,823) (7,657) (27,616)
Encumbrances at 12/31/03 not recognized as
expenditures in the 2004 budget............ooeeuees 10,028 20,367 9,319 17,312
(35.380) (39.881) 3,073

Other GAAP adjustments(T).................. ..
Budget basis..........ccocoueveeuieereee e

$ 150 $.(1.803) $ 16031 §$ 9912 $i9282

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized gain on
investments, net expenses for the Brownfield project, Gateway debt and agency funds reclassified as cash

for financial reporting purposes.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the statement of cash flows
as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all
highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form a pool
of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
investments accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for Extemal Investment Pools, which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, reguiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Restricted Assets: The primary government's restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
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well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County's
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets, consisting of investments
restricted by donors, assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and interest

on the Hospital's bonds when due.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings, structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles and infrastructure assets (primarily bridges constructed and
maintained by the County), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements to the extent the County's capitalization threshold is met. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of 4 years (3 years for Component Unit) and an
individual cost of more than $9,000. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost
is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date contributed.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The valuation
bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital assets.

Cost for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs and upgradings
that materially add to the value of the life of an asset and meet the above criteria are capitalized.

The County and the Component Unit depreciates capital assets on a straight-line basis using the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 5to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 22 years
Vehicles 4 to 9 years

Infrastructure 20 to 69 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on construction projects in the
proprietary funds until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is amortized on the straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2004, capitalized interest was not material.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is not reported. In the government-wide financial statements and for
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences (current and noncurrent) is reported as a liability. The
County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as defined in
GASB Statement No. 16.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Net Fatient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital's classification of patients under the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the
appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent review by a peer review organization. Differences
between the estimated amounts accrued at interim and final settlements are reported in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in the year of settlement. The Hospital recorded a favorable adjustment of
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$5.1 million in 2004 and a favorable adjustment of $9.4 million in 2003, due to prior year retroactive adjustments to
amounts previously estimated.

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 24% and 32%,
respectively, of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
The Hospital believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that

may result from final settlements.

Charity Care: Throughout the admission, billing and collection processes, certain patients are identified by
the Hospital as qualifying for charity care. The Hospital provides care to these patients without charge or at amounts
less than its established rates. The charges foregone for charity care provided by the Hospital, totaling $121 million,
represents 11.4% of gross charges in 2004, and are not reported as revenue. The Hospital accepts certain indigent
Ohio residents and all residents from the County regardless of their ability to pay.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balancefunrestricted net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the

following year.

Inferfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Transfers out are further categorized as
transfers for debt retirement or other purposes. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies transferred to the
Debt Service fund. Other transfers represent all other transfers out.

Fund Balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, the County records reservations of portions of
fund balances that are legally segregated for specific future uses or do not represent available, spendable resources
and, therefore, cannot be appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. Employees' health insurance is provided through a
commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional risk to the
County, except for the prescription drug plan which is self-insured. The County maintains an Intemal Service fund to
account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation benefits through a retrospective rating plan with the State of
Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured claims if information prior to the issuance of the basic financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, the County has designated a portion of the fund
balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio law, to provide for claims and judgements not covered by the various

County insurance policies.

New Accounting Standards: During May 2002, the GASB issued Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Certain Organizations are Component Units, an amendment to GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, which clarifies existing accounting guidance and provides greater consistency in accounting for organizations
that are closely related to a primary government. The standard, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2003, provides criteria for determining whether certain organizations should be reported as component units
based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a state or local government. The County has
determined that GASB Statement No. 39 has no impact on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. Under provisions of this statement, a capital asset is considered
impaired when its service has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement also clarifies and establishes
accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal periods
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beginning after December 15, 2004. The County and the Component Unit have not determined the impagct, if any,
that this statement will have on its financial statements.

During August 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should
account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension
benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB.
Statement No. 45 also establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer
participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and for certain employers,
the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. Statement No. 45 will not be effective for the County until the
year ending December 31, 2007, and as such, the County has not determined the impact that this statement will have

on its financial statements.

During December 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assels Restricted by Legislation, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This statement clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legislation
restriction is one that a party external to government-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary — can
compel a government to honor. The Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation restriction
should be reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified
by the enabling legislation or if a government has other cause for reconsideration. Although the determination that a
particular restriction is not legally enforceable may cause a government to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead a government to the same conclusion for all enabling legislation
restrictions. This Statement also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements if new enabling
legislation replaces existing enabling legislation or if legal enforceability is reevaluated. Finally, this Statement
requires governments to disclose the portion of total net assets that is restricted by enabling legislation. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for the County for the year ending December 31, 2006, and as such, the
County has not determined the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial statements.

NOTE C - Cash and Investments

Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies of the General fund, certain Agency funds and the Hospital
are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in specifically segregated
investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and investments.
Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments account. Amounts
reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally consist of bank balances,
certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agency obligations, municipal obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool.

Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the balance sheet — governmental funds and the statement
of net assets — proprietary funds as “Due to other funds" and are offset against the General fund's equity in pooled
cash and investments.
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A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2004,
follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
L= oLt | $ $ 089511
Due From:;

Special Revenue............c.ocuecvccoenniserseeninns 39,881

ENtEIPriSe ..ottt 15

Internal Service.......couceveeevevieeeeeee e, 2,039 (41,935)
NEt GBNETAL.....c...coviviiree i ecsireiei e vsses e 57,576
Other major governmental ...............cooovvveveeennn.. 105,952
Other governmental .............ccccovveivievivessenreninesnnns 68,598
Major enterprise.........c.ceeceeeieceieceieeeesrerseennn, 8,112
Other enterpriSe .......cc.oevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 2,752
Internal Service..........ccocevveeiiiieiee s 54,092
Total government-wide ...............cccoovvvvveseeecnnnnnnn, 297,082
AGENCY ottt eeae et ee st et e 213.066
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments....... $ 510,148

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts owed by the Enterprise funds will be paid
through increased Airport rental charges. Amounts owed by the Internal Service funds will be paid through collection
of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$79.7 million and the bank balances were $81.6 million. Any differences between the account bank balances and
investments and the cash and investments recorded in the financial statements are due to normal reconciling items.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105%
of the public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and
loan associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located

in the County.

All monies are deposited in the Cuyahoga County banks designated by the Board of County
Commissioners. Interim funds not needed for immediate expenditures are invested in interest bearing or non-interest
bearing accounts or invested pursuant to the Statement of Investment Policy adopted by the Cuyahoga County
Investment Advisory Committee.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure the County’s deposits might not be recovered. The
County’s bank deposits at December 31, 2004 totaled $81.6 million and were subject to the following categories of
custodial risk:

43



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amounts in 000's)
UncollaterBliZad .....ccconmumimmsamasimimsiisiomminimsmas $ 72,754
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution’s trust
department (O.R.C. 135.18) but not in the County's name................ 6,458
Total amount subject to custodial FiSK.............oocevevroerr oo 79,212
Amount insured (FDIC INSUFANCE) ........ccovvoeeesrereoeoeooooeoeee 2410
Total bank balances..........ccovuiuereccueeieeeeeee oo $ 81,622

Component Unit

Deposits: All monies are deposited to the Hospital's banks or trust companies designated by the Board of
Trustees. Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in interest bearing or non-interest bearing
accounts or U.S. government obligations. Banks or trust companies shall furnish security for all such deposits,
whether interest bearing or non-interest bearing, except that no such security is required for U.S. government
obligations.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the Hospital's deposits might not be recovered.
The Hospital's bank deposits at December 31, 2004 totaled $8.1 million and were subject to the following categories
of custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000's)

Uncollateralized ................voiuiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 7,798
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging

institution’s trust department, but not in the Hospital's name ............ 68
Total amount subject to custodial FSK............oveeeoeooeeeeeooo 7,866
AMOUNT INSUMEA ...ttt e 200
Total bank balances..........c.cooeiiereiiemnieeiieeee e $ 8,066

At December 31, 2004, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital's deposits was $8.4 million.
The difference from the reported amount represents outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items.

Primary Government

. Investments: The County's Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the ORC. Eligible investments
include U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, obligations of U.S.
government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political subdivisions of the State of
Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined in the ORC, State
Treasurer's Investment Pool, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual funds registered under the Federal
Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the use of reverse repurchase
agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of 30 days or less and all
investments to maturities of not more than 5 years.
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At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Investment Type Fair Value/Cairying Value
Repurchase AgreBmENtS .............vcecuieeceimieer it e e $ 70,700
- LTl T 6,047
U.S. Government AGENCIES ......oveeveee e oot ee e 420,496
Municipal Obligations..............c.ccoeiiiinininiiiee e s eeseseeses s 1,200
Total Primary Government INVeSIMENtS.............ococovvmveeves oo eessnss e $ 498443

Interest Rate Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy limits the purchase of
securities to a stated maturity of no more than 5 years from the date of purchase unless the security is matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the County. The purchase of any security with a maturity of greater than 5 years must
be approved in advance by the Investment Advisory Committee.

At December 31, 2004, the County's investments had maturities as follows:

Maturities Percentage '
LSS than 1 YEAI ....c..eue ittt ettt oot 39.78%
1O 2 Y AT ¢t it siiaisiiiinisens csmesmensrrsnssmsssessermras smessesss Semsieons s nmsm s et oo e b s 60.22%

Further, the Statement of Investment Policy specifies that the portfolio be structured to diversify investments to
reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific
type of investment. Each investment type is limited to a maximum percentage of the total average portfolio.

Credit Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy govern the minimum investment
rating for each type of eligible investment security. Commercial Paper and Banker's Acceptances must have a
minimum rating of “A-1” or “AA".

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The County has implemented several controls to mitigate custodial risk. All security
transactions are executed on a delivery versus payment basis. All securities are delivered to the County's custodian
bank before payment is made to the broker dealer for the security. Securities delivered to the custodian are held in
the name of the County. If market conditions or liquidity needs require the sale of a security, the County will identify
securities for sale that mitigate the amount of market loss. With repurchase agreements, the County requires that the
counterparty deliver securities with a market value at least equal to 102% of the purchase price of the securities. |If
the counterparty fails to repurchase the securities per the terms of the agreement, the County reserves the right to
sell the securities in the market.

Component Unit

At December 31, 2004, fair value of the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Cash and iNVESHMENES ..o st s st s $ 153,809
b TR T oo T o0 0t it mmcemsmnrnsmse e e e 727
U.S5. GOVErNMENt AGENCIES ........ov.eveeeeece et 79,430
Federal National Mortgage Assaciation and Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Pools)..............cocoeevvevni.. 8,810
Collateralized Mortgage Oblgations .............ccocevvveivieeirs oo s 1,596
COMPOTAEES ...ttt e eee e e et es et et 4,189
Total Hospital INVESIMENts.............ceueeecee et $ 248,561
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Interest Rate Risk. The Hospital's investment policies limit investment portfolic to maturities of five years or
less. All of the Hospital's investments at December 31, 2004 have effective maturity dates of less than five years.

Credit Risk. All of the Hospital's investments are rated AAA by Standard and Poors. The Hospital's
investment policies are governed by State of Ohio statutes that authorize the Hospital to invest in U.S. government
obligations. The Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Federal Mortgage pools are investments that are
grandfathered from previous statutes that allowed such investments. These investments have an effective maturity

date of less than one year.

Custfodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Hospital will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Hospital's investments, only the repurchase agreements are exposed to
custodial risk. Repurchase agreements (included in the U. S. Government Agencies) at December 31, 2004 totaling
$9 million are uninsured, are not registered in the Hospital's name and are held by the financial institution’s trust
department.

NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2004 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)
Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds:

Genaral FUNT.. .o i s s $ 41,935 $ 2,208

HUMAN SeIVICES ..o 67,735

Health and Human Services Levies..............ooveunoo.... 40,120

County Board of Mental Retardation........................... 1,049

Health and Community Services ...........coooooevvvevinenn. 14,209

Other governmental funds ..............ccoeoveeevvoen 606
Total Governmental FUNGS..........coceceoviveeriseoss oo 82,055 85,807
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary ENgineer.......c.cooeeeeveeeeeeeeeeesiieeee oo 297

Other enterprise funds.....covvveeeeoveesiiesieoos oo, 46 _37
Total Enterprise FUNAS..........ooiommomieeeeee s 46 334
Internal Service FUNAS: ...ccoo.civeeevvireneeeeoeeeeeeeeeoeoeees 6,867 2,827
TOAIS ..ot e $ 88.968 $ 88968
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A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Major Governmental Funds:
HUMAN SEMVICES .ooeivvieeeieeecee e $ 39.881 $
Total Major Governmental FUnds............cocouvieerereeennnnnn, 39,881
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:
County AIMPOM...ccc..ccivimiveniraiisnisismsissismsiassemmessnsssssane 15
Cuyahoga County Information System ...................... . 31
Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ..........ccooevreeveeveennnn, 15 31
Internal Service Funds:
Maintenance Garage .........cccoeceveevveevee oo, 897 35
Data Processing Genter..........oueeeeeeeveeeeveeeeseeennn, 1,142
Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ...........cveen..... 121
CommunicatioNS .....eveeeeeeevii e, 71
Self-Funded Workers Compensation.......................... 1.950
Total Internal Service FUNAS .............cccocevivvvnriieern, 2,039 2177
L $ 41935 $ 2208

The receivables represent amounts overdrawn from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General
fund.

The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for computer charges from various
General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent unpaid charges at December 31,
2004.
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NOTE E - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Governmental Activities: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
Capital assets, not belng deprecfeted:

Land... $ 38,034 3 8027 § 1526 % 44,535

Constmctmn in progress 90,822 24,915 74,257 41,480
Total capital assets, not being depreclated TR 128,856 32,942 75,783 86.015
Capital assets, being depreciated;

Land improvements..........oouereineniiin s soeeseseee s 3,500 8,825 2 12,323

Buildings, structures and improvements. 480,068 61,365 521 540,912

Furniture, fixtures and equipment..... 46,025 5,281 1,298 50,008

Vehicles... 14,889 1,859 1.276 15,472

Infraslructure 432,191 8,014 440,205
Total capital assets be[ng deprecfated 976,673 85,344 3,087 1,058,920
Less accumulated depreciation for;

Land improvements... 1,349 480 1 1,838

Buildings, structures and |mpravements 219,967 15,887 221 235,633

Furniture, fixtures and equment ...... 34,551 2,692 1,154 36,089

Vehicles... R e B R 11,593 1,112 1,268 11,437

Infrastmciure 228,218 12,386 240,604
Total accumulated depreciation... 495,678 32,567 2.644 525,601
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.... 480,995 52,777 453 533,319
Governmental activities capital assets, net. $ 609,851 3 85718 $§ 76236 $ 619,334

(Amounts in 000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Business-type Activities: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
3 5752 % $ $ 5,752

Construction In progress......... 6,958 8986 6,774 1,170
Total capital assets, not bemg depreclaled 12,710 986 6,774 6,922
Capital assets, being depreciated:..

Land improvements..... 10,850 10,850

Utility plant.................. 46,859 6,774 53,633

Buildings, structures and improvements. 14,757 9 14,766

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment..... i 2,477 26 2,503

Vehicles.........ccvivremnniinrrenienns 3,582 487 121 3,948
Total capital assets, being deprecfaied 78,525 7,296 121 85,700
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements..... 7.844 348 B,182

Utility plant 26,066 928 26,994

Buildings, structures and improvements.. 7,339 685 B,024

Fumniture, fixtures and equipment..... i 2,181 79 2,260

b L T o P 2,734 374 121 2,987
Total accumulated depreciation.............cooovevrevooreeeesee, 46,164 2,414 121 48,457
Total capital assets, being depreciated, ne 32,361 4,882 37,243
Business-type activities capital assets, net... 3 45071 § 5868 % 6774 3§ 44,165
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Amounts in (000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Component Unit: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
Capital assets, not being depreciated:..............ocoveemercvrense
Land:casannnmmmnanssmasins. $ 8,954 § 680 $% 3 9,634
Construction in progress... - ; 62,043 37,302 88,252 11,093
Total capital assets, not bemg deprecnaied .......................... 70,997 37,982 88,252 20,727
Capital assets, being depreciated:.............c.ccoveeerievernnnnn.
Land improvements...........ccevvreverssnssnnes 7,699 130 7,829
Buildings, structures and improvements... 374,189 71,508 445,697
Furniture, fixtures and equipment............. 191,831 22,580 1,102 213,309
Vehicles... 7,367 2,361 9,728
Total capital assets belng depreclated ................................. 581,086 96,579 1,102 676,563
h_ess accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements. ... ... s eessessssssssesenena 6,656 204 6,860
Buildings, structures and improvements... 247,713 17,449 265,162
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.......... 161,870 10,585 1,096 171,359
VENCIES o amnmanmsmsivias 2,192 566 2,758
Total accumulated depreciation.................... 418,431 28,804 1,096 446,139
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net. 162,655 67,775 6 230,424
Component unit capital assets, Net................ovvvevveeveeeeenn. 3 233652 % 105757 $ 88,258 § 251,151

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Development...............

Total depreciation expenses charged to
governmental activities.............ccc........

Business-type Activities:

Huntington Park Garage....

business-type activities....................

Total depreciation expenses charged to

General government..............c.ouveeiveeevueereeeeeeeeeeeeee e
IRMOIIHEL s o csmvmmmmni e i s s e T A
SOCIAl SEIVICES.......c.ocoeeieiiee et
g e (s o 1 T
PUDIC WOTKS......cuiiieiee et
Capital assets held by the government's internal

service funds are charged to the various functions
based on their usage of the assets...........ccoocoeverevinn.

Sanitary ENGINEET........c.ceiiiiuieiiieceeeecceeee et oo oo,
County AIMPOTt........oc.ov i eeeeeeee e

(Amounts in 000's)

$

2,921
9,391

3

5,085

186

12,738

1,743

32,667

$____ 32,567

$

1,614

414
386

$ 2414
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A summary of construction commitments for governmental activities at December 31, 2004 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2004 Commitments
General government..........cccccoceocece s eeeeeeeeeeiian.. B 14,436 $ 5182 % 9,254
811 [Tt NV PSP S S 40,999 25,448 15,551
SOCIAL SEIVITES! .. oo scaraseimmsmsvsassiainsssest o siiiass sve s s A2 oo isssa 2,406 954 1,452
POBTC WIS o000 sne s enevs mssmoras srmssms nmess brassvinpensiossit ey ssinasiva 26,560 9,896 16,664
OIS s e D 84,401 § 41,480 §_ 42,921

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.

A summary of construction commitment for business-type activities at December 31, 2004 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Business-type Activity Amount December 31, 2004 Commitments
Sanitary ENGINEEr......c..ccooveeriieeeeee et se e ssenens. B 2491 § 868 § 1,623
ATTPOTL. ...ttt st e se s s sr s e emea 789 302 487
=L - e o R 3,280 § 1,170 § 2,110

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through special
assessments and grants.

The Hospital has future contractual commitments for the construction of various projects totaling
$14.8 million. The projects are being funded with remaining bond proceeds amounting to $1.2 million and
operating funds.
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NOTE F - Debt and Other Obligations
Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2004 is provided below:

{Amounls in 000's)
Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligalion, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 One Year
Govemmental Activities:
Comyp d Absences § 21,382 § 39,399 § 38371 § 22410 § 2,241
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 1.75% 52,514 17418 35,098 17.896
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thiu 2028..................cmsomsemcencensssss s 25130 1,857 1,887 25,100 1,545
2003 Inslabment Purchase Agreement-Due thru 2010, [$13,742]...ccc.cccnn.., 3.72%-3.87% 11,688 1850 4808 1,773
Loans Payable:
1889 Environmental Protection Agency-Due thru 2007, [§4%4]... None 82 28 54 28
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan
- Due thru 2018, [$5,000]...... None 3,250 250 3,000 250
Total Loans Payable.........co s 3,332 278 3,054 278
General Obligation Bonds-Unvoled:
1883 Building Improvements-Due thru 2004(1)... 0.375% 875 875
1883 Heatth Service Facilities-Due thru 2004(1). 0.375% 370 k(1)
1883 Audilorium-Due thru 2004(1). 9.375% 175 175
1983  Streel Improvements-Due thru 2004(1)...... 9.375% 50 50
1983 Sanitary Improvements-Due Ihru 2004(1)... 8.375% 200 200
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012, [875,395], 2.20%-5.25% 28,585 3,435 25,150 3610
1883 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018, [§ 12,000).... 2.75%-5.65% 8,800 385 8,495 415
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015, [$35,145].. 3.75%-5.50% 18,500 2,525 15,975 2650
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020, [$96,615] 4.30%-5.75% 87,650 3420 84,230 3580
2004 Capital Improvements-Due lhru 2024, [$84,480]. 2.50%-5.25% 84450 84,480 2575
Total General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted......... 145,295 B4,490 11,445 218,340 12,830
General Obligation Bonds-Voled:
1881 Jail ll Series - Due thru 2006, [$5,086).... 6.95%-7.05% 5,086 1,570 3516 1819
1993 Jail Facililies and Various Purpose Refunding
-Due thru 2013, [$65,254].......... 220%-5.25% 21,869 2.280 19.569 2,340
Total General Obligation Bonds-Voted i 26,855 3,850 23105 4,209
Total Tax Supported Bands.........eceuveececeniisinnns 172,250 84,490 15.295 241,445 17,038
Revenue Bonds:
1892 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022, [$40,000].... Variable 30,400 30,400
1992 Gateway Economic Developmen!-Due thru 2022, [$35,000] B.625% 35,000 35,000
1934 G y Economic D 1-Due thru 2023, [£45,000] 4.45%-7.60% 34,615 1,535 33,080 1,635
1588 Brownfield Economic Redevelopment
-Due thru 2018, [$15465).......000r..... 5.31%-6.75% 13,125 13,125
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Dug thru 2030, [$2,855]............ccc.ee 6,886% 2,835 10 2825 10
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004A Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2011 [$10,750].. 1.50%-4.25% 10,750 10,750 1415
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series efunding Bonds
~Due thru 2022 [$19,200] Variable 13,200 19,200
2004 Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Project Refunding Bonds
Series 2004C -Due thiu 2018 [$12,880]....c..c.vvvvvvvvcmicesesssorseseesssans 1.50%-5.10% 12,880 12,880 125
Total R Bonds 115,975 42,830 45,070 113,735 3,785
Bond premium/discount related lo various issues-nel. 6,077 B9 5,088
Total Bonds Payable...............cemnninins 288,225 133,307 60,454 351,168 20,824 |
Capilal Projects Fund:
Bond Anticipation Notes:
2003 Capital Improvement Notes-Dug In 2004, [$2,440).................... 200% 2440 2,440
Tolal Capital Projects Fund...........oocvrinveenn. 2,440 2,440
Intemal Service Funds:
Compensated ADSENCES.............umereeree s 1,848 2,380 2234 2,005 201
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 7.75% 8125 2728 5308 2798
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009.... 138 376 51 463 1
Total Intemal Service Funds.............u.... 10,112 2,766 5014 7,864 3,110
Total Govemmental Actvi 414833 § 177419 § 127760 § 464600 ¢ 47 667 |
(1) Combined original issue amount $34,395
(CONTINUED)
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{Amounts in 000's)
Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligalion, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
[Business-typa Activities:
COMPENSated ADSBMCES.............ov.svuivussmmssssssassssios sosissimsseessasseseossesess st o N 361 § 621 § 581 § 401 § 40
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 1.75% 1,546 498 1,050 524
Varlous Loans Payable-Due thiu 2018........c.ieiivvrvomvonsiesissmssssmsssisssassssees 4.04% - 7.00% 6,016 1,287 4,729 336
Bend Anticipation Notes:
2002 Oimsted Township Water and Sewer-Due in 2005 [$5,050]. 2.50% 5,950 5,950 5,950
2003 Capilal Improvement Notes-Due in 2004, [$1,082). 2.00% 1,082 1,082
2003 Olmsted Tewnship Water and Sewer-Due in 2004 [$5,028]............coomveee. 2.00% 5,028 5,028
Tolal Notes Payable.... ... s 8,110 5,950 6,110 5,950 5,950
Seli-Supporting Bonds Payable:
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020, [§1,040] 4 55%-5.55% 940 35 905 40
2003 Sewer Improvement-Due thrs 2012 [$1,500).......cc.ccccvivvvvvvvnnns 2.00%-3.55% 500 155 1,345 150
Total Sel-Supporting Bonds Payable.........ccccouuuw oo socersesssessesssssrsss 2.440 180 2,250 180 |
Total Business-type Activiites.........., it e erroesespsene $ 16,473 § 6,671 § 8,664 § 14,380 § 7,040
Component Unit
Com ted absence $ 22,633 § 4552 $ 2,032 § 25,163 § 2,083
Amounts due third party payors (See Nole B). 42 544 761 1,870 41,435 6,872
Claims payable (See Nole J)............ 41,735 18,059 14,020 45 774 21,925
Various Capital Lease Obligalions-Due thiu 2007 ..........vveee. oeeemmsesssessssmessssesssssnssseses 4.958%-4.96% 4,538 2,244 2,294 812
2004 Cuyahoga County Sanitary Engineer Loan -Due thru 2018 None 131 40 1 1
2003 General and Professional Liability Note -Due in 2005. 3.75% 3,400 4,576 3,400 4,576 4,576
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027, [$70,000)........ccoovmvemmmsssssmssssssssssssssons 3.90%-5.80% 50,842 192 4,400 46,634 4,615
1897 Hospilal Refunding Revenue Bonds
-DUB tru 2018, [$77,525]....c00vcimsimiirmuemssasrrsssmrsssnmsesesssasssmssai sissssssmsemmranns 4.10%-5.50% 68,520 307 255 66,572 265
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2029, [$56,995]. s R 6.125%-6.15% 565,806 8 56,814
2003 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bands
Dl thru 2083, [$0,545].......ococrvsvrisamisissspssesinsssmmsesiinsiimsis sbsainsassssrensisves Variable 30,545 535 30,010 580
Total Bonds.......... 206,713 507 5,190 202 030 5,460
Tolal Comp | Unit.... R i e $ 321,663 § 28,686 $ 28,796 § 321,363 § 41,745

Capital Lease Information: The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2004:

{Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Internal Service
Year Activities funds
L e s o S 3742 % 132
2006..... 3,728 107
2007 3,756 107
2008...... 3,796 94
2009...... 3,824 78
2010-2014 14,032
2015-2019..c.ccceeereerrens 5,272
2020-2024...........con..... 73
2025-2029, 58
Total Minimum Lease Payments........ 38,281 518
Amount Representing Interest......... (13,181) (55)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments............ooooveeeeesresonsns $ 25100 §$ 463
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The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit's equipment capital leases and loan obligation at December 31, 2004:

(Amounts in 000's)

Year Equipment and Loan Obligation
O i R TS5 st semsem s ment s RSt e RS TR AR EATRRRER oSS $ 920
B 000 BSR4 30 o amo mapasesrn s e somss s e SRR e R SRS 786
T 785
OO a0 38 UEA 5 ks ema e ssme s e YR SRSARARS P AR 85 SRS 7
2010-2014.......ciereee ettt ettt s e e 33

Total Minimum Lease PAYMENES.............ooeeeeeeeeeeeree oo 2,564

Amount Representing Interest.............coouereoereerrovevesieeeeceesss e, (179)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments...........ccccovmvverner. $ 2,385

As of December 31, 2004, the net book value of the capital assets recorded as capital leases in the
governmental activities funds and Component Unit were $46.8 million and $9.2 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, notes, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2004 are

as follows:

{(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
PRDGE o s ST G 5 22875 % 23,126 $ 6,476 $ 227
2008, i 22,815 21,467 546 213
2007 25 566 17,355 5585 189
OB s cvsinsssssimoraiss iasussas st sbe Loy LT 21,828 21,091 575 184
0B s L e T 1u ee rammeremsnns 22,701 20,194 591 167
2010-2014.... 94,202 81,385 2,728 553
2015-2018..., 93,140 34,747 1,377 153
2020-2024..... 63,875 8,838 80 5
2025-2029..... 800 174

2030...... iR TRRS 140 7

TOtaIS. e e 3 368,042 § 228,384 § 12,929 3% 1,701

In May 2003 the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $10 million from
the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). The money is provided through the state infrastructure bank fund,
which are federal funds, to be used to improve a road and reconstruct a bridge. The loan will carry a 0% interest rate
for the first 12 months and a 3% rate thereafter, through 2013. The County pledges its motor vehicle license tax as
the source of repayment. The County has not received any of this funding through 2004, therefore, a liability has not
been recorded. State Issue Il and ODOT monies are used first for this project and when funding is exhausted the
loan will be exercised for this purpose.

In January 2005, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $2.6 million
from the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) on a taxable basis and in turn, loanirig the funds
received from Fannie Mae to private developers for the purpose of constructing housing projects. As security for
repayment of the borrowing, the County will pledge loan repayments from the private developers, non-tax revenues
and provide collateral in the form of cash or a letter of credit equal to 25% of the principal amount of the borrowing.
Borrowing must be repaid in full within three to five years with periodic principal and interest payments to be made
during the term of the borrowing. The County has not received nor loaned any of this funding through the date of this
audit.
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At December 31, 2004, the bonded debt service requirements of the Component Unit are as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Component Unit
Due In Principal Interest
B T T 6,270 9,118
2010-2014................ 38,405 38,852
2015-2019. 0.1ttt ee e s et e 49,320 28,470
0 e B 37,475 17,822
2025-2020.......cccreiieeee ettt enens - 49,325 6,786
ptelein e b R 6,335
E Lo e e 210,850 § 138,789
Unamortized difference between reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of
previously defeased debt.............ooovoveveeoneeeeeeeeeeeoe (7,092)
Unamortized L ] e e {1,728)
Present value of net minimum payments.............ooooovooeoooooooossee $ 202,030

Component Unit Swap Agreement: The Component Unit entered into various interest rate swap
agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $142 million. The Hospital pays a rate equal to the Bond
Market Association Municipal Index (the BMA SWAP Index), an index of seven-day high-grade tax-exempt variable
rate demand obligations or a fixed rate of 1.5% or 3.5%. In return, the Hospital receives a fixed rate of 5.4% or a rate
based on the BMA SWAP Index or 75% of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The interest rate swap
arrangement with an effective date of March 2003 and a notional amount of $30.5 million includes an option whereby
the counterparty can terminate the transaction. The net interest savings for 2004 was $1.5 million and is included as
a reduction to interest expense. At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the swap agreements based on current
settlement prices is $1.4 million due from the counterparty and is included in other assets. The decrease of $2.1
million in the fair value of the net swap assets during 2004 is recorded as unrestricted investment earnings in the
statement of activities. Only the net difference is exchanged with the counterparty and the notional amount in not

exchanged.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term general obligation bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from
the Debt Service fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by
these funds. General obligation bonds are secured by the County's ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax
within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax
levy; however, each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The
revenue bonds are secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$88.1 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate. Balances for compensated absences are
kept at various department levels, therefore, the data is only combined annually for reporting purposes. Since data
for increases and decreases in compensated absences is not available, amounts are estimated based on sample
data.
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Payments for compensated absences are made from the following major funds: The General fund, Human
Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major funds:
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, Community Development and Other.

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $24.4 million
liability recorded in the statement of net assets (Governmental Activities) at December 31, 2004 was based were as

follows:
Amount
Govemnmental Activities Hours {in 000's)
e e = 27,143 § 526
Vacation.......ccvveniiieneciisisiennnn, 1,146,019 22212
Overtime............... 86,494 1,677
Tl s aaanarssra e 1,259,656 $ 24415

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $.4 million liability
recorded in the statement of net assets (Business-type Activities) at December 31, 2004 was based were as follows:

Amount

Business-type Activities Hours {in 000's)
b= 1575 {131 OO 19,727 365
OVEBIIME. ...t ettt 1,417 26
o - | 21668 § 401

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001,
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulate
Note G) for certain employees close to
Program (ERIP) was approved for parti
County Commissioners. Eligible employ
30, 2002, 1,127 employees had accept
In addition, the County Board of Mental
eligible CBMR employees in OPERS and STRS.
employees participation before 2002.
annual basis for STRS. The activity rel
to $1.2 million. This cost and the rela
as follows:

the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
d service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under OPERS (see

retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
cipating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
ees had until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of June
ed the program resulting in a total cost of $101.3 million payable to OPERS.
Retardation (CBM

R) adopted a plan in 1999 which allows for participation by

Payments for purchased credit were paid in full prior to an

In 2002, CBMR chose to make payments on a quarterly basis for OPERS and
ated to the CBMR ERIP is included with the
ted obligation allocated to the County’s fund

governmental activities amounting
s and Governmental Activities are

(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental ACHVItIES.............oveeeeeeereoos 3 86,458
Internal SErVICe FUNDS................oveeerieeeeee oo 13,556
Business-type ACHVILIES..............ceweuvveniieeeenseeriesoeeeeeooeoeoooeoee oo 2,496
< S $ 102,510

Payments for special termination benefits are ma

Human Services, County Board of Mental Retardatio

funds: Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, and Other.
Payments are made to OPERS in quarterly

following summarizes the future

employees who had elected to participate in the plan

de from the following major funds: The General fund,

n, Health and Community Services and the following non-major

installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The

payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the

at December 31, 2004:
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Governmental Business-type
Year Activities Aclivities
200B........cooceecreeecerreerineenesssessssssssss s sess s o eesesee et sseeesese s eeesseeesses st ee s 18,274 467
T s S A ibasseemm s ope e e ebeseeee e e r 322 A AR ER RS 2,568 88
Total Termination Benefit Payments........ 44,135 1,147
Amount Representing Interest............. (3,641) {87)
[ A1 (61 S SO . _ 40,494 $ 1,050

Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2004 is $24.7 million. The remaining proceeds
from the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

The County issued $74 million of General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds dated April 21, 2005 to
advance refund a portion of the County’s $35.1 million General Obligation (limited tax) Various Purpose Improvement
Bonds, Series 1995, and advance refund a portion of the County’s $96.6 million General Obligation (limited tax)
Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds of the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance
refund $13.3 million of the Series 1995 bonds that are callable in November 2005 and $60.1 million of the Series
2000 bonds that are callable in December 2011. The non-callable portion of the refunded bonds, which total $26.8
million, remained outstanding at the time the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were issued. The County advance
refunded the bonds to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments

on the old and new debt) of $3.1 million.

Current Refunding of Revenue Bonds: In February 2004, the outstanding portion of the $40 million variable
rate issue for the Taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds Series 2004B (Gateway Arena Project) was
refunded and replaced with refunding bonds. The original issue was split into two series, a $10.75 million Series
2004A fixed rate bond and a $19.2 million Series 2004B variable rate bond. The decision to fix only a portion of the
refunded issue was made to provide some diversity to the County's debt portfolio. Leaving a large portion of the
issue with a variable rate enabled the county to potentially realize increased interest savings as long-term rates
continue to exhibit historically low trends. The Series 2004B variable rate bonds will bear interest initially at the rate
determined under the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Underwriters and thereafter at the
weekly rate determined by the Remarketing Agent for each weeKly interest period.

The outstanding portion of the Brownfield Economic Development Revenue Bonds was refunded in
February 2004 as part of the County's debt refinancing strategy. The original issue was refunded and replaced with a
$12.88 million Series 2004C issue. The average weighted rate of the new Brownfield Refunding issue is expected to
be 4.57% over the remaining life of the bonds. Refunding at the lower rate will result in a 30% savings in interest
costs related to this issue,

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
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scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($7.1 million at
December 31, 2004) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Effective September 1, 1999, the County issued $57 million of Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 1999 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 1999 Bonds are
being used to finance the construction of a 150-bed long-term care facility and acquire, construct, renovate, equip
and improve operating rooms and other hospital facilities.

Effective March 13, 2003, the County issued $30.5 million of Hospital Improvement Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2003 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series
2003 Bonds are being used to pay costs of constructing and equipping an administrative building and the Critical
Care Pavilion. The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by
the Remarketing Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until
2033. The rate at December 31, 2004 was 2.04%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (Letter of Credit) issued by a local bank that expires on March 22, 2008. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2004, the County had approximately 81 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2004, there were 40 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month fo ten years. Total rental payments for 2004 amounted to $5.1 million,
of which $.9 million was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2005 through 2009 are
$8.8 million of which $2.9 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 will be $3.1 million, $2.6 million, $1.6 million $1.1 million, and $.4 million
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2020. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
perieds ranging from one to five years. Rent expense totaled $1.5 million in 2004. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2004 are as follows: 2005 - $1.1 million; 2006 -
$1 million; 2007 - $1 million; 2008 - $1 million; 2009 - $.9 million; 2010-2014 - $3.7 million; 2015-2019 - $2 million;
2020 - $.1 million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $32.9 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of bonds of two issues, the original outstanding
amount of which was $38.4 million of Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds and $31 million of Stadium Revenue
Bonds. As of December 31, 2004, the outstanding balance on these Gateway bond guarantees, including future
interest payments, was $6.7 million on the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (payable through September 1,
2005), and $33.6 million on the Stadium Revenue Bonds payable through September 15, 2014). The County has not
been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds. In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the
Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004, Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.
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As of December 31, 2004, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were approximately $274 million, $2.1 billion and $235.3 million,
respectively.

NOTE G - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits

Primary Government

OPERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees under three separate retirement plans
administered by the OPERS. The plans are the Traditional Pension Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; the Member-Directed Plan — a defined contribution pension plan; and the Combined Plan — a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan. OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and post-retirement healthcare benefits, to the
Traditional and Combined Plan members however, healthcare benefits are not statutorily guaranteed. Participants in
the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefits to the OPERS Board of Trustees. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement
System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-2085.

OPERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement
employees. In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the OPERS law enforcement program into two separate
divisions with separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification
which consists of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members
of the law enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to
contribute 9%. The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is
16.7%. The total employer contributions from the County to OPERS (excluding amounts paid in 2004, 2003 and
2002 for ERIP — See Note F) for the years 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $49 million, $34.4 million, and $47.9 million ,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. In 2003, OPERS offered to change its billing cycle
from quarterly to monthly in exchange for a deferral of the 2™ quarter of 2003 employer contributions. The County
agreed to participate and deferred paying its April 2003, May 2003 and June 2003 employer charges until December
2004, December 2005 and December 20086, respectively. The deferral amounts to $3.4 million for April 2003, $5.2
million for May 2003 and $3.4 million for June 2003.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH OPERS: In addition to the pension benefits described
previously, OPERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years
of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also
available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer's contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health
care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement
health care for both 2004 and 2003 was 4% and 5%, respectively, of covered payroll. During 2004 and 2003, $14.4
million and $12.6 million, respectively, of the County's total contribution to OPERS was used for postretirement
benefits. At December 31, 2004, the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for
OPEB under OPERS for any retirees, terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions based on the latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
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Assets Valuation Method: All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial valuation purposes, a
smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of
unrealized market appreciation or depreciation on investment assets.

Investment Retum: The investment return assumption for 2003 was 8%.

Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4% base increase, were assumed to range from
5% t0 6.3%.

Heaith Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase at the projected wage inflation rate plus an
additional factor ranging from 1% to 6% for the next 8 years. In subsequent years (9 and beyond) health
care costs were assumed to increase at 4% (the projected wage inflation rate).

On September 9, 2004 the OPERS Retirement Board adopted a Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP)
with an effective date of January 1, 2007. The HCPP restructures OPERS' health care coverage to improve the
financial solvency of the fund in response to skyrocketing health care costs.

Under the HCPP, retirees eligible for heath care coverage will receive a graded monthly allocation based on
their years of services at retirement. The Plan incorporates a cafeteria approach, offering a broad range of health
care options that allow benefit recipients to use their monthly allocation to purchase health care coverage customized
to meet their individuals needs. If the monthly allocation exceeds the cost of the options selected, the excess is
deposited into a Retiree Medical Account that can be used to fund future health care expenses.

At December 31, 2004, there were 369,885 active participants contributing to the plan. The County’s
actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2003 equaled the actual amount contributed to OPERS by the County. In
addition, at December 31, 2003, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets available for OPEB approximated $10.5
billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based on the actuarial method
used, were $26.9 billion and $16.4 billion, respectively.

STRS OHIO PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation
(CBMR) participate in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement plan. Employee benefits are available under three separate retirement plans
administered by STRS Ohio. The plans are the defined benefit plan, the defined contribution plan and a combined
plan, which allows member contributions to be allocated by members and employer contributions to be used to fund a
defined benefit payment. STRS Ohio provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefits to the STRS Ohio Board of Trustees. STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System
of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS OHIO FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees were required to contribute 10% of covered payroll. The employer contribution
rate is 14% of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to
STRS Ohio for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $ 1.8 million, $1.9 million, and $2 million and, respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS Ohio also provides OPEB to plan members. The qualifications required to receive benefits
replicate OPERS. STRS Ohio has established a Health Care Stabilization Fund to accumulate monies for OPEB.
The portion of the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care Stabilization Fund was 1% of covered
payroll. The County's contributions for OPEB for the years 2004 and 2003 were $.1 million and $.1 million,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Stabilization Fund was $3.1 billion on June 30, 2004 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2004, the net health care costs paid by STRS Ohio were $268.7 million and
there were 111,853 eligible recipients.
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Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through OPERS in the same manner as
employees of the County's primary government. The Hospital's total contributions to OPERS for the years 2004,
2003 and 2002 were $38 million, $36.4 million and $34.6 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year. The portion of the Hospital's total contribution to OPERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years
2004 and 2003 was $11 million and $13.4 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2004, the Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage and Communications funds
had net assets deficits of $3.9 million, $.1 million and $.3 million, respectively. The Central Custodial Services,
Maintenance Garage and Communications funds are Internal Service funds. The deficits will be eliminated through
adjustment of the related fee schedules and subsidies as necessary.

NOTE I - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of the General fund's equity that
includes certificates of deposit that support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the
unspent proceeds of the County’'s Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2004, the balance
in this account was $27.4 million of which $20 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit
and $7.4 million represents the fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2004, $19.1 million has
been reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2004, $19 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgments against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2004, $2 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2004, $4.3 million
has been designated for future Internal Service funds' subsidies.
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NOTE J - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County, The County's management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County's combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.

Self-Insurance: The County has designated $2 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant to
Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies. Settled
claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past
three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2004 and estimates for
unsettled claims at December 31, 2004, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2004. The County is self-insured with respect to its prescription
drug plan. At December 31, 2004 the County's liability for claims was immaterial. Since 1992, the County has
maintained an Internal Service fund for its self-insured workers' compensation benefits administered through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers'
compensation benefits. The County uses a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation
benefits. These charges are contributed into the Self-Funded Workers' Compensation fund and are based on
estimates needed to pay current claims and establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the
estimated claims payable recorded in the Self-Funded Workers' Compensation fund during the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 were;

(Amounts in 000's)
Estimated Claims Payable 2004 2003
Estimated claims payable beginning of year............oocovoovoo $ 18,766 $ 17,654
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates ................. 1,292 4,176
Less: Claim payments.........c....ooeeeeeeeoeeeee et re e 2,795 3.064
Estimated claims payable end of year.............cooceeeoveeevevennn. $ 17,263 $18.766

Component Unit

Self-Insurance:  The Hospital is self-insured for professional and patient care third party liability and
workers’ compensation benefits. For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants
have been retained to determine funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been
placed in an irrevocable, self-insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.
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Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(Amounts in 000's)
Estimated Claims Payable 2004 2003
Estimated claims payable beginning of year...............cocoeovvvv.... $41,735 $ 36,667
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .................. 18,059 13,419
Less: Claim payments......c.ovuiceciceeeee oo 14,020 8.351
Estimated claims payable end of Year ...........c.oovoveveoveeeoenn $ 45,774 $41,735
Due Within 0ne Year............c.c.cceececeeieeeceeeeesee oo $ 21,925 $ 19,954

NOTE K - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2004, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2005 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GENEFAITUNT v i s i, $ 27,204
Human Services fund .............ooooeeeoeuieeeeoeeeeeee 27,682
County Board of Mental Retardation fund......................... 12,366
Health and Community Services fund..............ovvvevveeen.. 30,796
Other Governmental funds ............coecevvevveveeeieioee 92,151
Sanitary Engineer fund.............ccocoovveeeveeeennn. R, 1,017
Other Enterprise fUNGS........ooeeveeeeee oo 780
Internal Service funds..........ccocoeeveeeeeee e 10,120
TOLAL ..t et $202,116

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,
2004, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fuNd........c...ooveiciiieee e e e $ 3,034
Human Services fund ..........co.oeeoveeiveeeee oo 3,682
County Board of Mental Retardation fund......................... 3,058
Health and Community Services fund............ooovvvvoveevvan, 8,525
Other Governmental funds ...........cc.oovoeeerveeeeeeeeeeesn 7,692
Sanitary Engineer fund..........cc..vcoveeuiiceinesnnerieesrne e, 74
Other Enterprise funds.............coccereerierieee e eees e 379
Internal Service fUNAS..........ooeeoeeeeveeeeeeeeeeoeoee 1,168
B = e e $ 27,612
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NOTE L - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2004 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000's)
FSER. DRODBNI . covsvnosimenssammss st vies e et $ 26,839,357
Personal tangible property.............cccocoveveerveeinnn.. 2,508,313
Tangible public utility property ...........coocvevvvven 957,362
Total assessed value .........ccc.cevieeiicecccireeniirennnns $ 30305032

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.64 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 12.07 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection
Purpose Rate(1) Collection(2) Year
Agricultural/ Commercial/
Residential Industrial

Debt Service .....ccoovveveeee e $ 27 $ 27 5 27 2013

Mental retardation...........cccoceueenn..... 3.90 3.16 3.40 2005

Health and human services®) ............. 3.00 1.65 2.13 2004

Health and welfare ............ccoceeoceennn... 4.90 4.46 4.79 2008

Total voted millage..........cccccoevevuvnnnn... $ 12.07 $ 954 $ 1059

(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation,

(2) Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

(3) A three year renewal levy was approved March 2004 to be collected in 2005 through 2007.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2003. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 23% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Public utility real and
tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
on assessed values determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date.

The County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County
including the County. Taxes are payable semi-an nually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to
January and July. Unpaid taxes become delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure
proceedings may be initiated by the County Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.
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Property taxes receivable represent outstanding current and delinquent taxes which are measurable as of
December 31. Property taxes receivable are levied to finance operations of the following year and, therefore, are
also recorded as deferred revenue. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2004

Governmental Funds (Amounts in 000's)
L $ 21,146
Health and Human Services Levies...........coooveeoeevonn, 170,467
County Board of Mental Retardation...................oovivn... 86,420
Health and Community Services...............coooovovovoioi 13,399
Other Governmental .............coooveeimeee oo 23,740
Total property tax revenues.................cocovevvevvereeennn. $ 315172

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2004 for Cuyahoga County was $32 million.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for discounted cash payments that approximates
the penalty and interest on the receivable. Some older delinquencies are sold at a deeper discount. In connection
with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose on the related properties, as well as
charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments received by the County were
credited to the County's Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various taxing districts within the County
(including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been collected directly from the
taxpayers.
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NOTE M - Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2004 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:;
State Public Defender reimbursement...................__ 3 4,781
State property tax reimbursement............................. 3,514
T U b 1,864
Total Gorpral B st s se oo 10,159
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ...... 20,642
U.S. Department of Justice.............coooooreoror 5,839
U.S. Department of Labor...............coocoomrerroo 51
U.S. Department of Education ................................... 1,340
U.S. Department of Homeland Security ......o.oeeveee, 3,818
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services............... 6,629
Federal and State Mental Health and Retardation .......... . 184,242
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services............ooeeuvivecceeeeee 26,352
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... 320,336
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 3,942
Ohio Department of Transportation...............cceoovvuiivirinnn 577
Ohio Department of Youth Services............................ 5,511
State property tax reimbursement......................_.. 23,448
Ot 8,663
Total Special Revenue funds..........ooccoooooer 611,390
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement..............oo............___ 3.855
Capital Projects fund:
Ohio Department of Transportation ...............ooovooii 16,200
L O 4,144
Total Capital Projects fund...............coooommmooo 20,344
Total Other Intergovernmental............................ $ 645748

NOTE N - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which are
classified as transfers. Transfers are interfund transactions that do not represent loans, reimbursements or quasi-
external transactions. Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect

general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations;
to provide additional resources for current operations or debt service; reclassification or prior year distributed monies,
to segregate money for anticipated capital projects; and to return money to the fund from which it was originally
provided once a project is completed

Transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as nanoperating
revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2004:

{Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer To
Healthand County
Human  Board of Health and Other Other  Intemal
Human Services Mental Community Governmental Sanitary Enterprise Service
Transfer From General Services Levies Retardation Services Funds Engineer  Funds  Funds Total
Transfers:
Major Governmental Funds:
GeneralFund .......... $ $12238 s$70 $ $ 20,709 $ 25376 $ 999 § 2201 $455 3 63,048
Human Services .. 210 210
Health and Human Serv 34,912 76,497 111,409
Health and Community Services 325 956 3,318 4,599
Cther Governmental Funds ....... 282 27 551 512 5,266 64 6,702
Other Enterprise Funds.......... 3s9 389
Internal Services Funds .............co.co..n, - s — 2,039 S — 2,039
Total Transfers ... vveosnsnsnnn, 3607 $48133 $70 $851 $97.718 $ 37508 3 209 $ 2201 $519 $ 188,396

NOTE O - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a not-for-profit corporation legally separate from any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2004, the County has $98 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note F).

In February 2004, the County refinanced the 1992 variable rate Gateway Economic Development Bonds
(See Note F). In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $193.8 million at December 31, 2004,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2004, Gateway repaid the County over $3.8 million and the remaining
amount is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note F for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

During 2004, Gateway completed negotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of the Cleveland
Indians and the Cleveland Cavaliers. The new agreements free the organization from covering minor repairs and
routine maintenance. Gateway's $4.9 million annual expenses will be divided by the teams. Gateway agreed to give
up $1 million annually in naming rights from the Indians until 2016. The Cavaliers will no longer hold Gateway
responsible for $9.5 million of capital repairs which the Cavaliers paid and offset against previous rent payments.
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Although the County believes that the revenue sources that secure the repayment of the revenue bonds the
County has guaranteed will be adequate to provide for the future debt service requirements under the bonds, if
Gateway was to become insolvent, the impact on the County’s future financial condition and operations cannot
presently be determined because of uncertainties regarding the amount of Gateway's future cash needs and the
extent (if any) of the County’s funding of such needs.

NOTE P - Loans

67



CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:

Food Distribution

Total

National School Lunch Program

National School Lunch Program

National School Lunch Program

Total Child Nutrition Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
Total
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
Total
Total Special Education Cluster

CCBMR Title V Innovative Education
Total

OFFICE FOR REHABILITATIVE SERVICES

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation
Services Commission:
Rehabilitation Services - Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States
Rehabilitation Services - Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States

Total

OFFICE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR ELEMENTARY EDUCATION

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Drug Free Schools

Total U.S. Department of Education

Federal
CFDA
Number

10.550

10.555
10,555
10.555

84.027
84.027

84.173

84.173
84.173

84.298

84.126
84.126

84.186

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

N/A
IRN66563

IRN66563
IRN66597

0665636B-SF-04
0665636B-SF-05

066563PG-S1-2003P
066563PG-51-2004
066563PG-S1-2005

066563-C2-51-2004

Title I
Title I

None

Grant
Expenditures

5 8070
8,070

122,060
159,358
149,645
431,063

439,133

243,380
287,726
531,106
49,857
26,781
61,989
138,627
669,733

2,912
672,645

4,621
4,905
9,526

360,000

1,042,171

(Continued)

68



CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Development:
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Total

Ethanol Tank Project-East 18th St. Building

Total U.S. Department of Energy

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Programs:
EPA Brownfield's Fund

Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
Brownfield's Revolving Loan Fund

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Programs:
Project Tapestry

Ryan White HIV / AIDS Grantee / Admin
Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project 01/02
HIV Emergency Relief P.C. Support 03/04
HIV Emergency Relief P.C. Support 04/05
Total

Girls Empowered
Strengthening Communities-Youth Project
Comprehensive Care Juvenile Justice 2003
Public Defender SCY Grant

Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Health:
HIV Emergency/Planning Support Council

Federal
CFDA
Number

81.042
81.042
81.042

81.119

66.817

66.818

93.104

93.914
93.914
93.914
93.914

93.230
93.230
93.230
93.230

93.917

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

D-04-109
H-02-109
D-03-109

N/A

EPA-500-F-03-078

BP-98574401-2

1-U79-SM56055-01

SH89HAQ0045-07
2HB9HAO00045-06
SH89HA00045-08
2H89HA00045-09

1 H79 TI13505-01
6-U79-TI-13322-01-1
6-U79-TI-13322-01-1

5-U79-TI-13322-02

18-1-002-1BV-04

Grant
Expenditures

246,475
(11)
91,131

337,595

29,993

367,588

2,693

30,801

33,494

439,286

286,226
36,894
1,293,876
2,051,594

3,668,590

665,272
131,356
584,093
4,609
1,385,330

—_— e

18,566

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol
and Addiction Services:
Ohio Second Chance
Ohio Second Chance
Ohio Second Chance
Total

SAMHSA Adult Treatment Drug Court Project
Adult Drug Court
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Development:
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcoho!
and Drug Addiction Services:
Health Block Grant
UMADOP
Women's 15%
Yment
TASC
Community Prevention
Higher Education
Project Safe
Drug Free Community Coalition
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '04
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime FY '05
Total
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Health
Services:
Community Mental Health Services Block Grant
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Total

Federal
CFDA
Number

93.230
93.230
93.230

93.243
93.243

93.568
93.568
93.568

93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959
93.959

93.778

93.958
93.667
93,778

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

99-06771-00-0OSCP-T-02-0269
99-06771-00-OSCP-T-04-0328
99-06771-00-OSCP-T-04-0455

TI 14109
1 H79 TI14109-01

H-99-109
I1-04-109
H-03-109

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
18-02962-00-TASC-T-04-9196
18-02962-00-TASC-T-05-9196

N/A

MHI12
MH12
N/A

Grant
Expenditures

78,040
165,172
183,384

426,596

9,276
135,836

145,112

2,934
550,155
194,983

748,072

6,343,280
446,757
1,533,259
77,002
100,000
135,000
12,500
114,262
84,892
405,948

364,994

9,617,894

6,381,543
15,999,437

774,918
1,169,469

48,098,670
50,043,057

(Continued)
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Federal
CFDA Pass-Through Grant
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor Number Expenditures
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Developmental Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX 93.667 MR-18-01 1,139,946
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX 93.778 N/A 24,700,264
Medicaid Assistance Program - Waiver Administration 93.778 N/A 375,716
Total 25,075,980
Total 26,215,926
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 99,089,972
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Public Safety:
Emergency Management 97.042 34-6000.817 150,420

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Emergency Management Assistance:

Homeland Security Grant Part [ 97.004 2003-TE-TX-0199 304,226
Homeland Security Grant Part 11 97.004 2003-MUP-30015 1,506,473
Homeland Security Grant Part 11 97.004 2003-MU-T3-0015 24,022
Homeland Security Equipment Fund 97.004 2003-TE-TX-0199 106,212
Homeland Security Equipment Fund 97.004 2004-TE-TX-0199 832
Domestic Preparedness Program-County Radio Inst 97.004 2001-TE-CX-0016 3,550
Domestic Preparedness Program-Equipment Purchase 97.004 2002-TE-CX-0049 102,814
Domestic Preparedness Program-First Respond 97.004 2002-TE-CX-0106 349,307
Domestic Preparedness Program-Exercise Program 97.004 2002-TE-CX-0106 10,712
State Homeland Security Program 97.004 2004-GE-T4-0025 14,724

Total 2,422,872
FEMA FY02 Planning Grant 83.562 EMC-2003-GR-7026 22,999
Community Emergency Response Team Grant 97.054 EMC-2003-GR-7066 37,374
Urban Area Security Initiative (URSI) 97.008 2003-EU-T3-0012 193,119

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2,826,784
(Continued)
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Federal
CFDA Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor Number
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:
CDBG - Entitlement 14.218 N/A
Total CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD - Administered)
Small Cities Cluster
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 N/A
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 N/A
Shelter Plus Care Program 14.238 N/A
CDBG Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 N/A
HUD Section 108 14.246 N/A
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 N/A
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR
Passed Through the Ohio & Erie Canal Association:
CPC-Cuyahoga Valley Initiative 15.AAA N/A
Total U.S. Department of Interior
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY
PREVENTION - JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY
PREVENTION - ALLOCATION TO THE STATES
Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Female Aftercare Project 2003 16.523 02-JB-011-A118
Female Aftercare Project 2004 16.523 03-JB-011-A118
Community Youth Sanction Program 16.523 03-JB-011-A124
JAIBG Administration II 16.523 2004-JB-RPU-0324
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant - 2003 16.523 2002-JB-RPU-0700
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant - 2004 16,523 2002-JB-ADM-0324
Total
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention:
JUV Justice & Delinquency Title 11 16.540 2002-JJ-RPU-0795
JIDP Block Grant FY2002 16.540 2002-JJ-RPU-0795
JIDP Block Grant FY2003 16.540 2003-1J-RPU-0795
2002 Cuyahoga JJ Administration 16.540 2002-11-ADM-0320
2003 Cuyahoga JJ Administration 16.540 2003-JJ-ADM-0320
Total
Internet Crimes 16.542 2000MCCX-K016
Total

Grant
Expenditures

2,211,770
2,211,770

122,511
2,818,288
7,593,492
6,397,235

792,110
1,274,430

21,209,836

13,500

13,500

2,760
31,142

835

10,307
346,205
531,315
922,564

83,321
51,859
155,026
1,879
5,456
297,541

117,286

1,337,391

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - DRUG CONTROL AND

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT ACT

Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Edward Byme Memorial Admin FY2002
Edward Byrme Memorial Admin FY2003

Youth Vielence Therapy FY'01

Youth Violence Therapy FY'02

Youth Violence Therapy FY'00
Community Based Prosecution - 2002
Victim Restitution Program

Victim Restitution Program

Teen & Elders Safe Together

Teen & Elders Safe Together

DYV Survivors Project 2003

Byme Computer Upgrade
Psychological Counseling
Psychological Counseling

Evidence Collection Training FY2003
Evidence Collection Training FY2004
Straight Release Overflow Unit FY2003
Straight Release Overflow Unit FY2004
FY2002 Narcotics Control Grant
FY2003 Narcotics Control Grant
Aggression Control Program 2002
Trace Evidence Study - Byrne 2003
Cognitive Education Project FY99
Proware Enhancement Grant

GRAD

Competency Research

JA-CIS-Byme

DV Tracking/Control FY2000
Juvenile Court Advocate Byrne - 2003
Juvenile Court Advocate Byrne - 2004
Pub Defender Info Systems Upgrade
Pub Defender Info Systems Upgrade

Criminal Conduct Aftercare
Youth Intervention/Prevention Network

Total

Federal
CFDA

Number

16.579
16.579

16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579

16.579
16.579

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

2002-DG-ADM-7431
2003-DG-ADM-7431

2000-DG-FO2-7429
2002-DG-C02-7429
1999-DG-F0O2-7429
2000-PP-CX-0030
2002-DG-D-B-017
2003-DG-D-B-017
2002-DG-B-B-022
2003-DG-B-B-022
2002-DG-D0O2-7426
2002-DG-GO1-5043
2002-DG-D-B-010
2003-DG-D-B-010
2002-DG-E01-B005
2003-DG-E01-B005
2002-DG-CB-006
2003-DG-CB-006
2002-DG-RPU-0727
2003-DG-RPU-0737
2001-DG-CO2-7467
2002-DG-BOR-7411
1998-DG-GO2-7400
2003-DG-G-B-040
2003-DG-G-B-038
2003-DG-G-B-035
2003-DG-F-B-026
2000-DG-F02-7469
2002-DG-D-B-0007
2003-DG-D-B-0007
2002-DG-G01-5043
2003-DG-G-B037

2002-DG-C01-B013
2003-DG-G-B-033

Grant
Expenditures

18,240
51,157
(1,195)
1,644
(406)
9,756
4,027
33,723
1,664
26,562
161
8,503
4717
4,172
216
4,799
4,432
48,242
379,102
466,681
5,714
41
23
32,550
25,294
2,536
16,004
(23)
5,014
30,382
23,365
23,976
(8,938)
15,797

1,237,932

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

VAWA Coordinated Rape Crisis Center
Violence Against Women Act

Violence Against Women Act 98
FY2003 VAWA Block Grant

FY2002 VAWA Administration
FY2003 VAWA Administration

Total
Total of 16.579 & 16.588 Passed Through Office of

Criminal Justice

Federal
CFDA

Number

16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588

16.588
16.588

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF JUSTICE

Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Training Toward Accreditation

QFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS
Passed Through the Ohio Attorney General's Office:
Felony Coordinator

OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS - OTHER

Direct Programs:
Gang Free Communities

Planning and Implementing Strategies
in Community Prosecution

Gun Violence Prosecution

Media Outreach Community Engagement
Tri-County Juvenile Gun Violence

Total

Passed Through the OQhio Department of Youth Services:
Truancy Prevention Title V

Passed Through the Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Standardizing Forensic Info 2004
Forensic Upgrades 2004

Total

RSAT Therapeutic Community 2003

RSAT Therapeutic Community 2004

RSAT Therapeutic Community 2005
Total

Violent Fugitive Task Force
Project Safe Neighborhood

Total

16.560

16.575

16.544

16.580

16.609

16.609
16.609

16.548

16.580
16.580

16.593
16.593
16.593

16.609
16.609

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

1998-WF-VAS5-8676
1996-WF-VA7-8673
1997-WF-VA7-8673
2003-WF-RPU-0738

2002-WF-ADM-8668
2003-WF-ADM-B8668

2003-PC-NFS-7807A

1997-VAGENE-060

2001-JD-FX-0002

2000-PP-CX-0030

2003-GP-CX-0033

2003-GP-CX-0010
2003-GP-CX-0147

2002-1V-TS0O-5112

2004-DG-G-B-030
2004-DG-G-B-031

2001-RS-SAT-120A
2002-RS-SAT-120A
2003-R8-SAT-120

2003-PS-PSN-315
2003-PS-PSN-310

Grant
Expenditures

22,508

(818)
2,938
314,365

12,184
16,132

367,309

1,605,241

4,880

307

138,450

47,556

198,786
63,750

101,414

363,950

, 50,492

1,882

16,500

18,382

(6)
136,982

_ 70,715

207,691

23,686

75,761

99,447

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Rehab and Corrections:

C.O.R.E Going Home

C.O.R.E BIP Project
C.O.R.E TASC Project

Total

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Direct Programs:
Technology Training Network Program
Workforce Incentive Grant

Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Youth Services:

Reed Act

Workforce Investment Act of 1998 Passed Through the Ohio

Department of Job and Family Services:
WIA Administration

WIA Adult
Special Projects

Total

WIA Administration
WIA Youth

Special Projects
Workforce Training & Development

Total

WIA Administration
WIA Dislocated Worker
WIA Rapid Response
Special Projects - LTV

Dislocated Worker-Integrated Systems Tech
Special Projects

Total

Total WIA Cluster (17.258, 17.259, 17.260)

Total U.S. Department of Labor

Federal
CFDA
Number

16.202

16.202
16.202

17.249
17.266

17.225

17.258

17.258
17.258

17.259
17.259

17.259
17.259

17.260
17.260
17.260
17.260

17.260
17.260

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

2002-RE-CX-003

04-CORE-0002
04-CORE-0001

AH-11081-01-60
WI-14194-04-60

G-04-15-0983

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
6000817

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Grant
Expenditures

184,035

13,847
9,315

207,197

4,080,984

135,545
6,256

141,801

7,798

128,574

699,826
15,983

844,383

225,183
1,225,671

27,993
104

1,478,951

159,015
865,515
1,418,216
607,782
(7.500)

19,768
3,062,796

5,386,130

5,535,729

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direet Program:
County Airport - Airport Improvement Program

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Transportation:
ODOT - Denison-Harvard Bridge #83
ODOT - Detroit - Superior Bridge Intersection
ODOT - Falls Road
ODOT - Grant Avenue
ODOT - LPA/Hilliard Boulevard
ODOT - LPA/Hillside Road
ODOT - LPA/Lee Road
ODOT - LPA/Miles Road Bridges
ODOT - LPA/Pleasant Valley Road & Bridge No.58
ODOT - LPA/Spafford Rd. Bridge
ODOT - LPA/Smith Road
ODOT - LPA/Stumph Road
ODOT - LPA/Warner Road
ODOT - LPA/Warrensville Center Road
ODOT - LPA/Wagar Road
ODOT - West 140th Street
ODOT - West 150th Street
ODOT - LPA/West 117th Street
Total Highway Planning & Construction Cluster

Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency:
Hazardous Materials Preparation Training

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Passed Through the Ohio Secretary of State:
Voter Registration Grant

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal
CFDA
Number

20.106

20.205
20.205
20,205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.703

39.011

Pass-Through
Grantor Number

3-39-0021-1201

G020428
EO33 (602)
EO35 (988)

G020471
E040 (428)

G010717
G010 (127)

G010671
G000 (382)

G020302

G020250

G020105

G020467

G020098
F973 (125)

E034351

G020315

G000015

HMEOH8016060

04-SOS-HAVA-18

Grant
Expenditures

166,300

55,107
2,144,306
1,315,595

132,494
1,427,881
416,138
225,052
241,954
3,525,521
5,867
960,770
449,635
58,685
655,326
176,663
2,428,938
432,667
1,068,996

15,721,595

9,263

15,897,158

66,619

66,619

150,602,968

(Concluded)
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

1.

3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule™) reflects the expenditures of
the primary government of Cuyahoga County, Ohio, under programs financed by the U.S. government for the
year ended December 31, 2004. The Schedule has been prepared using the cash basis of accounting. For
purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include the following:

Direct federal awards
Pass-through funds received from non-federal organizations made under
federally sponsored programs conducted by those organizations.

The information presented in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (“CFDA”) Numbers or Primary Grant Numbers are presented for those programs for which such
numbers are available.

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely presented
component unit, which expended $8,570,278 in federal awards during the year ended December 31, 2004.
These expenditures are not included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the
year ended December 31, 2004 because MetroHealth System had a separate audit performed in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

As shown in the table below, the County had loans receivable outstanding at December 31, 2004 under the
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) Entitlement and Home Investment Partnership programs.
All of the loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 pertained to federal awards received by the County, or
program income associated with these awards, and provided as loans to eligible recipients in prior years.

The loan balances detailed below were not included in federal expenditures presented in the accompanying
Schedule because the provisions of the grant agreements pertaining to such loans do not require the repayment
of the grant monies to the federal government. The loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 under federal
grant programs were as follows:

Loan Amounts
Outstanding at

Federal December 31,
Program Title CFDA No. 2004
CDBG—Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small Cities Cluster 14.218 $11,151,834
CDBG Home Investment Partnership program 14.239 7,063,355
$18215,189

SUBRECIPIENTS

Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the County. Expenditures incurred by the
subgrantees and reimbursed by the County are included in the accompanying Schedule.
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

4. MEDICAID ASSISTANCE PROGRAM—TITLE XIX

The total amount expended by the County during 2004 under the Title XIX Medicaid Assistance Program
(CFDA No. 93.778) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services $ 6,381,543
Ohio Department of Mental Health Services 48,098,670
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities 25,075,980
Total $ 79.556,193

5. TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

The total amount expended by the County during 2004 under the Title XX Social Services Block Grant
(CFDA No. 93.667) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Mental Health Services $ 1,169,469
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities 1,139,946
Total $ 2,309,415
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Deloitte.

Suite 3300

127 Public Square
Cleveland, OH 44114-1291
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1216 589 1368
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the basic financial statements of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “County”) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued our report therecon dated June 8, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to the management of the County in the accompanying Status of Prior Year Comments on
Internal Control and Legal Compliance, Summary of Other Reports and in a separate letter dated
June 8, 2005.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the
management of the County in the accompanying Status of Prior Year Comments on Internal Control
and Legal Compliance, Summary of Other Reports, and in a separate letter dated June 8, 2005.

The comments and conclusions included in this report relate solely to the County’s primary
government (as defined by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity). We understand that the comments and conclusions pertaining to the County’s
discretely presented component unit, MetroHealth System, regarding compliance and internal control
over financial reporting have been separately communicated to you.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County
Auditor, County Treasurer, management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the
Auditor of the State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
Desitt, ¢ Tonatie LLP

June 8, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “County”) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
County’s compliance based on our audit.

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely
presented component unit, which expended $8,570,278 in federal awards during the year ended
December 31, 2004. These expenditures are not included in the County’s Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards for the year ended December 31, 2004. Our audit, described below, did not/include the
operations of MetroHealth System because the component unit engaged us as auditors to perform an
audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the County’s internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements that would be material in relation to a major federal program being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County
Auditor, County Treasurer, management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the
Auditor of the State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

M.'Ire £ Tenetie LLP

June 8, 2005
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Summary of Auditors’ Results

e Type of Report Issued on the Financial Statements as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2004—
Unqualified.

e Reportable Conditions in Internal Control Disclosed by the Audit of the Financial Statements—
N/A (none reported).

e Noncompliance noted that is Material to the Financial Statements—N/A (none reported).

e Reportable Conditions in Internal Control Over Major Federal Award Programs Disclosed
by the Audit of the Financial Statements—N/A (none reported).

e Type of Report Issued on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Major Federal Award
Programs—Unqualified.

e The audit disclosed no findings which are required to be reported under Section .510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133.

e Major Federal Award Programs Identified for the Year Ended December 31, 2004:
e CFDA #93.778 Medicaid Assistance Program
e CFDA #93.914 HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants
e CFDA #14.238 Shelter Plus Care
e Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B Programs—$3,000,000.
e The County was not considered to be a Low Risk Auditee as defined under OMB Circular A-133.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements that are Required to be Reported Under Government
Auditing Standards:

None

Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards that are Required to be Reported Under
Government Auditing Standards:

None
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS

CUYAHOGA COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
PERFORMANCE AUDIT FINDINGS

During October 2002, the Auditor of the State of Ohio issued a report detailing the observations and
recommendations resulting from its performance audit of the Cuyahoga County Mental Health Board
(*CCMHB?”). The principal findings resulting from the performance audit relating to internal control and
legal compliance matters that were unresolved as of the 2002 Single Audit Report were as follows:

Development of Budgets/Tracking Expenditures

Observation—CCMHB does not develop budgets and track expenditures by division. As a result, divisions
are not held fully accountable for their share of expenditures, which could negatively impact CCMHB’s
financial condition. Additionally, CCMHB does not track and monitor actual expenditures by line item that
could be partially attributed to its current accounting system. By budgeting by division and tracking
expenditures by line item, CCMHB would appropriately control its operational finances and potentially
maximize the amount of funding provided to consumers.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action—CCMHB should develop budgets by division, and
divisions should develop their budgets by adequately planning costs for each unit within the division.
Budgets by division and unit should be monitored to ensure all areas at CCMHB are held fully accountable
for expenditures. Furthermore, CCMHB should track and monitor actual division expenditures by line item.
Doing so would allow CCMHB to adequately control expenditures, and determine how to address
expenditures that are not being effectively controlled. Implementing a new accounting system could help the
CCMHB develop and monitor budgets and actual expenditures by division and by line item.

Management’s Response—As noted by CCMHB in the prior year, CCMHB has taken proactive steps to
implement the comments rendered.

As it relates to the divisional budgets, since the authoring of the findings CCMHB has reduced its staff size
and has evaluated the cost effectiveness of divisional budgets. Prior to securing a financial management
system (FMS), CCMHB explored the use of FAMIS as a vehicle to develop divisional budgeting. Due to the
reductions in staff, the assessment rendered was that FAMIS was not the appropriate direction to accom plish
this task. CCMHB opted to ensure that the FMS secured would provide flexibility in reaching divisional
budgeting.

CCMHB was hopeful that with the development of the FY 2005 budget process the FMS would be in place
and the CCMHB could begin divisional budgeting. However, this was not possible. CCMHB secured the
FMS and anticipated full implementation of the Intuit/Fundware programming as of January 1, 2005 to
ensure that all components were in place at the onset of the FY 2006 budget cycle. The implementation time
table has been pushed back to July 1, 2005. The FMS has been designed to account for cost in a divisional
format. From this format we are developing the budget formats to implement the divisional budget format as

of July 1, 2005.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO
SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS (CONTINUED)

Forecasting Beyond One Year

Observation—CCMHB has tracked annual funding by major source; however, funding is not forecasted
beyond one year. Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) recommends that government units at
all levels forecast major funding and expenditures. The forecast should extend at least three years beyond the
budget period and should be regularly monitored and periodically updated. By developing a forecast, as well
as detailed accompanying assumptions, explanatory comments and the methodology used in deriving the
financial estimates, CCMHB will provide a more comprehensive understanding of its anticipated financial

condition.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action—CCMHB should begin forecasting its funding and
expenses beyond one year. CCMHB should develop at least a three-year financial forecast to ensure that the
budgeting process incorporates CCMHB’s future financial needs and goals. Furthermore, CCMHB should
analyze variances in forecasted to actual amounts before beginning the budget process to build on its
understanding of why variances occurred and determine how to adjust the current year forecast to account for

material variances.

Management’s Response—As noted by CCMHB in the prior year, CCMHB has taken proactive steps to
implement the comments rendered.

CCMHB began to forecast its funding and expenses beyond a single year. This process has enabled CCMHB
to determine its local funding support and the impact declines in all revenue sources and increases in
expenditures are having on its ability to meet the needs of the community.

Also, with the implementation of the new FMS as of July 1, 2005, CCMHB will be able to improve this
tracking mechanism to evaluate efficiencies of the system and provide reporting of all revenues and
expenditures flowing into and out of the system and better assess the financial picture for future years.

Internal Accounting System

Observation—CCMHB does not have an effective and technologically up-to-date internal accounting system.
As a result, CCMHB cannot easily track and monitor expenditures by line item. In addition, the lack of an
effective accounting system precludes the Finance Unit from doing many functions easily, such as preparing
financial reports and budgets, and analyzing costs. These processes need to be manually entered on various
spreadsheet reports and analyzed for information. Manual data entry could lead to errors and to information
being reported incorrectly, as well as requiring additional staff time to manually enter all of the required data.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action—CCMHB should consider purchasing a new internal
accounting system. However, prior to purchasing a new accounting system, the Finance Unit should fully
evaluate benefits and costs of various systems and ensure that the new system will allow the Finance Unit to
easily perform basic functions including tracking and monitoring expenditures by line item and by division.
Implementing a new accounting system would allow the Finance Unit to function more efficiently and
eliminate potential errors from the present system because data would not be manually transferred to
spreadsheets.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS (CONTINUED)

Management’s Response—As noted by CCMHB in the prior year, CCMHB has taken proactive steps to
implement the comments rendered.

CCMHB completed the process of selecting the vendor for the FMS. The vendor was selected and the Board
of Governors and Chief Executive Officer approved the selection in July 2004. It was anticipated that the
system would be functional as of October 2004. Due to timing of the acquisition and the vendor transferring
ownership to another company this process was delayed.

CCMHB began defining its account structure to include all components of the above two findings as well as
other internal needs that were addressed. CCMHB has completed the functional design stage of the FMS and
initial training process. Dual systems will be running the last two weeks of June 2005 with a targeted
implementation date of July 1, 2005.

In addition to the FMS system, CCMHB has upgraded its timekeeping system and also purchased an
HR/payroll component of the FMS system to improve the monitoring and tracking of payroll related matters.
The KRONOS timekeeping component is complete and CCMHB will evaluate how the payroll component of
the FMS can provide added enhancements to this process in July 2005.

CUYAHOGA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
WIA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REVIEW FINDINGS

During 2004, the Ohio Department of Job & Family Services (“ODIFS”), issued a report detailing the
observations and recommendations resulting from its financial monitoring and technical assistance visit at the
Cuyahoga County Department of Workforce Development (“CCDWD?). The significant finding resulting
from the audit relating to internal control and legal compliance matters were as follows:

Financial Reporting, 29 CFR 97.20 (b) (2)

Observation—The CCDWD did not maintain internal accounting records to support the amounts reported on
the ODJFS monthly financial report (2827) for two quarters tested. The amounts reported could not be
verified by the documentation provided. The monthly reports containing incorrect obligations were not

effectively reviewed.

Ohio Department of Job & Family Services Recommended Corrective Action—The CCDWD must verify
that reported amounts match agency accounting balances prior to submission to ensure the County accurately
reports their obligations.

Management’s Response—The CCDWD will ensure that the total obligations, including those extending
beyond a fiscal year, that are recorded in the books of account will match what is reported to ODJFS.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORTS (CONCLUDED)

Individual Training Accounts, 20 CFR 663.320 (b), WIA 134 (d) (2) (K)

Observation—The CCDWD did not maintain adequate files of the training services provided to participants.
Many files did not provide evidence of application for Pell Grants as required. There was inconsistent use of
classroom attendance sheets for Individual Training Accounts (“ITA”) clients. Gaps existed in progress
reports within the files. Certificates of completion were not consistently included in the files, and follow-up

with participants was not documented.

Ohio Department of Job & Family Services Recommended Corrective Action—The CCDWD must institute
a review procedure so all necessary information is present within participant files. Maintaining complete files
will provide a complete record and trail for tracing a participant’s status and history.

Management’s Response—The CCDWD has conducted mandated training for all employed case managers
as well as contracted staff. Part of the training curriculum related to sound file management practices, as well
as WIA policies. The result will be consistent file management practices.

Internal Controls, 29 CFR 97.20 (b)(3)

Observation—The CCDWD cash receipts system allows one person to collect the funds, prepare receipts,
make deposits, and record deposits into the accounting records. This lack of segregation of duties can lead to

instances of undetected loss of funds.

Ohio Department of Job & Family Services Recommended Corrective Action—The CCDWD must
separate the custody and recording duties of all receivables within the business unit.

Management’s Response—The CCDWD rarely receives cash. In the event cash is collected, the Business
Service Manager will collect the money and issue a receipt. Cash will then be given to CCDWD’s Fiscal
Office who will make the deposit and record the deposit.

Grant Revenue & Cash Receipts, 29 CFR 97.20 (b)(3)

Observation—The CCDWD’s present control structure does not include a cash receipts log. The lack of a
physical log of all cash and cash equivalents exposes the department to instances of undetected loss of funds.

Ohio Department of Job & Family Services Recommended Corrective Action—The CCDWD must create a
cash log completed by an individual not associated with the preparation of receipts, depositing, or entry of
deposits into the accounting system.

Management’s Response—The CCDWD has created a cash receipts log as requested. The log identifies not
only cash that was received, but also checks.
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FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 8, 2005

The Citizens of the County of Cuyahoga

We are pleased to present the 2004 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of
Cuyahoga. This report provides a full and complete disclosure of the financial position and
operations of the County for the year ended December 31, 2004. My office believes that the data
herein is accurate in all respects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a
maximum understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included.

Preparation of this report represents a renewed commitment to the prudent financial management
of Cuyahoga County. The annual report provides Cuyahoga County's elected officials and
managers with accurate and reliable financial information for making important decisions
affecting the quality and level of service provided to residents of the County.

We are proud that Cuyahoga County has received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting 20 times from the Government Finance Officers Association. Attainment
of this prestigious award is an annual goal of our office.

I thank Steven C. Letsky, Director of Accounting, and his staff for their efforts in this endeavor.
Respectfully submitted,
Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor
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FRANK RUSSO

CUYAHOGA COUNTY AUDITOR

June 8, 2005

Honorable Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

Honorable Jimmy Dimora
Honorable Tim Hagan

Honorable Peter Lawson Jones
Cuyahoga County Commissioners

Honorable James Rokakis
Cuyahoga County Treasurer

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Cuyahoga
for the year ended December 31, 2004. This report contains the financial statements and other
financial and statistical data that provide a complete and full disclosure of all material financial
aspects of the County. The responsibility for the accuracy of all data presented, its completeness
and fairness of presentation rests with the County Auditor's Office (specifically the Financial
Reporting Section), the Board of County Commissioners and the County Treasurer's Office.

This is the twenty-second consecutive year that the County has issued a Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). This report, which is prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, is indicative of the commitment by County
management to provide quality financial information to the citizens of the County and all other
interested parties.

The CAFR is organized in three sections: The Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, letters of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 2003, a list of elected officials
and an organization chart. The financial section includes the independent auditors’ report,
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial Statements, supplementary
information and various other statements and schedules pertaining to the County’s funds and
activities. The Statistical Section provides selected financial, economic and demographic
information, which may be used to indicate trends for comparative fiscal periods.

REPORTING ENTITY

The County of Cuyahoga is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. It encompasses 59
municipalities, villages and townships, of which Cleveland is the largest. The County includes 459
square miles and has an estimated population of 1,351,009 making it the 27" largest county in the
United States. The County provides general governmental services to its citizens including: Social
services including drug and alcohol abuse programs and programs for the mentally retarded, health
and community assistance related services, civil and criminal justice system services, road and
bridge maintenance and other general administrative support services. The County operates
several enterprise activities including a sewer system, an airport, a parking garage and a crime
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information system. The County also operates a hospital, which is presented in the financial
statements as a Discretely Presented Component Unit.

For financial reporting purposes, the entity consists of the primary government, organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion could
cause the County's Basic Financial Statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and
either the County's ability to impose its will over the component unit or the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Recent economic news has not been encouraging but 2004 did see some positive developments.
Hotels experienced a decrease in vacancy rate. The overall hotel occupancy rate for Greater
Cleveland was 57.1% in 2004 versus 54.6% in 2003. The occupancy rate increased for the second
year in a row and room rates rose for the first time since 2000. The vacancy rate for office and
industrial real estate decreased in 2004. The downtown vacancy rate dropped from 21.9% to
20.6%. It appears as if the steep rise in vacancy rates that started in 2000 with the economic
downturn has peaked. However, some of the Class A office towers, where vacancies averaged
18%, are looking for tenants. Vacancy rates at retail establishments are at 7.8%, which is the lowest
level in three years and compares favorably to the 8.4% vacancy rate at the beginning of 2004.
Vacancy rates for retail establishments peaked at 10% in 2003.

Despite the economic downturn, MBNA Corp., the credit card company, constructed a 190,000
square foot building at its current complex. The building is four stories and houses 900 employees.
Its former three building complex that housed 2,200 people was nearing capacity. It is estimated the
building cost $25 million. Zoning variances, necessary to allow the project to proceed, were
approved in March 2003 and construction was completed in 2004.

The Rock and Roll Hall of Fame and Museum, which opened in 1995, is proposing a new library and
archives as the centerpiece of an expansion which would connect the Rock Hall to the Great Lakes
Science Center. The 40,000 square foot expansion would include public spaces, classrooms, a
restaurant and a multipurpose area. The original area slated to house a library was taken over by
the special events, marketing and accounting departments. Groundbreaking dates have not been
determined, nor have costs. The New York based Rock and Roll Hall of Fame Foundation, which
oversees the museum in conjunction with the Cleveland Board, has raised unspecified funds for the
library and archives. Additional funding is expected to be both private and public with the hall likely
to seek state monies. The goal is to not incur additional debt. In order to alleviate pressure on the
operating budget, the Cleveland-Cuyahoga County Port Authority refinanced the remainder of $39
million in bonds issued in 1993 which helped pay for the construction of the museum. The
refinancing freed up at least $224,000 per year. Proceeds from a 1.5% county bed tax, corporate
sponsorships and a 3% admission surcharge were pledged to repay the original bonds. If the
admission surcharge failed to generate $224,000 toward repayment of the bonds, the museum was
responsible for making up the difference from its operating fund. The bed tax is currently generating
enough money to cover the annual debt service. Also, corporate sponsorship was not heavily
pursued because proceeds would be earmarked for the bond reserve fund. The Rock Hall is trying
to change its image to become more of a destination and less of a symbol. One change being
proposed is for the enshrinement to be held at the Rock Hall at least every 5 years. The Rock Hall is
set to open a new home away from home facility in Phoenix, Arizona in 2006. The city will provide
another location for traveling exhibits. The “on tour” site will occupy a two level 14,000 square foot
building in downtown Phoenix. The Rock Hall's partners in Phoenix are paying the $1.5 to $2 million
cost. Construction is set to begin July 1. The Rock Hall is also pursuing an “on tour” outlet in
Memphis, Tennessee.
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The Civic Vision 2000 and Beyond report, a comprehensive plan that will serve as a blueprint for
transforming downtown Cleveland in the 21%' century, was completed in 1998. The Steering
Committee, consisting of over 20 community leaders, met over 15 months starting in December
1996. The report calls for spending upwards of $2.7 billion in public and private funds over 10 years
on 5 initiatives of major importance: (1) Dramatically change the lakefront; (2) Develop a new and
competitive downtown convention center; (3) Restore and beautify Euclid Avenue; (4) Double the
number of downtown residents; and (5) Develop attractive and user-friendly systems of connectivity.
In addition, the Steering Committee recommended supporting the Greater Cleveland Growth
Association (now the Greater Cleveland Partnership) task force review of Northeast Ohio’s required
air service needs, improving the Cleveland public schools and building inter-relationships with
adjoining neighborhoods. Most of the Euclid Avenue projects are under construction. Civic Vision’s
goal is 3,000 new housing units with 1,200 having already been added and 7,000 new downtown
hotel rooms with 617 currently in place. The Old Arcade linking Euclid and Superior avenues
reopened May 2001 with a new Hyatt Hotel and retail stores. One proposal being considered for the
lakefront is the shifting of the shoreway, a main freeway connecting downtown with the east and
west side of the County, which runs along Lake Erie. Parts of the shoreway would become a tree-
lined boulevard and an eight mile lakefront bike path would be created. It is felt this proposal would
facilitate development along the lakeshore. Highlights of such a project would include 500 acres of
new public space, 5 new marinas, 7,400 new housing units, 2.5 million square feet of office space,
1.4 million square feet of new commercial space and 9.2 miles of lakefront. The project could cost
over $1 billion and the funding source has not been identified.

A new Convention Facilities Authority (CFA) was appointed by the Board of County Commissioners
(4 members), the Mayor of the city of Cleveland (4 members) and the Cuyahoga County Mayors and
Managers Association (3 members). The authority will determine location, size, financing and
operations of a new convention center. The authority must decide whether to rebuild the existing
facility or construct a new one. There are two sites under consideration. A state of the art
convention center could cost over $450 million. Funding will also have to be addressed.

The expansion of Cleveland Hopkins International Airport has been debated and disputed for over
10 years. The cities of Cleveland and Brook Park have disagreed on the direction of the expansion
and whether the 1-X Center, an exposition hall, needs to be demolished in order to accommodate
future airport runway expansion. In 1999, the city of Cleveland paid $66.5 million for the I-X Center
and Brook Park filed suit in Probate Court to acquire the I-X Center by eminent domain. The cities
of Cleveland and Brook Park ended their long dispute concerning the Airport and the I-X Center in
February 2001. Under the settlement, the city of Cleveland received the I-X Center and 90 acres of
neighboring land. The I-X Center will continue to remain open for trade shows until a third runway is
needed in 15 years. The city of Brook Park received the NASA Glenn Research Center and two
tracts of land, one 11 acres and the other 34 acres and will receive one-half of the revenues of the
Emerald Corporate Park, a Cleveland industrial park north of the airport. Cleveland will purchase up
to 300 homes in Brook Park to make way for the new runway. While the dispute continued, a
second runway was planned with a third to follow later. Cleveland received the necessary permits to
begin the second runway in 2001 and it was completed in 2002 at a cost of $50 million. In 2004,
Cleveland completed expansion of the new runway extending it 2,000 feet making it 9,000 feet in
total. The expanded runway will allow Hopkins to handle more takeoffs and landings in a shorter
amount of time. The new runway expansion is the first major airfield expansion at Hopkins in more
than 50 years. The cost of $450 million was funded by bonds, which will be repaid by airport
revenue and secured grants from the Federal Aviation Administration. Hopkins can now
accommodate 525,000 takeoffs and landings a year instead of the previous 368,000.

Tyco International Ltd. (formerly Scott Technologies Inc. and Figgie International Incorporated)
agreed in 1989 to relocate its headquarters from Richmond, Virginia to an area known as Chagrin
Highlands on land owned by the city of Cleveland. The development on 650 acres will include a 3.5
million square foot office complex and 250,000 square feet of retail space as well as 1,000 hotel
rooms. Developers expect six hotels with one 300 room full service inn and the rest in the 80 to 120
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room range to be constructed. The project is expected to take 15 to 20 years to complete and will
provide 16,000 to 20,000 permanent jobs when completed, generating $44 million yearly in income
taxes among five communities and $8 million in income taxes from construction jobs over the project
life. Ground was broken in June 1998 on the $14 million four story 112,000 square foot office
building and was completed in Fall 1999. Tyco occupies 15,000 square feet of the multi-tenant
building which is 83% leased. University Hospitals Health System constructed a 100,000 square
foot, four story technology advanced outpatient specialty medical center in the Chagrin Highlands at
an estimated cost of $29.2 million which opened in February 2001. The project also includes a four
story 114,000 square foot office building, an Extended Stay America hotel and a restaurant. A
complex of 3 restaurants with a total of 810 seats has been proposed for the project. A 300 unit
Marriott hotel is being constructed in the Chagrin Highlands office and mixed-use development.
Construction began during 2004 and will be completed by summer 2005. The full service hotel will
include 14,000 square feet of meeting space, a 7,500 square foot ballroom that will accommodate
700 people and boardrooms.

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (RTA) proposed a scaled down version of an
earlier rejected transportation system now called the Euclid Corridor Improvement Project. The
Euclid Corridor Improvement Project consists of a dedicated electric trolley bus line between Tower
City and University Circle and would relocate 3 stations and renovate 3 others to be completed in
2008. The Federal government previously approved $13 million to enable RTA to move ahead on
the $168.4 million bus-rapid transit line. RTA obtained almost 50% of the funding from the Federal
government. The remainder of the project will be funded by $50 million from the Ohio Department of
Transportation, $17.6 million from RTA, $10 million from the Northeast Ohio Area-wide Coordinating
Agency and $8 million from the city of Cleveland. Construction began in late 2004. In addition to the
actual Euclid Corridor project, there is related street work which will cost an estimated $21.4 million
and which will be done simultaneously.

A downturn in the economy and competition from imported steel led LTV Corporation to shut down
its west-side steel making and rolling operations and reduce employment by 900. The steelmaker
was forced to operate under Chapter 11 bankruptcy. Management originally decided to shut down
operations and liquidate the assets. Through a concerted effort by some employees, elected
officials and community leaders, a bankruptcy judge agreed to allow its sale. The plant was sold in
2002 to International Steel Group (ISG) and currently is back in operation. During first quarter 2003
and for the first time since 1994, 155,000 tons of steel left the port of Cleveland for Europe. In
addition, ISG agreed to buy the operations of Weirton Steel Corporation out of U.S. Bankruptcy
Court for $255 million. The judge overseeing the Weirton bankruptcy approved the sale in 2004.
The acquisition gives ISG the most steel making capacity in the United States. Weirton produces
approximately 25% of the tin plate produced in the United States. In addition, ISG reopened a
Cleveland west-side steel plant that was previously closed. ISG spent $10 million to restart the
basic oxygen furnace and continuous caster in May 2004 and hired 140 employees. The restart will
have a ripple effect on businesses that support the mill such as mechanics and electrical suppliers.
It will also mean more business for the port of Cleveland. In October 2004, a deal was reached
between ISG, ISPAT International and LNM Holdings to merge their operations into the world’s
largest steel firm, Mittal Steel.

In October 2003 Northeast Ohio’s first outdoor lifestyle center opened. The shopping center is
known as Legacy Village. The center cost $115 million and took two years to complete. An
estimated 2,000 full-time jobs were created. The complex has more than 70 tenants and consists of
a mix of upscale home stores, restaurants, clothing stores and specialty shops. The center has a
“main street” appearance. In order to adjust to the northeast Ohio climate, electrical wiring was
placed beneath the pavement and bricks to heat the sidewalks and melt the ice and snow. Legacy
Village opened with 92% of its space having been leased. In November 2004 another lifestyle
center on the west side of Cleveland called Crocker Park opened some of its retail operations.
Crocker Park is a pedestrian oriented, neo-traditional, mixed-use planned unit development on 75
acres. It consists of 600,000 square feet of retail, 40,000 square feet of restaurants, 225,000 square

viii




feet of office and 900,000 square feet of residential space consisting of loft apartments, townhouses
and attached luxury homes.

The largest development in the greater downtown area concerns a baseball stadium, basketball
arena and private development of land surrounding the area called the Gateway project. Gateway
Economic Development Corp. is a private nonprofit entity formed by an agreement between the city
of Cleveland and Cuyahoga County for the purpose of constructing and operating the baseball and
arena facilities. The County Commissioners authorized by resolution a public vote on an excise tax
on liquor, beer, wine and cigarettes (sin tax). The tax amounts to 16¢ on a gallon of beer, 32¢ on a
gallon of wine, $3 on a gallon of liquor and 4.5¢ on a pack of cigarettes imposed at the wholesale
level throughout the County. The tax will remain in existence for a period of 15 years. The citizens
passed the tax ordinance in the May 1990 primary election. Upon completion of the facilities,
Gateway revealed a cost overrun of $21.5 million. The cost overruns represented monies owed to
contractors. Cuyahoga County agreed to loan Gateway $11.5 million to pay contractor claims. The
$11.5 million interest free loan was to be repaid with 10 year commitments from the city of Cleveland
for $.3 million per year, the Convention and Visitor's Bureau for $.5 million per year and Gateway for
$.4 million per year. None of the proposed repayment sources have agreed to their respective
contributions except the city of Cleveland which has agreed to repay the County with interest earned
on future sin tax monies, if any, supporting debt for the new Cleveland Browns stadium beginning in
the year 2006. The remaining $10 million was loaned to Gateway by a local bank. Repayment was
to come from a grant from the State of Ohio capital budget. However, the state legislature agreed to
provide a $10 million interest free loan to be repaid by both the County and the city of Cleveland
equally over 20 years from State Local Government monies. During 2004, Gateway completed
renegotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of the Cleveland Indians and the Cleveland
Cavaliers. The new 10 year agreements free the organization from covering minor repairs and
routine maintenance. In addition, rent payments will no longer be tied to ticket sales, and Gateway’s
$4.9 million in expenses will be divided by the teams annually after its budget is submitted in mid-
November. Gateway agreed to give up $1 million annually in naming rights from the Indians until
2016. The Indians covered 57% of the budget in 2004. Gateway will only be responsible for items
over $.5 million. The Cavaliers had held Gateway responsible for all capital repairs of Gund Arena
and deducted the amounts from rent. As part of the agreement, the Cavaliers credit against rent
which equaled $9.5 million is no longer Gateway's responsibility. In March 2005 the Cleveland
Cavaliers were sold to a new group headed by Dan Gilbert, owner and founder of Quicken Loans,
the nation’s largest online home lender. The change in ownership is not expected to impact the
lease agreements with Gateway.

In Summer 1995, the city of Cleveland passed a council resolution authorizing the imposition and
collection of an 8% parking tax on all public parking in Cleveland and a 2% admission tax on all
entertainment events for the purpose of funding a football stadium. The County agreed to fund a
portion of the cost of the project by extending the excise tax on beer, wine, alcohol and tobacco from
the year 2005 through 2015. The sin tax was originally approved to repay bonds used to build the
baseball stadium. lIts life would have expired in the year 2005, when the sin tax bonds are retired.
The County Commissioners placed the 10 year tax extension on the ballot. During the fall campaign
to pass the tax, the owner of the Cleveland Browns, Art Modell, announced he was moving the team
to Baltimore. The tax passed with 75% of the vote in favor as a show of fan support for keeping the
Browns in Cleveland. The City sued Art Modell over a specific performance clause in the stadium
lease, which required the Browns to play in the stadium during the life of the lease which expired
after the 1998 season. In January 1996, during National Football League (NFL) meetings in
Chicago, a compromise was reached whereby Art Modell was allowed to take his team to Baltimore
but the team name and colors would remain in Cleveland with a promise from the NFL that a new or
existing team would be located in Cleveland by the year 1999, and Modell would be required to pay
$9.3 million in damages. In return, the City agreed to build a new stadium with city and county taxes
passed for this purpose. Since the county and city taxes would not support the full cost of a new
stadium, the NFL agreed to loan up to $48 million to the project with repayment to come from the
sale of private seat licenses. A 30-year lease between the city of Cleveland and the NFL was




negotiated which gave the NFL the right to assign the lease to the new team. Demolition of
Municipal Stadium began in fall 1996. Groundbreaking on the new stadium commenced in May
1997 with the project originally estimated to cost $247 million. The stadium opened in August 1999
but cost overruns increased the price to almost $300 million. The NFL agreed to provide an
additional $15 million toward any overruns and the City has stated it has sufficient funding to cover
the remainder. The County will not begin distributing its sin tax contribution prior to 2005. The
County will contribute $87 million over 10 years for debt service. An additional $29 million will be
earmarked for repair and renovation. Any sin tax collections above $116 million will remain with the
County and be used to reimburse the County for Gateway debt.

Both the County Commissioners and the Juvenile Court judges agree that a new Juvenile Court and
Youth Detention Center are necessary but cannot agree on where to locate this new complex. The
site picked by the County Commissioners, which is four miles from their current site, is property
currently owned by the County and recently underwent some environmental remediation. The
Juvenile Court judges prefer a site closer to downtown. The new joint building facility is estimated to
cost $120 million but the financing has not yet been determined.

The County Commissioners are also seeking a site for a new County Administration building. The
plan is to consolidate and relocate the offices of the County Commissioners, the Auditor, the
Treasurer, the Recorder and the Board of Elections whose employees reside in four other buildings.
The plan is to sell the other buildings to help offset the cost of the new building. It is also hoped that
additional savings can come from lower maintenance costs. The favored site is currently vacant and
the County has verbally committed to purchase the building for $22 million including an 850 space
parking garage that generates $1.2 million in revenues annually. The new building would house
nearly 2,000 employees. Construction costs and plans remain to be determined. The purchase
agreement requires the project to begin within three years.

The first International Children’s Games were held in 1918 with 9 European cities participating. In
Summer 2004, the International Children’s Games and Cultural Festival made their United States
debut in Cleveland. The games included 2,200 children athletes from 55 nations participating in the
global event. The events were hosted on 6 college campuses. Athletes had to be born between the
years 1989 and 1992. President George Bush helped open the Children’s Games, which generated
nearly $4.5 million in spending by visitors.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The County utilizes an automated accounting system, which provides the capability to prepare
financial information based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) for governments. Financial Accounting and Management Information System,
known by the acronym FAMIS, is the basis for the County's accounting and budgetary controls. All
operations of the County, with the exception of the Hospital, use FAMIS. Adequate internal
accounting controls are an integral part of this system and are designed to achieve the fundamental
objectives of safeguarding assets and providing reasonable assurance that financial transactions are
properly recorded.

The County's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are maintained on a basis other than
GAAP. For financial reporting purposes, the accounting records are converted to the modified
accrual basis for all Governmental funds for the governmental fund financial statements and the
accrual basis for the government-wide financial statements and the Proprietary and Fiduciary funds.
A further discussion of the two bases of accounting and their reconciliation can be found in Note B of
the notes to the financial statements.




CASH MANAGEMENT

The Investment Advisory Committee, comprised of three County Commissioners, the Clerk of Courts
and the County Treasurer, establishes investment policies and monitors all investment activity.
Public Financial Management, Inc. (PFM) provides investment advisory services. Amendments to
Onhio Revised Code Section 135 (Senate Bill 81) now restrict the type and length of investments and
provide for ongoing investment training for County Treasurers.

The County Treasurer, through a change in State statute, contracted for the sale of delinquent
property tax receivables. A delinquent sale which occurred in 2004 resulted in an additional $.2
million of delinquent tax collection. In addition, there was an increase in collections of prior tax
delinquencies because taxpayers wished to settle past due taxes with the County rather than deal
with a private owner of the receivable. A contract is now being negotiated which will enable the
Treasurer's Office to sell delinquencies for tax year 2003 at a discount. This sale is scheduled for
April 2005. The buyer has also continued to purchase subsequent tax liens for delinquencies
previously obtained.

The County Treasurer has established a linked deposit loan program for the purpose of enhancing
housing in participating cities. The County has entered into agreements with certain eligible lending
institutions and local communities to provide loans at below market interest rates to owners of real
property located in the contracting community for certain housing repairs and improvements. After a
linked deposit loan is made to an eligible borrower, the Treasurer will use monies from the County’s
portfolio of inactive funds to place a certificate of deposit with the lending institution at below market
rates. The contracting community is responsible for inspecting the improvements to ensure their
compliance with local building codes. More than 5,300 homeowners have borrowed over $103.4
million since the program’s inception in July 1999. The County feels increases in property values
resulting from the loan program will eventually bring additional revenues to the County.

A similar linked deposit program was established in 2002 to provide low interest home improvement
loans to owners of older and historic properties. The Preservation Resource Center of the Cleveland
Restoration Society provides assistance to property owners and monitors home improvements
completed through this program. Since its inception, 168 loans have been issued amounting to $5.5
million.

It is the policy of the County Treasurer that all deposits be covered either by insurance or
collateralized. The collateral is held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the depository
or the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts consisting of government
securities. The County's investment policy objectives consider safety, liquidity and yield. Before a
security is purchased, the cash flow needs of the County and the cash flow forecast are analyzed.
Key factors of decision making on the purchase of securities include type, term to maturity, principal
value and rate of return.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County has designated $2 million of General fund balance to provide reserves for claims and
judgements not covered by various County insurance policies. Settled claims from risks covered by
the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal
years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County and estimates for claims
including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial in 2004. The County is also self-insured
with respect to the Ohio Unemployment Compensation program. Self-insurance expenditures for
unemployment compensation were not material in 2004. The County maintains an Internal Service
fund for the self-insurance of workers compensation through a retrospective rating plan with the
State of Ohio. All payroll funds in the County contribute to the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation
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fund based on estimates needed to pay claims and to establish a reserve for claims incurred but not
reported.

THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report is an unqualified audit opinion rendered on the County's basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 by our independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche
LLP. County management will continue to subject the financial statements to an annual independent
audit as part of the preparation of the CAFR. An annual audit serves to help maintain and
strengthen the County's accounting and budgetary controls.

The County participates in the Federal "Single Audit" program, which consists of a single audit of all
federal and federal flow-through funded programs administered by the County. As a requirement for
continued federal funding eligibility, congressional legislation has made participation in the single
audit program mandatory for a majority of local governments including Cuyahoga County.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The County of Cuyahoga’'s MD&A can be found immediately following the report
of the independent auditors.

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Cuyahoga, Ohio for
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program'’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Deloitte

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 3300

127 Public Square
Cleveland, OH 44114-1291
USA

Tel: +1 216 589 1300
Fax: +1 216 589 1369
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Cuyahoga,
Ohio (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

County as of December 31, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Human Services Fund,
Health and Human Services Levies Fund, Board of Mental Retardation Fund, and Health and Community
Services Fund, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 15 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the County’s management.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This supplementary
information is the responsibility of the County’s management. The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Dr_ea':lre § Tovetie LLP

June 8, 2005



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Cuyahoga County, we offer readers of Cuyahoga County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Cuyahoga County for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letters of transmittal, which can be found on
pages iv-xiii of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Cuyahoga County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$638 million (net assets).

e The government’s total net assets increased by $100.2 million.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $364.1 million, an increase of $137.7 million in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 82% of this total amount, $298.6 million, is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

e Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $124.8 million,
or 42.7% of total general fund expenditures.

e Additions to Cuyahoga County’s total debt were $141.6 million during the current fiscal year.
Reductions in debt during 2004 amounted to $95.2 million for a net increase of $46.4 million. The
County issued new debt and refinanced existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Cuyahoga County’s basic financial
statements. Cuyahoga County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government- wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Cuyahoga County’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Cuyahoga County is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Cuyahoga County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Cuyahoga County include general




government, judicial, development, social services, health and safety and public works. The business-
type activities of Cuyahoga County include a sanitary sewer authority, an airport, a parking garage and a
crime information system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Cuyahoga County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate hospital for which Cuyahoga County is financially
accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 — 19 of the report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Cuyahoga County, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Cuyahoga County can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

Cuyahoga County maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances for the general, human services, health and human services levies, county
board of mental retardation and health and community services funds which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Cuyahoga County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and the other major funds
as well as the motor vehicle gas tax and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 — 29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Cuyahoga County uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitary sewer, airport,
parking garage and crime information system. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to




accumulate and allocate costs internally among Cuyahoga County’s various functions. Cuyahoga
County uses internal service funds to account for its central custodial, maintenance garage, data
processing, printing, reproduction and supplies, communications and self-funded workers’ compensation
services. As these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the sanitary
engineer which is considered to be a major fund of Cuyahoga County. Conversely, the internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 33 of this report.

Fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are not available to support Cuyahoga County’s own programs.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 34 of this report.

Budgetary fund financial statements. The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The budgetary statements for the general fund and all annually budgeted major
special revenue funds are presented to demonstrate the County’s compliance with annually adopted
budgets.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 35 — 67 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain other supplementary information. The combining statements referred to earlier in
connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds and internal service funds are
presented in the other supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and
schedules can be found on pages 70 — 110 of this report.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of Cuyahoga County, assets exceeded liabilities by $638 million at the close of the
most recent fiscal year. This is the third year for Cuyahoga County in implementing Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This statement requires a comparative
analysis of government-wide data in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section.

Cuyahoga County’s Net Assets
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Current and other assets............... $ 841777 $ 758,688 $ 13,898 $ 12,539 $ 855,675 $ 771,227
Capital assets.......cccccceeeeuvieeeeeeenn. 619,334 609,851 44,165 45,071 663,499 654,922

Total assets......cccceeeeeeeececccnnnnne. 1,461,111 1,368,539 58,063 57,610 1,519,174 1,426,149
Long-term liabilities outstanding.... 464,502 412,393 14,380 16,473 478,882 428,866
Other liabilities............ceveveeeeeeeeennen. 400,964 458,316 1,364 1,247 402,328 459,563

Total liabilities..........ccceeeeeeennnnnne. 865,466 870,709 15,744 17,720 881,210 888,429
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt..........oovvvvvevvvevieirinnnnns 350,959 409,443 31,236 30,505 382,195 439,948
Restricted..........cooovvvvieii 38,995 34,255 38,995 34,255
Unrestricted.............oooo. 205,691 54,132 11,083 9,385 216,774 63,517

Total net assets.........cocceeeeeeenen... $ 595645 $ 497830 $ 42319 $ 39,890 $ 637,964 $ 537,720

At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental
and business-type activities.

By far the largest portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets (59.9%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. = Cuyahoga County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Cuyahoga County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of Cuyahoga County’s net assets, restricted net assets (6.1%), represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($216.8 million) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

Current and other assets, long-term liabilities outstanding and net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt were all effected by the issuance of $84.5 million of new debt. Other liabilities decreased
due primarily to a methodology adjustment to the calculation of deferred revenue for personal property
taxes. Also the accrual for wages and benefits was significantly smaller in 2004 due to a reduction in the




number of days accrued. The combination of an increase in noncapital assets and a decrease in other

liabilities created a large positive variance in unrestricted net assets.

CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(Year ended December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services..........c.cccoevveeenn.. $ 98354 $ 90,848 $ 15468 $ 15364 $ 113,822 $ 106,212
Operating grants and contributions ......... 578,794 551,540 145 38 578,939 551,578
Capital grants and contributions.............. 25,305 27,942 25,305 27,942
General revenues:
Property taxes.......cccovveeeniieiiiee e 315,172 257,640 315,172 257,640
Sales and othertaxes ............cccoevvvvunnnn... 197,562 188,313 197,562 188,313
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs ................... 41,982 35,556 41,982 35,556
(O 1 1= RO 64,598 60,360 102 61 64,700 60,421
Total revenues ..........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 1,321,767 1,212,199 15,715 15,463 1,337,482 1,227,662
Expenses:
General Government..........cccoooovevvvunnnnn... 69,154 59,963 69,154 59,963
JUAiCial ...vvveeeeeiii s 292,417 277,314 292,417 277,314
Development........cccccoovieviiieiiiee e 32,524 25,332 32,524 25,332
Social Services...........ooovuvveeeiieeiieinnn. 570,871 578,700 570,871 578,700
Health and Safety...........ccccceevveiiieiinnenn. 178,342 152,904 178,342 152,904
Public WOrks ........oovvvveveeeeeiiieiieiieeieeeeee 59,421 67,025 59,421 67,025
Interest......oooovvveveie 18,412 13,813 18,412 13,813
Sanitary Engineer.........cccocooveviiineiinenne 9,604 10,069 9,604 10,069
AIrPOrt .o 1,302 1,617 1,302 1,617
Huntington Park Garage ............ccccc........ 2,418 1,753 2,418 1,753
Cuyahoga County Information System.... 2,773 2,188 2773 2,188
Total eXPENSES.......cccevcvvvieeiiieeicieeeeeiiee e 1,221,141 1,175,051 16,097 15,627 1,237,238 1,190,678
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
before transfers...........ccccvvvveeiiiiiiiiinnnn. 100,626 37,148 (382) (164) 100,244 36,984
TranSfers.......coocev e (2,811) (940) 2,811 940
Change in net assets ........ccccccceeeeieeennnee. 97,815 36,208 2,429 776 100,244 36,984
Net assets — Beginning of year .................. 497,830 461,622 39,890 39,114 537,720 500,736
Net assets — End of year........c..cccccevveenee. $ 595645 $ 497,830 $42,319 $39.890 $ 637,964 $ 537,720




The government’s net assets increased by $100.2 million during the current fiscal year. The net increase
was due primarily to a new 4.9 mill property tax levy which passed in May 2003. The new levy
generated an additional $57.5 million of property tax revenue in 2004. Additional increases in net assets
resulted from various programs such as the Community’s Alternative Funding System (CAFS) amounting
to $9.6 million, various charges for services which grew by $7.5 million and a non-prosecution agreement
concerning a criminal case against various brokerage firms for lack of supervision of a broker who
defrauded clients in Cuyahoga County amounting to $9.3 million. A portion of the CAFS revenue
increase resulted from settlement of a lawsuit against the State of Ohio for the years 1997 and 1999, and
additional revenue derived from rate adjustments in 2004 to match revenue with costs. The charges for
services growth included revenue for conveyance fees which are collected upon the sale of real property
amounting $1.4 million and indirect costs for the nongeneral fund portion of government management
services amounting to $4.9 million. In addition, the county realized an additional $9.2 million of sales tax
receipts due to the expansion of the sales tax base. The State of Ohio identified some services which
had previously been exempt from sales tax and which will now be taxed to the consumer.

The general government expense increases were primarily a result of personnel costs which rose
approximately 13.8% due to a cost of living increase amounting to 3%, medical insurance increase
amounting to 7% and the calendar year having 27 pays instead of the normal 26 pays which added 3.8%
to payroll. Also, the presidential election in 2004 cost an additional $1.4 million to the Board of Elections.
The judicial growth in spending was partially a result of the personnel cost increases. The health and
safety increases in spending resulted from additional subsidy payments to MetroHealth System
amounting to $5.8 million for its portion of the new levy. Also, Medicaid claims in the Mental Health
Board grew by $17.2 million.

Additional increases in business-type activities were a result of transfers of $2.2 million from the general
fund to two enterprise funds.




Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities
g~ h.i a.

(Amounts in 000’s) %

a. Charges for Services.......ccccceiviniiiiiiieeeeeeiee, $ 98,354 7.4
b. Operating Grants and Contributions................... 578,794 43.8
c. Capital Grants, Contributions and Interest......... 25,305 1.9
d. Property TaX....oooooceeeeieiieeiee e 315,172 23.8
€. SAlIES TAX ciiieeii i 168,634 12.8
f. Other TaX oo, 28,928 2.2
g. State Local Government.............ccooeiiiiiiiiiinenn. 38,259 2.9
h. Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific programs. .........cccccevvieeiiiieeiiieeene 41,982 3.2
[T O 1 o [=) S 26,339 2.0
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

C.

b.

a.
(Amounts in 000’s)
a. Charges for Services ........ccoovveeieeenenen. $ 15,468
b. Operating Grants and Contributions ....... 145
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by $97.8
million. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e The County passed a new property tax levy in 2003 that began collection in 2004 generating an
additional $57.5 million.

e CAFS program revenues amounting to $9.6 million including settlement of a lawsuit for the years
1997 and 1999 and rate adjustments.

e Charges for services increase amounting to $7.5 million for various fees and services.

e Non-prosecution agreement of $9.3 million.
Expansion of services subject to the sales tax prescribed by the State of Ohio amounting to $9.2
million.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased Cuyahoga County’s net assets by $2.4
million. Key elements of this increase are as follows.

e Increase in net assets resulted from two transfers from the general fund. The first one was a $1
million transfer to the sanitary engineer fund to retire debt on a sewer project. The second transfer
was an additional general fund subsidy of $1.2 million to the cuyahoga county information system
fund in order to offset the loss of some system users in 2004 and for the cost of some system
upgrades necessary to market the service.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Cuyahoga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing Cuyahoga County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $364.1 million, an increase of $137.7 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately $298.6 million constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed (1) for restricted assets ($27.4 million), (2) for
loans ($19.1 million) or (3) to pay debt service ($19 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Cuyahoga County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $124.8 million, while fund balance reached $162.7
million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 42.7% of
total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 55.7% of that same amount.
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The fund balance of Cuyahoga County’s general fund decreased by $23.6 million. The health and
human services levies, the County Board of Mental Retardation, the health and community services fund
and other governmental funds increased by $55.7 million, $13.3 million, $11.4 million and $80.8 million
respectively, during the current fiscal year. Key factors in these changes are as follows:

e The general fund decrease occurred primarily from a subsidy to the human services and health and
community services funds amounting to $22.3 million.

e In 2004, the health and human services levies fund was owed $26.6 million and $13.5 million from
the human service and the health and community service funds, respectively for advancing its
subsidy. The remaining balance was new levy money not yet distributed.

e The County Board of Mental Retardation intergovernmental revenue increased $13 million, the
majority of which was from CAFS program.

e The health and community services fund increase in fund balance of $11.4 million was partially a
result of the increases in subsidies to the Mental Health Board and homeless services of $3.2 million
and $1.8 million, respectively. There were also decreases in social service expenditures of $7.8
million relating to foster care placements costs. The Department of Children and Family Services
made many adjustments to reassign cases to proper levels of care, reunify children and reduce the
amount of children brought into custody. The drop in foster care placements was over 400 children
amounting to a savings of $12.3 million.

e The fund balance increase of $80.8 million in other governmental was a result of issuance of new
debt of $84.5 million deposited in the capital projects fund.

Proprietary funds. Cuyahoga County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sanitary engineer at the end of the year amounted to $8.3 million and all
others amounted to $2.6 million. The total increase in net assets was $2.4 million. Other factors
concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of Cuyahoga
County’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $22.7 million and can be
briefly summarized as follows:

e Increase in transfers out was partially a result of the purchase of Whiskey Island. The island will be
used as both a park and marina in the near term. The island could be used in the future to relocate
the port authority. The decision to purchase Whiskey Island was made in December 2004 and an
additional appropriation of $4 million was necessary to transfer funds to a capital projects fund.

e There was also an increase of $12.4 million in the general fund capital improvements subsidy. These
transfers represent transfers to various capital projects not funded with the bond issuance.

e Increase in subsidy to sanitary engineer amounting to $1 million to cover the cost of debt on a
completed sewer project and increase to the cuyahoga county information system for system
upgrades amounting to $1.4 million.

e Increase to cover cost of upgrades to the human resources management system amounting to $1.1
million.

e Cost of the 2004 presidential elections resulting in an additional budget adjustment of almost $1
million.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of December 31, 2004, amounts to $663.5 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in progress.
The net increase in Cuyahoga County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1.3%
(a 1.6% increase for governmental activities and a 2% decrease for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

CUYAHOGA COUNTY’S CAPITAL ASSETS
(December 31; net of depreciation, amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Land....c.coooeeiieieeeeee e, $ 44535 §$ 38,034 $ 5,752 $ 5752 $ 50,287 $ 43,786
Land improvements................. 10,485 2,151 2,658 3,006 13,143 5,157
Utility plant ...........ccooeveiiieeens 26,639 20,793 26,639 20,793
Buildings, structures and

improvements..............ccuee..... 305,279 260,101 6,742 7,418 312,021 267,519
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment ..........cccuvee... 13,919 11,474 243 296 14,162 11,770
Vehicles .......ccccoevveiiiienieeins 4,035 3,296 961 848 4,996 4,144
Infrastructure...........cccouveeeeen. 199,601 203,973 199,601 203,973
Construction in progress ......... 41,480 90,822 1,170 6,958 42,650 97,780
Total ..o, $ 619334 $ 609,851 $ 44,165 $ 45,071 $ 663,499 $.654,922

The County was involved in a number of construction projects that resulted in the capitalization of various
assets in 2004 including renovations of the County Justice Center amounting to $22.6 million, the County
Courthouse amounting to $8.4 million and Juvenile Court amounting to $4.2 million. The County
purchased the Marion Building for $4.4 million and Whiskey Island for $4 million. The County built a new
County Kennel for $6.5 million. The County Engineer had renovations of various bridges and roads of
$7.7 million, and $8.5 million was used to clean up county land for future development.

Some sewer improvements were capitalized in Business-type Activities including the Schady Road
project for $5.3 million.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s capital assets can be found in Note E on pages 48 — 50 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Cuyahoga County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $357.4 million. Of this amount, $241.4 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the government and $2.3 million is special assessment debt for which the government is liable in
the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of Cuyahoga
County’s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds) and
other debt such as notes to be financed by future bonds, loans and an installment purchase agreement
financed by non-tax sources.
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Cuyahoga County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Long-term Debt
(December 31; amounts in 000’s)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

General obligation bonds .............. $ 241,445 $ 172250 $ $ $ 241,445 $172,250
Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment........... 2,250 2,440 2,250 2,440
Revenue bonds..........ccccceeeevnnenn. 113,735 115,975 113,735 115,975
Bond anticipation notes................. 2,440 5,950 6,110 5,950 8,550
LOANS ..eeviiiie e 3,054 3,332 4,729 6,016 7,783 9,348
Installment purchase agreements. 9,808 11,698 9,808 11,698
Total ..o $ 368,042 $ 305695 $ 12,929 §$ 14,566 $ 380,971 $ 320,261

Cuyahoga County’s total debt increased by $60.7 million (19%) during the current fiscal year. The
County refinanced some revenue bonds and bond anticipation notes and issued new general obligation
bonds.

Cuyahoga County maintained a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s, “AAA” from Fitch and a “Aa1” rating
from Moody’s for general obligation debt. The revenue bonds have been rated “Aa3” by Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 1% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation (voted and unvoted) for Cuyahoga County is $565
million which is significantly in excess of Cuyahoga County’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on Cuyahoga County’s long-term debt can be found in Note F on pages 51 - 58 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

¢ The unemployment rate for Cuyahoga County is currently 6.2%, compared to 6.8% a year ago.

e The percentage of jobs lost between the third quarter 2003 and the third quarter 2004 was 1.8% in
manufacturing, 3.4% in wholesale and retail and 1.3% in federal state and local government. In all
sectors, job loss amounted to only .7% as compared to 1.5% one year ago.

Each of these factors were considered in preparing Cuyahoga County’s budget for the 2004 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased $16.9 million. The
primary reason for the decrease in unreserved fund balance was due to a subsidy to the human services
and health and community services funds which was advanced in 2003.

In May 2003, the voters of Cuyahoga County approved a 4.9 mill health and human services levy to be
collected in 2004 through 2008. The levy generated an additional $57.5 million of property tax revenue in
2004.
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The County issued $84.5 million of new general obligation bonds to fund various project many of which
were in various stages of completion.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Cuyahoga County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Frank

Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, Cuyahoga County, 1219 Ontario Street, Room 121, Cleveland, Ohio
44113.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments..............ccccoceiiiiiinins
Cash and investments-segregated accounts..............ccccccceenens
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..
Special assessments (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accrued interest ..
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles).
Net receivables....
Internal balances...
Due from other governments.
Inventory of supplies
Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Other assets....
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments.............ccccooviiiiiiinics
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land improvements
Utility plant.
Buildings, structures and improvements.
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.
Vehicles
Infrastructure.
Construction in progress.

Net capital assets

TOTAL ASSETS ...

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable..
Deferred revenue
Due to other governments..
Accrued wages and benefits..
Matured bonds payable
Other liabilities
Accrued interest payable.
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year...
Due in more than one yea .
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....cooiiiiiiiiiiiciiecc e

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..............cceeeeenennn.
Restricted for:
Restricted @assets ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiii
Debt service..
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS.....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiss i

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type MetroHealth
Activities Activities Total System
286,218 $ 10,864 $ 297,082 $ 2,287
221,253
335,098 335,098
649 268 917 58,041
2,496 2,496
2,096 2,096
19,078 19,078
356,921 2,764 359,685 58,041
33 (33)
165,711 264 165,975
38 10 48 5,392
28,686
919 29 948 3,881
31,937 31,937 33,387
44,535 5,752 50,287 9,634
10,485 2,658 13,143 969
26,639 26,639
305,279 6,742 312,021 180,535
13,919 243 14,162 41,950
4,035 961 4,996 6,970
199,601 199,601
41,480 1,170 42,650 11,093
619,334 44,165 663,499 251,151
1,461,111 58,063 1,519,174 604,078
60,587 1,082 61,669 20,744
307,105 307,105
20,080 13 20,093
8,601 111 8,712 26,090
14 14
1,410 158 1,568 15,717
3,167 3,167 3,846
47,667 7,040 54,707 41,745
416,835 7,340 424,175 279,608
865,466 15,744 881,210 387,750
350,959 31,236 382,195 40,588
19,977 19,977 2,887
19,018 19,018 27,692
205,691 11,083 216,774 145,161
595,645 $ 42,319 $ 637,964 $ 216,328

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Charges for

Functions/Programs Expenses Services
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
GENEIAl OVEIMIMENT. ... .ottt ettt e e h et e st e e bt e e e st e e ee e e e e e e e e nb e e e nnneeenneeean $ 69,154 $ 64,865
JUAICTAL. .. 292,417 27,400
[T foT o o =T o | SO PSPPSRI 32,524 367
Social services.... 570,871 1,884
Health and safety 178,342 1,524
Public works...........ccccee.. . 59,421 2,314
Interest on [oNG-termM debt..........c.ooiiiiii e e 18,412
Total governmental ACtVItIES. ..........ccuiiiiiii e 1,221,141 98,354
Business-type activities:
SANIMANY ENGINEET ...ttt b ettt st e n e ehe e et e e in et e nbeere et 9,604 11,102
Airport........cccoeenn 1,302 663
Huntington Park Garage............c.cccceeuee. . 2,418 2,266
Cuyahoga County Information System.. 2,773 1,437
Total business-type aCtiVItIES. ......cc.uiiiiiiiii e 16,097 15,468
Total PriMary GOVEIMIMENL.........oitiiiiiiiieeit ettt ettt b ettt et e st e ettt esb e et e b e e sbeeabeenbe e et e naeeaaees $ 1,237,238 $ 113,822
Component unit:
MetrOHEAITN SYSTEML....c. ettt ettt et e et e et e e $ 562,298 $ 498,434

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Operating Capital Grants, Business- Component Unit
Grants and Contributions and Governmental Type MetroHealth
Contributions Interest Activities Activities Totals System
60 $ (4,229) $ $ (4,229) $
51,218 (213,799) (213,799)
20,808 (11,349) (11,349)
378,758 (190,229) (190,229)
127,591 (49,227) (49,227)
359 25,305 (31,443) (31,443)
(18,412) (18,412)
578,794 25,305 (518,688) (518,688)
22 1,520 1,520
123 (516) (516)
(152) (152)
(1,336) (1,336)
145 (484) (484)
578,939 $ 25,305 (518,688) (484) (519,172)
31,031 $ 183 (32,650)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
PrOPEMY.....ccviiiiiieiicice e 315,172 315,172
Sales and USe........cccceveeiiiiiiiiiiieiecee 168,634 168,634
28,928 28,928
State local government fund... 38,259 38,259
Unrestricted investment earnings............ccccocveeeiee 5,743 49 5,792 1,323
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific programs 41,982 41,982
Miscellaneous.. 20,596 53 20,649 24,714
Transfers (2,811) 2,811
Total general revenues, and transfers.... 616,503 2,913 619,416 26,037
Change in net assets 97,815 2,429 100,244 (6,613)
Net assets-beginning of year...........cccccoevveeeiiiciiennne 497,830 39,890 537,720 222,941
Net assets-end of year..........c.cccocvviiiiiiiiiciccin, 595,645 $ 42,319 $ 637,964 $ 216,328
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments..............cccceevenen. $ 57,576 $ $ 15,881 $ 33,004
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..................... 65,267 156,870 79,668
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) ............... 265
Accrued interest .........ccoocvieeiiiiieee e 2,096
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..................... 1,000
Net receivables..........coocvviieiiiiere e 68,628 156,870 79,668
Due from other funds............cooevieiiiiciiiiceeeee e, 41,935 40,120
Due from other governments..........ccccooieiiiiiiiieninene 26,443 82,630 10,369 11,619
Restricted assets -
Cash and investments............cccccceeeevciiie i, 31,937
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ottt see e $ 226,519 $ 82,630 $ 223240 $ 124,291
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable.............cc.ceveiereieieiece e $ 5438 $ 12,975 $ $ 3,569
Deferred revenUE.........c..evveieciiiei e 51,212 165,787 84,225
Due to other funds........cc..ooeeeeiiieeiiieeeeee e 2,208 67,735 1,049
Due to other governments...........ccoooiiieeiiiiiieniciieeene
Accrued wages and benefits... 3,521 1,920 1,429
Matured bonds payable.......... .
Other Liabilities..........coeoiiiieeeeeeee e 1,410
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ceeiee et 63,789 82,630 165,787 90,272
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Restricted assets..........cccccoveeiiiiiiiie e, 27,412
Loans receivable............ccoeeeiiiie i 1,000
Debt SEIVICE. ...t 9,484
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund:
Designated for self-insurance............ccccooeeeenieennnnn. 1,978
Designated for proprietary funds...........ccccocevnieeene. 4,276
Undesignated..........cooveeiiiiiiiiiiee e 118,580
Special Revenue Funds..........ccccoocveevieiiieecee e, 57,453 34,019
Capital Projects Fund...........cccocooiiiiiiie
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ........coooiieeeeeiee e, 162,730 57,453 34,019
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES................ $__ 226519 $ 82,630 $ 223,240 $ 124,291

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Health

and Other Total
Community Governmental Governmental

Services Funds Funds

$ 57,067 $ 68,598 §$ 232,126

11,798 21,495 335,098

372 637

2,096

18,078 19,078

12,170 39,573 356,909

82,055

13,768 17,818 162,647

31,937

$ 83,005 $ 125,989 $ 865,674

$ 27,429 $ 9,112 $ 58,523

11,689 32,054 344,967

14,209 606 85,807

2,817 2,817

745 383 7,998

14 14

1,410

54,072 44,986 501,536

27,412

18,078 19,078

9,534 19,018

1,978

4,276

118,580

28,933 30,758 151,163

22,633 22,633

28,933 81,003 364,138

125,989 865,674

$ 83,005 $ $
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Total fund balances for governmental fUNAS............ooiiiiiiiiiii e $ 364,138

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds............cccoooociiiiiiiiine 610,486

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the fUNAS..........cooiiii e e 37,862

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net @ssets..............ccociiiiiii 42,045

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Accrued interest payable.............cocciiiiiiiiii i (3,167)

LONG-EIM AEDL. ... ettt ettt et as (456,638)

Unamortized DONd ISSUBNCE COSES.........uiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt e e e et e e e e e e e e e nannees 919 (458,886)
TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiin s $ 595,645

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

REVENUES

Property taxes...... ..o
Sales and use tax
Other taX...cuuiieieee e
State local government fund...............ccooeiiiiiiiiiii.
Licenses and permits...........c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Charges for services..... J PPN
Fines and forfeitures...............ccooeeinne

Investment earnings............ccccoeeviiienns

Other intergovernmental...........c.....cc.oceeueee
Miscellaneous............oouuiiiiiiiiii e
TOTAL REVENUES........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government..........cc.evieiieiiiiiiiiieieeee e
JUAICIAL ..
Development........
Social services............
Health and safety
Public works............
Capital outlay.........coooiiiiiiii
Debt service:
Principal retirement............coooii
Interest........ccoeeeiiii.
Bond issuance costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......couiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeei e

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.........octtiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeee

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers iN......oo e
Transfers out:
Debt retirement....

Capitalized leases.....

Issuance of debt................ccoceeiil

Bond premium (discount)-net...........c..cooiiiiiiiiiiiii.
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...........cccccvuuennnn.

FUND BALANCES AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR............ooiiee

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR......coiiiiiiii e

Health and County
Human Board of
General Human Services Mental
Fund Services Levies Retardation
$ 21,146 $ $ 170,467 $ 86,420
167,871
126 76 42
38,518
89
70,113 1,588
5,833
4,324 26
10,159 258,530 23,448 89,478
12,651 1,321 1,597
330,830 261,439 193,991 177,563
51,798
226,592
6,841
5,778 309,362 166,651
978 26,918
25
292,012 309,362 26,918 166,651
38,818 (47,923) 167,073 10,912
607 48,133 70 551
(7,221)
(55,827) (210) (111,409)
1,857
(62,441) 47,923 (111,339) 2,408
(23,623) 55,734 13,320
186,353 1,719 20,699
$ 162,730 $ 0% 57,453 $ 34,019

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Health and Total
Community Other Governmental
Services Governmental Funds
13,399 $ 23,740 $ 315,172
167,871
29,644 29,888
38,518
1,579 1,668
18,698 90,399
178 275 6,286
631 1,034 6,015
184,610 79,523 645,748
1,457 4,085 21,111
220,552 138,301 1,322,676
15,711 67 67,576
43,765 20,603 290,960
5,116 21,251 33,208
91,709 6,838 580,338
144,090 6,277 178,263
1,834 56,076 57,910
30,207 30,207
62,255 62,255
17,042 17,067
942 942
302,225 221,558 1,318,726
(81,673) (83,257) 3,950
97,718 37,598 184,677
(7,221)
(4,599) (6,702) (178,747)
1,857
127,320 127,320
5,814 5,814
93,119 164,030 133,700
11,446 80,773 137,650
17,487 230 226,488
28,933 $ 81,003 $ 364,138
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental fUNAS...........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiii s $ 137,650
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets that meet capitalization requirements

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays ($39,146) exceeded depreciation ($30,824) in the current period................ 8,322

Net effect of sales and other disposals of capital @SSets............cuiiiieiiiiiiei e (1,827)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues iN the fUNGAS. ... (395)

Expenses reported as compensated absences and special termination benefits in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in gOVErNMENLAl fUNGAS..........ii ettt e et et e et e sneeeeee e seeemneeaneeenneeanneennen 16,388

Interest is reported as an expenditure when due in the governmental funds, but is
reported as incurred in the statement of aCtiVItIES. ..o (1,334)

The issuance of long-term debt, (notes, bonds, capital leases, etc.) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds and is not reported in the statement of activities. ...........cccocceriiiicrnnne (134,049)

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Capital lease obligations.................... 1,887
Environmental Protection AGENCY 10aN..............ooiuiiiiiiiiiii s 28
Ohio Department of DEVEIOPMENT I0N............ei ittt e et e e e st e eeeemeeereeeneesneeenneeaneeas 250
Installment PUrChAsE @grEEMENL..........coi i ittt e et e et e et e ameeeeae e e teeneeesnneeeeeenneeaneeannee e 1,890
General obligation and rEVENUE DONAS. ........c...iiiiiiiie ettt e e e s b e annes 60,365
Certain net expenses of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities in the statement of @CtIVItIES............coiiiiiiiiii 8,640
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES....cciitite ettt nenes $ 97,815

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

27



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund Human Services
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts Original Final Amounts
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 19,943 $ 20,159 $ 21,186 $ $ $
Sales and use tax 159,020 165,408 165,408
Other tax.............. 45 128 126
State local government fund. 38,526 38,526 38,526
Licenses and permits.. 107 100 89
Charges for services... 59,336 65,450 70,155 1,744 1,590 1,588
Fines and forfeitures. 6,250 6,587 5,998
Investment earnings. 14,000 12,000 11,769
Other intergovernmental 9,984 7,876 8,892 265,583 243,505 240,928
Miscellaneous 3,336 6,455 12,401 2,584 4,181 2,250
TOTAL REVENUES...........oiiic e 310,547 322,689 334,550 269,911 249,276 244,766
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel. 28,212 30,493 29,785
Other... 31,347 32,291 22,633
Capital. . 903 648 565
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT .........ooiiiiiian 60,462 63,432 52,983
JUDICIAL
Personnel............oooiii 156,443 157,136 156,507
Other. 73,130 78,142 73,891
Capital. . 1,310 513 496
TOTAL JUDICIAL. ..o 230,883 235,791 230,894
DEVELOPMENT
Personnel. 751 751 694
Other. 3,715 3,463 3,458
Capital. 1 2 2
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT 4,467 4,216 4,154
SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel. 1,703 1,776 1,707 131,684 130,943 127,987
6,415 6,223 4,053 205,411 184,660 180,560
6 69 48 421 486 307
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES. 8,124 8,068 5,808 337,516 316,089 308,854
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel. 867 784 784
Other... 496 467 432
Capital. 4 7 4
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 1,367 1,258 1,220
PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel.........oooi
Other.
Capital. -
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS........coiiiiicicceeaa
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ....oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 305,303 312,765 295,059 337,516 316,089 308,854
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES..............ccii 5,244 9,924 39,491 (67,605) (66,813) (64,088)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers iN........c.oooi 607 67,508 123,134 62,495
Transfers out:
Debt retirement (7,262) (7.,422) (7,221)
(19,179) (34,299) (32,718) (211) (210)
(26,441) (41,721) (39,332) 67,508 122,923 62,285
(21,197) (31,797) 159 (97) 56,110 (1,803)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR.........oooiiiiii e 106,894 106,894 106,894 (57,901) (567,901) (57,901)
FUND BALANCES(DEFICITS) AT
END OF YEAR ..ot $ 85,697 $ 75,097 $ 107,053 $ (57,998) $ (1,791) $_ (59.704)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Human Services Levies Board of Mental Retardation Health and Community Services

Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual Budgeted Amounts Actual

Original Final Amounts Original Final Amounts Original Final Amounts

175,929 $ 168,643 $ 170,940 $ 87,166 $ 85,518 $ 86,621 $ 12,500 $ 14,868 $ 13,426
27 76 42

1,596 1,704 1,579
17,969 17,579 18,730
142 159 178
22 22 31 582 771 633
17,174 24,512 23,447 82,774 85,955 86,228 171,043 146,389 196,665
970 3,468 1,597 4,719 6,015 1,449
193,103 193,182 194,463 170,932 174,963 174,519 208,551 187,485 232,660
11,363 11,120 11,096
5,009 4,732 4,505
63 16 13
16,435 15,868 15,614
28,023 28,750 27,507
19,184 19,304 16,087
318 437 339
47,525 48,491 43,933
1,852 1,791 1,646
3,186 3,707 3,679
5 21 9
5,043 5,519 5,334
89,380 89,380 86,544 352 400 373

77,749 76,941 73,655 116,311 105,084 102,011

3,774 5,325 4,959 1 9 1
170,903 171,646 165,158 116,664 105,493 102,385
6,779 6,694 6,626
27,000 26,974 26,974 125,373 138,456 133,925
53 202 151
27,000 26,974 26,974 132,205 145,352 140,702
404 404 378
1,451 1,641 1,588

1 1

1,856 2,046 1,966
27,000 26,974 26,974 170,903 171,646 165,158 319,728 322,769 309,934
166,103 166,208 167,489 29 3,317 9,361 (111,177) (135,284) (77,274)
70 70 551 107,126 150,161 101,155
(166,103) (151,528) (151,528) (3,690) (4,599)
(166,103) (151,458) (151,458) 551 107,126 146,471 96,556
14,750 16,031 29 3,317 9,912 (4,051) 11,187 19,282
(150) (150) (150) 14,423 14,423 14,423 10,169 10,169 10,169

(150) $ 14,600 $ 15,881 $ 14,452 $ 17,740 $ 24,335 $ 6,118 $ 21,356 $ 29,451




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............cccooceveirereeeerieesenes $ 8,112 § 2,752 $ 10,864 $ 54,092
Receivables:
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 12 256 268 12
Special assessements (net of allowance for uncollectibles).... 250 250
Net receivables 262 256 518 12
Due from other funds.. 46 46 6,867
Due from other governments 264 264 3,064
Inventory of supplies... 10 10 38
Total current assets 8,374 3,328 11,702 64,073
Noncurrent assets:
Special assessments receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)..... 2,246 2,246
Oher @SSetS......c.oiiiiiiiiiiiii e 29 29
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
472 5,280 5,752
Land improvements... 503 2,155 2,658
Utility plant 26,639 26,639
Buildings, structures and improvements... 2,703 4,039 6,742
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 205 38 243 8,049
Vehicles.......ccovevvecirrnnne. 857 104 961 799
Construction in progress.. 868 302 1,170
Net capital assets........ 32,247 11,918 44,165 8,848
Total noncurrent assets.. 34,522 11,918 46,440 8,848
TOTAL ASSETS.... s 42,896 15,246 58,142 72,921
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 551 531 1,082 2,064
Due to other funds.... 297 37 334 2,827
Due to other governments 13 13 17,263
Accrued wages and benefits.. 398 114 512 2,608
Other liabilities. 158 158
Capital lease obligations.. 111
Special termination benefits... 488 36 524 2,798
Loans payable.... 336 336
Notes payable.... 5,950 5,950
Bonds payable 190 190
Total current liabilities. 8,381 718 9,099 27,671
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations. .............coouiiiiiiiiieiiiecie s 352
Special termination benefits... 477 49 526 2,598
Loans payable 4,393 4,393
Bonds payable 2,060 2,060
Total noncurrent liabilities.. 6,930 49 6,979 2,950
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt 15,311 767 16,078 30,621
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.... 19,318 11,918 31,236 8,385
Unrestricted . 8,267 2,561 10,828 33,915
TOTAL NET ASSETS. $ 27,585 $ 14,479 $ 42,300
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiin e 255
NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES... $ 42,319

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Governmental
Other Total Activities-
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Engineer Funds Funds Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 11,102 $ 4,366 $ 15,468 $ 77,486
Other revenue 39 14 53 168
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiicceceec e 11,141 4,380 15,521 77,654
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 6,012 1,406 7,418 35,795
Contractual services and claims.. 721 1,344 2,065 8,749
Commaodities....... 722 200 922 9,667
Depreciation 1,614 800 2,414 1,743
Other expenses 629 2,964 3,593 13,358
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.. 9,698 6,714 16,412 69,312
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,443 (2,334) (891) 8,342
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
49 49
(158) (158) 11)
22 123 145
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets 5 1 6 (90)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES).....cccoiiiiiiiiiiieeecese e (82) 124 42 (101)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS......... 1,361 (2,210) (849) 8,241
Transfers in 999 2,201 3,200 519
Transfers out:
(103) (103)
(286) (286) (2,039)
2,386
2,360 (398) 1,962 9,107
TOTAL NET ASSETS
BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,225 14,877 33,193
TOTAL NET ASSETS
END OF YEAR.... .ottt sttt $ 27,585 $ 14,479 $ 42,300
Adjustment to reflect consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds..............c.cccceis 467
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES.........cccoeeee $ 2,429

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from CUStOMETS...........coiiuiiiiiieii e
Other operating cash reCeipts..........oooueeiiiiiiieeiie e
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services.... .
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES...........

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other funds...
Transfer to other funds
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan-net..............cccccoooiiiiiinciniennn.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ..ottt

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term debt..............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Receipts from capital grants
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt............ccooiiiiiiiiii s

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......coiiiiriieiteieeeiee et

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments.....
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR....................

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.........ccoooeviiiieiinnee

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-
Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
11,880 $ 4,353 § 16,233 § 168
44 15 59 72,334
(2,530) (4,583) (7,113) (36,092)
(6,418) (1,413) (7,831) (36,167)
2,976 (1,628) 1,348 243
999 2,201 3,200 519
(389) (389) (2,039)
15 15 1,816
999 1,827 2,826 296
5,991 5,991
272 123 395
62
(1,198) (309) (1,507) (2,120)
(7,586) (7,586) (51)
(280) (280) 11)
(2,801) (186) (2,987) (2,120)
8 8
8 8
1,182 13 1,195 (1,581)
6,930 2,739 9,669 55,673
8,112 $ 2,752 $ 10,864 $ 54,092

32



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)....

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation..........cciiiiiiiiiii e
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable-net............ccooooiiiiiiiiii e
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory of supplies..
Accounts payable
Due to Other fUNAS..........oiuiiiiiii e
Due to other governments
Accrued wages and benefits...
Special termination benefits....
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES...........

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital assets acquired through capital lease

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Other Total Governmental
Sanitary Enterprise Enterprise Activities-

Engineer Funds Funds Internal Service Funds
1,443 $ (2,334) (891) $ 8,342
1,614 800 2,414 1,743
4 (134) (130) 11)
(15) (15) (2,334)
(69) (69) (2,805)
O M ©
213 174 387 (63)
232 11 243 288
13 13 (1,503)
(87) (20) (107) (676)
(456) (40) (496) (2,729)
1,533 706 2,239 (8,099)
2,976 $ (1,628) 1,348 $ 243
$ $ 376
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Agency Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments............ccoccoevneineinnicnnenn. $ 213,066
Cash and investments-segregated accounts...........ccccoceveniieinnenns 36,071
TaXES FECRIVADI. ........eveeiciiie e 1,301,608
TOTAL ASSETS....oiiiiiicciitrseee e $ 1,550,745
LIABILITIES

Due to other governmMENts..........ccoovviverericieieese e $ 1,505,695
Other lI@bilitIeS. ......c.veeeieeeeieisr e 45,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 1,550,745

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the
County's justice system.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance or equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. The County uses the following fund types:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, intergovernmental receipts and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay principal and
interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are derived primarily
from property taxes.

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Permanent Funds: Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs. The County does not utilize permanent funds at this time.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services that are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources that have been collected by the County and will be distributed to other taxing districts
located within the County.

Private-purpose Trust Funds: Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for other trust arrangements
which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. For accounting measurement purposes, the
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private-purpose trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds. The County does
not utilize private-purpose trust funds at this time.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Reporting Entity: Cuyahoga County is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The three member board
of County Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal
officer. In addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in
Ohio Law. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which Cuyahoga County is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements (see Discretely Presented Component
Unit below for description) to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units, the MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component
Unit in the County's basic financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general
public and care for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The
Hospital’'s annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is
included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with
the County. The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the government. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested from the County
Auditor.

Basic Financial Statements:  Financial information of the County is presented as a set of basic financial
statements in the following format:

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The policy of the County is to allocate indirect expenses to functions in
the statement of activities. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have
been eliminated against the expenses and program revenue shown in the statement of activities.

Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
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are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. State and local government fund shared revenues
are recognized when the provider government recognizes its liability to the County. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales and use taxes, other tax, state local government funds, licenses and permits and
interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within
the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Human Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and expenditures
used to provide entitlement services, senior and adult programs, children and family services and employment
services to eligible county residents.

Health and Human Services Levies accounts for revenues from Health and Human Services Levies.
Levies and expenditures are determined by policies of the Board of County Commissioners.

County Board of Mental Retardation accounts for revenues primarily from the State and the special
mental retardation levy and expenditures thereof that are used for the benefit of the mentally retarded and
developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services accounts for revenues from Federal, State and County governments and
expenditures thereof as prescribed under the various health and community service functions including mental health
and alcohol and drug programs.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Sanitary Engineer accounts for the maintenance operations of county sewer lines. The office also enforces
compliance of county sanitary regulations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The Hospital has elected to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants, contributions and interest
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise
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funds and of the County’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap-in fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Major Special Revenue funds which are
budgeted annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, County Board of Mental Retardation
and Health and Community Services. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is approved by the
Board of County Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate budgetary report. The
Board of County Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the year as allowed by
State statute. The County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures/expenses and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other
costs. Elected officials and managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long
as amendments are within legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
Encumbrances are closed to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and
reappropriated at the start of the following year.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances — budget and actual (non-GAAP budgetary basis), comparing budget to actual results of operations for the
General fund and all annually budgeted major special revenue funds, is presented to demonstrate the County’s
compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflects only budget revisions formally adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of revenues and expenditures throughout the
year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current information. Formal revisions to previous
budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances
may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the accompanying statements. The County has chosen not to
include the variance column in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and
Actual.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, there is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such
budgets.

The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budgetary) as opposed to being closed
to unreserved fund balance/fund net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year (GAAP).
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A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Net Change in Fund Balances
(Amounts in 000's)
Health and County

Human Board of Health and
General Human Services Mental Community
Fund Services Levies Retardation Services
GAAP DASIS.....eoitiiiiiiiiiiiiiesiie e $ (23,623) $ $ 55734 $ 13,320 $ 11,446
Increase/decrease:
Accrued receivables at 12/31/04
not recognized in the 2004 budget...........cccceveenee (137,006) (82,630) (207,359) (91,287) (25,938)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/03
recognized in the 2004 budget...........c.ccceverrnnnne. 202,553 67,946 191,738 93,802 46,569
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/04 not recognized in the 2004 budget......... 63,789 82,630 165,787 90,272 54,072
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at
12/31/03 recognized in the 2004 budget............... (65,379) (30,412) (189,869) (100,930) (56,563)
Encumbrances at 12/31/04 recognized as
expenditures in the 2004 budget..........c.cceveernene (14,823) (19,823) (7,657) (27,616)
Encumbrances at 12/31/03 not recognized as
expenditures in the 2004 budget 10,028 20,367 9,319 17,312
Other GAAP adjustments“ .................... (35,380) (39,881) 3,073
BUAGEt BaSIS ... $ 159  $_(1,803) $ 16,031 $ 9912 $ 19,282

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized gain on
investments, net expenses for the Brownfield project, Gateway debt and agency funds reclassified as cash
for financial reporting purposes.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the statement of cash flows
as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all
highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form a pool
of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
investments accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Restricted Assets: The primary government’s restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
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well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County’s
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets, consisting of investments
restricted by donors, assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and interest
on the Hospital’s bonds when due.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, utility plant, buildings, structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles and infrastructure assets (primarily bridges constructed and
maintained by the County), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold is met. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life in excess of 4 years (3 years for Component Unit) and an
individual cost of more than $9,000. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost
is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date contributed.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The valuation
bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital assets.

Cost for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs and upgradings
that materially add to the value of the life of an asset and meet the above criteria are capitalized.

The County and the Component Unit depreciates capital assets on a straight-line basis using the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 5 to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 22 years
Vehicles 4 to 9 years

Infrastructure 20 to 69 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on construction projects in the
proprietary funds until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is amortized on the straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2004, capitalized interest was not material.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is not reported. In the government-wide financial statements and for
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences (current and noncurrent) is reported as a liability. The
County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as defined in
GASB Statement No. 16.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital's classification of patients under the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the
appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent review by a peer review organization. Differences
between the estimated amounts accrued at interim and final settlements are reported in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in the year of settlement. The Hospital recorded a favorable adjustment of
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$5.1 million in 2004 and a favorable adjustment of $9.4 million in 2003, due to prior year retroactive adjustments to
amounts previously estimated.

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 24% and 32%,
respectively, of the Hospital’'s net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
The Hospital believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that
may result from final settlements.

Charity Care: Throughout the admission, billing and collection processes, certain patients are identified by
the Hospital as qualifying for charity care. The Hospital provides care to these patients without charge or at amounts
less than its established rates. The charges foregone for charity care provided by the Hospital, totaling $121 million,
represents 11.4% of gross charges in 2004, and are not reported as revenue. The Hospital accepts certain indigent
Ohio residents and all residents from the County regardless of their ability to pay.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balance/unrestricted net assets at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the
following year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Transfers out are further categorized as
transfers for debt retirement or other purposes. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies transferred to the
Debt Service fund. Other transfers represent all other transfers out.

Fund Balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, the County records reservations of portions of
fund balances that are legally segregated for specific future uses or do not represent available, spendable resources
and, therefore, cannot be appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. Employees’ health insurance is provided through a
commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional risk to the
County, except for the prescription drug plan which is self-insured. The County maintains an Internal Service fund to
account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation benefits through a retrospective rating plan with the State of
Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured claims if information prior to the issuance of the basic financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, the County has designated a portion of the fund
balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio law, to provide for claims and judgements not covered by the various
County insurance policies.

New Accounting Standards: During May 2002, the GASB issued Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Certain Organizations are Component Units, an amendment to GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, which clarifies existing accounting guidance and provides greater consistency in accounting for organizations
that are closely related to a primary government. The standard, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2003, provides criteria for determining whether certain organizations should be reported as component units
based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a state or local government. The County has
determined that GASB Statement No. 39 has no impact on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. Under provisions of this statement, a capital asset is considered
impaired when its service has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement also clarifies and establishes
accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal periods
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beginning after December 15, 2004. The County and the Component Unit have not determined the impact, if any,
that this statement will have on its financial statements.

During August 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should
account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension
benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB.
Statement No. 45 also establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer
participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and for certain employers,
the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. Statement No. 45 will not be effective for the County until the
year ending December 31, 2007, and as such, the County has not determined the impact that this statement will have
on its financial statements.

During December 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Legislation, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. This statement clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legislation
restriction is one that a party external to government-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary — can
compel a government to honor. The Statement states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation restriction
should be reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified
by the enabling legislation or if a government has other cause for reconsideration. Although the determination that a
particular restriction is not legally enforceable may cause a government to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead a government to the same conclusion for all enabling legislation
restrictions. This Statement also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements if new enabling
legislation replaces existing enabling legislation or if legal enforceability is reevaluated. Finally, this Statement
requires governments to disclose the portion of total net assets that is restricted by enabling legislation. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for the County for the year ending December 31, 2006, and as such, the
County has not determined the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial statements.

NOTE C - Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies of the General fund, certain Agency funds and the Hospital
are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in specifically segregated
investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and investments.
Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments account. Amounts
reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally consist of bank balances,
certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agency obligations, municipal obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the balance sheet — governmental funds and the statement
of net assets — proprietary funds as "Due to other funds" and are offset against the General fund’s equity in pooled
cash and investments.
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A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2004,

follows:
(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
GENEIAl ... uuueeeieie e eeeeeeerereeeeees $ $ 99,511
Due From:

Special ReveNUE ...........coccuvvieviiiiieiieeeeeee, 39,881

ENterprise ......ccccuvevveeiiiiccie e 15

Internal Service.........ccocvveviieiiiee e 2,039 (41,935)
Net General ... 57,576
Other major governmental ..............ccocceeeeiiiinneen. 105,952
Other governmental ...........cccceeeiiiiiiieiee e 68,598
Major enterpriSe..........oeoveeiiiiieee e 8,112
Other enterprise...........coovcvvveiieeeieiecieee e 2,752
Internal Service.........covviiiiiiieee e 54,092
Total government-wide .........cccooeevviiiiiiiiiieieieeen 297,082
AGENCY .o 213,066
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ...... $ 510,148

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts owed by the Enterprise funds will be paid
through increased Airport rental charges. Amounts owed by the Internal Service funds will be paid through collection
of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$79.7 million and the bank balances were $81.6 million. Any differences between the account bank balances and
investments and the cash and investments recorded in the financial statements are due to normal reconciling items.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105%
of the public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and
loan associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located
in the County.

All monies are deposited in the Cuyahoga County banks designated by the Board of County
Commissioners. Interim funds not needed for immediate expenditures are invested in interest bearing or non-interest
bearing accounts or invested pursuant to the Statement of Investment Policy adopted by the Cuyahoga County
Investment Advisory Committee.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure the County’s deposits might not be recovered. The
County’s bank deposits at December 31, 2004 totaled $81.6 million and were subject to the following categories of
custodial risk:
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(Amounts in 000’s)

(0 aToTo] [ =10 =1 [4=Tc [P URURRRRN $ 72,754
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution’s trust

department (O.R.C. 135.18) but not in the County’s name............... 6,458
Total amount subject to custodial risK..........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiice, 79,212
Amount insured (FDIC INSUraNCe) ........cc.eeeeeeeeiiciiiiiee e 2,410
Total bank DalanCes...........ccueieieceie e $ 81,622

Component Unit

Deposits: All monies are deposited to the Hospital's banks or trust companies designated by the Board of
Trustees. Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in interest bearing or non-interest bearing
accounts or U.S. government obligations. Banks or trust companies shall furnish security for all such deposits,
whether interest bearing or non-interest bearing, except that no such security is required for U.S. government
obligations.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the Hospital’s deposits might not be recovered.
The Hospital’'s bank deposits at December 31, 2004 totaled $8.1 million and were subject to the following categories
of custodial risk:

(Amounts in 000’s)

[0 aToTe] [ =TT =1 [4=Tc [ $ 7,798
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging

institution’s trust department, but not in the Hospital’'s name............. 68
Total amount subject to custodial risK..........ccooeveieiiiiiiiiiei, 7,866
AMOUNTINSUIEd.......oveiiiiiiice e 200
Total bank DalanCes...........ccueeiieceie e $ 8,066

At December 31, 2004, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital's deposits was $8.4 million.
The difference from the reported amount represents outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items.

Primary Government

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the ORC. Eligible investments
include U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, obligations of U.S.
government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political subdivisions of the State of
Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined in the ORC, State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual funds registered under the Federal
Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the use of reverse repurchase
agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of 30 days or less and all
investments to maturities of not more than 5 years.
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At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Repurchase Agreements ...........coooiiiiiiiie e $ 70,700
U. S, TrEASUIMES ...ttt 6,047
U.S. Government AGENCIES .........covuiiriiiiiieiieeiee ettt 420,496
Municipal Obligations..........cccccoeiieiiiiiienieeee e 1,200
Total Primary Government Investments $ 498,443

Interest Rate Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy limits the purchase of
securities to a stated maturity of no more than 5 years from the date of purchase unless the security is matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the County. The purchase of any security with a maturity of greater than 5 years must
be approved in advance by the Investment Advisory Committee.

At December 31, 2004, the County’s investments had maturities as follows:

Maturities Percentage
LeSS than 1 YEaI ... s 39.78%
T HO 4 YBAIS ..t 60.22%

Further, the Statement of Investment Policy specifies that the portfolio be structured to diversify investments to
reduce the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific
type of investment. Each investment type is limited to a maximum percentage of the total average portfolio.

Credit Risk. The ORC and the County’s Statement of Investment Policy govern the minimum investment
rating for each type of eligible investment security. Commercial Paper and Banker's Acceptances must have a
minimum rating of “A-1”" or “AA”.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The County has implemented several controls to mitigate custodial risk. All security
transactions are executed on a delivery versus payment basis. All securities are delivered to the County’s custodian
bank before payment is made to the broker dealer for the security. Securities delivered to the custodian are held in
the name of the County. If market conditions or liquidity needs require the sale of a security, the County will identify
securities for sale that mitigate the amount of market loss. With repurchase agreements, the County requires that the
counterparty deliver securities with a market value at least equal to 102% of the purchase price of the securities. If
the counterparty fails to repurchase the securities per the terms of the agreement, the County reserves the right to
sell the securities in the market.

Component Unit

At December 31, 2004, fair value of the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Fair Value/Carrying Value
Cash and iNVESIMENES .........oooiiiiiieeee e $ 153,809
U. S. Treasuries 727
U.S. Government AGENCIES .........coiuiiiiiiiieeiieeniee ettt 79,430
Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Pools)...........cccccveeiieennnes 8,810
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 1,596
Corporates .......ccoveeeeveeeeieeeeecieee e 4,189
Total Hospital Investments ..o $ 248,561
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Interest Rate Risk. The Hospital’s investment policies limit investment portfolio to maturities of five years or
less. All of the Hospital’s investments at December 31, 2004 have effective maturity dates of less than five years.

Credit Risk. All of the Hospital's investments are rated AAA by Standard and Poor's. The Hospital's
investment policies are governed by State of Ohio statutes that authorize the Hospital to invest in U.S. government
obligations. The Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Federal Mortgage pools are investments that are
grandfathered from previous statutes that allowed such investments. These investments have an effective maturity
date of less than one year.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Hospital will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Hospital's investments, only the repurchase agreements are exposed to
custodial risk. Repurchase agreements (included in the U. S. Government Agencies) at December 31, 2004 totaling
$9 million are uninsured, are not registered in the Hospital’'s name and are held by the financial institution’s trust
department.

NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2004 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)
Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds:

GeNEral FUNG ... $ 41,935 $ 2,208

HUMAN SEIVICES .....ovveeieeeeieeeee e 67,735

Health and Human Services Levies...........ccccceeeeeeee. 40,120

County Board of Mental Retardation .......................... 1,049

Health and Community Services ..........cccccvvvveeeeennnnns 14,209

Other governmental funds ..........ccccceeeeiiiiiiiieec e 606
Total Governmental FuNdS ...........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeees 82,055 85,807
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary EnNgineer ... 297

Other enterprise funds..........ccocceviiiiiee i 46 37
Total Enterprise FUNAS.........ccoviiiiiiiiiieicc e 46 334
Internal Service FUNAS: .........ccovvvieeeeiveeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 6,867 2,827
LI =1 £, $ 88,968 $ 88,968
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A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Fund Types Receivables Payables

Major Governmental Funds:

HUmMan Services ... $ 39,881 $
Total Major Governmental Funds ...........ccccoooiiiieneeennis 39,881

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

County AIrPOIt ... 15
Cuyahoga County Information System....................... o 31
Total Nonmajor Enterprise Funds............ccccooiiiiinninnnni. 15 31

Internal Service Funds:

Maintenance Garage...........cocceeveviieeiiiiiieiniee e 897 35

Data Processing Center ..........ccccovveveeeiieiiiiiiieee e 1,142

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies .........ccccccceeennee 121

CommuUNICAtIONS.........ccviiiieee e 71

Self-Funded Workers Compensation.......................... 1,950
Total Internal Service FUNAS ..........ccccouvieeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 2,039 2177
TOMAIS ..o $ 41,935 $ 2208

The receivables represent amounts overdrawn from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General
fund.

The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for computer charges from various
General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent unpaid charges at December 31,
2004.
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NOTE E - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Governmental Activities: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land.... 38,034 $ 8,027 $ 1,626 44,535
Construction in progress.. 90,822 24,915 74,257 41,480
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.. 128,856 32,942 75,783 86,015
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements...........cocoviireiniiirenieeieeee e 3,500 8,825 2 12,323
Buildings, structures and improvements. 480,068 61,365 521 540,912
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 46,025 5,281 1,298 50,008
Vehicles 14,889 1,859 1,276 15,472
Infrastructure.... . 432,191 8,014 440,205
Total capital assets, being depreciated...........cc.ccoooveiieeenne. 976,673 85,344 3,097 1,058,920
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,349 490 1 1,838
Buildings, structures and improvements.... 219,967 15,887 221 235,633
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.... 34,551 2,692 1,154 36,089
Vehicles 11,593 1,112 1,268 11,437
Infrastructure 228,218 12,386 240,604
Total accumulated depreciation 495,678 32,567 2,644 525,601
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net. 480,995 52,777 453 533,319
Governmental activities capital assets, net... 609,851 $ 85,719 $ 76,236 619,334
(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Business-type Activities: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
5752 § $ 5,752
Construction in progress 6,958 986 6,774 1,170
Total capital assets, not being depreciated. 12,710 986 6,774 6,922
Land improvements.... 10,850 10,850
Utility plant.................. 46,859 6,774 53,633
Buildings, structures and improvements 14,757 9 14,766
Furniture, fixtures and equipment... 2,477 26 2,503
Vehicles 3,582 487 121 3,948
Total capital assets, being depreciated..............ccccocvirinnne 78,525 7,296 121 85,700
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.... 7,844 348 8,192
Utility plant 26,066 928 26,994
Buildings, structures and improvements... 7,339 685 8,024
Furniture, fixtures and equipment... 2,181 79 2,260
Vehicles 2,734 374 121 2,987
Total accumulated depreciation 46,164 2,414 121 48,457
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 32,361 4,882 37,243
Business-type activities capital assets, net.... 45,071 $ 5,868 $ 6,774 44,165
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Amounts in (000's)

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,

Component Unit: 2004 Additions Deductions 2004
$ 8,954 $ 680 $ 9,634
62,043 37,302 88,252 11,093
70,997 37,982 88,252 20,727
Land improvements . 7,699 130 7,829
Buildings, structures and improvements.............cccccveeens 374,189 71,508 445,697
Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........ccccoeoeeiiiieeennes 191,831 22,580 1,102 213,309
VENICIES......oiiiiieiieceeee et 7,367 2,361 9,728
Total capital assets, being depreciated..............ccccecvenneennn. 581,086 96,579 1,102 676,563

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements............oooueeeiiiie e 6,656 204 6,860
Buildings, structures and improvements... 247,713 17,449 265,162
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.......... . 161,870 10,585 1,096 171,359
Vehicles........ccoovevieeveeeieeeieeie . 2,192 566 2,758
Total accumulated depreciation...........cccocceeeevieeeiiiieeeees 418,431 28,804 1,096 446,139
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............c.coceeeee 162,655 67,775 6 230,424
Component unit capital assets, nNet...........cccccceevienieeiiennnen. $ 233,652 $ 105,757 $ 88,258 251,151

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Health and safety...

Capital assets held by the government’s internal
service funds are charged to the various functions

Total depreciation expenses charged to

Business-type Activities:

Total depreciation expenses charged to

General goOVEINMENT.........coiiiiiiiiee e
JUAICIAL ..o
Development..........coo oo
SOCIAl SEIVICES......vvuiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeereee e

PUDBIIC WOTKS... e

based on their usage of the assets.........ccccccvveveeeeirrenn.n.

governmental activities.........cccoooiiiiini

Sanitary ENgineer........ccccoo i
County AIFPOrt.......eeeeiiee e
Huntington Park Garage..............ccccoeeieiiiccceieeeeeee

business-type activities...........cccccoviiiiiiiiiii e,

(Amounts in 000’s)

. %

2,921
9,391
3
5,685
186
12,738

1,743

32,567

1,614
414
386

2414

. $
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A summary of construction commitments for governmental activities at December 31, 2004 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2004 Commitments
General government... e $ 14,436 $ 5182 $ 9,254
Judicial........ccoeeieinnne 40,999 25,448 15,551
SOCIAl SEIVICES. ... .eeiiiieiieee st 2,406 954 1,452
PUDBIIC WOTKS.......ueiviiiiriinieite et 26,560 9,896 16,664
TO IS, ..ottt e $ 84,401 $ 41,480 $ 42,921
The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.
A summary of construction commitment for business-type activities at December 31, 2004 follows:
(Amounts in 000's)
Authorized
Project Expended as of Future
Business-type Activity Amount December 31, 2004 Commitments
Sanitary ENGINEET.........ccooviiiiieecieee e $ 2,491 $ 868 $ 1,623
1T o o] ¢ SRS 789 302 487
TOtAIS. ..t s $ 3,280 $ 1,170 $ 2,110

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through special
assessments and grants.

The Hospital has future contractual commitments for the construction of various projects totaling
$14.8 million. The projects are being funded with remaining bond proceeds amounting to $1.2 million and
operating funds.
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NOTE F - Debt and Other Obligations

Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2004 is provided below:

(Amounts in 000's)

Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absence: $ 21,382 $ 39,399 $ 38,371 $ 22,410 $ 2,241
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007............cccoveeerereenniineinees 7.75% 52,514 17,416 35,098 17,896
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2029 25,130 1,857 1,887 25,100 1,545
2003 Installment Purchase Agreement-Due thru 2010, [$13,742]...........c...... 3.72%-3.87% 11,698 1,890 9,808 1,773
Loans Payable:
1989 Environmental Protection Agency-Due thru 2007, [$494]...........crrers None 82 28 54 28
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan
- Due thru 2016, [$5,000]. None 3,250 250 3,000 250
Total Loans Payable. 3,332 278 3,054 278
General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted:
1983 Building Improvements-Due thru 2004(1).. 9.375% 875 875
1983 Health Service Facilities-Due thru 2004(1). . 9.375% 370 370
1983 Auditorium-Due thru 2004(1) 9.375% 175 175
1983 Street Improvements-Due thru 2004(1) 9.375% 50 50
1983 Sanitary Improvements-Due thru 2004(1).. 9.375% 200 200
1993  Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012, [§75,395] 2.20%-5.25% 28,585 3,435 25,150 3,610
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018, [$12,000]... 2.75%-5.65% 8,890 395 8,495 415
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015, [$35,145] 3.75%-5.50% 18,500 2,525 15,975 2,650
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020, [$96,615]... 4.30%-5.75% 87,650 3,420 84,230 3,580
2004 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2024, [$84,490] 2.50%-5.25% 84,490 84,490 2,575
Total General Obligation Bonds-Unvoted.... 145,295 84,490 11,445 218,340 12,830
General Obligation Bonds-Voted:
1991 Jail Il Series - Due thru 2006, [$5,086]...........ccourmrrrrermerremmmnerreisenenns 6.95%-7.05% 5,086 1,570 3,516 1,819
1993 Jail Facilities and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2013, [$65,254] 2.20%-5.25% 21,869 2,280 19,589 2,390
Total General Obligation Bonds-Voted 26,955 3,850 23,105 4,209
Total Tax Supported Bond 172,250 84,490 15,295 241,445 17,039
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022, [$40,000].. Variable 30,400 30,400
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022, [$35,000]. 8.625% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023, [$45,000]................ 4.45%-7.60% 34,615 1,535 33,080 1,635
1998 Brownfield Economic Redevelopment
-Due thru 2018, [$15,465] 5.31%-6.75% 13,125 13,125
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Due thru 2030, [$2,855]...........ccoeveene 6.886% 2,835 10 2,825 10
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004A Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2011 [$10,750] 1.50%-4.25% 10,750 10,750 1,415
2004 Gateway Arena Project Series 2004B Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2022 [$19,200] Variable 19,200 19,200
2004 Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Project Refunding Bonds
Series 2004C -Due thru 2018 [$12,880]...........cerrevveveveermmmmmreeerrenees 1.50%-5.10% 12,880 12,880 725
Total Revenue Bonds 115,975 42,830 45,070 113,735 3,785
Bond premium/discount related to various issues-net.................c.cocueue 6,077 89 5,988
Total Bonds Payable. 288,225 133,397 60,454 361,168 20,824
Capital Projects Fund:
Bond Anticipation Notes:
2003 Capital Improvement Notes-Due in 2004, [$2,440]...........oc.convrverrreenne 2.00% 2,440 2,440
Total Capital Projects Fund 2,440 2,440
Internal Service Funds:
Compensated Absence: 1,849 2,390 2,234 2,005 201
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007............ccccvevvrevreneerenens 7.75% 8,125 2,729 5,396 2,798
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2009 138 376 51 463 111
Total Internal Service Funds, 10,112 2,766 5,014 7,864 3,110
Total Governmental Activities. $ 414,833 $ 177,419 $ 127,750 $ 464,502 $ 47,667
(1) Combined original issue amount $34,395
(CONTINUED)
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(Amounts in 000's)

Due
Year Interest Balance Balance Within
Issued County Obligation, [Original Issue Amount] Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absence $ 361§ 621 $ 581 § 401 $ 40
2001 Special Termination Benefits-Due thru 2007 7.75% 1,546 496 1,050 524
Various Loans Payable-Due thru 2019 4.04% - 7.00% 6,016 1,287 4,729 336
Bond Anticipation Notes:
2002 Olmsted Township Water and Sewer-Due in 2005 [$5,950]........cccovvvrrrennne 2.50% 5,950 5,950 5,950
2003 Capital Improvement Notes-Due in 2004, [$1,082] 2.00% 1,082 1,082
2003 Olmsted Township Water and Sewer-Due in 2004 [$5,028]...............cruevveennee 2.00% 5,028 5,028
Total Notes Payable. 6,110 5,950 6,110 5,950 5,950
Self-Supporting Bonds Payable:
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020, [$1,040] 4.55%-5.55% 940 35 905 40
2003 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012 [$1,500] 2.00%-3.55% 1,500 155 1,345 150
Total Self-Supporting Bonds Payable 2,440 190 2,250 190
Total Business-type Activiites $ 16,473 $ 6571 $ 8,664 $ 14,380 $ 7,040
Component Unit
Compensated absence $ 22,633 $ 4,552 $ 2,032 $ 25,153 $ 2,093
Amounts due third party payors (See Note B)...........cccccoueurerinciiinriinniicnins 42,544 761 1,870 41,435 6,872
Claims payable (See Note J) 41,735 18,059 14,020 45,774 21,925
Various Capital Lease Obligations-Due thru 2007 4.958%-4.96% 4,538 2,244 2,294 812
2004 Cuyahoga County Sanitary Engineer Loan -Due thru 2018...........cccccoveevinnne. None 131 40 91 7
2003 General and Professional Liability Note -Due in 2005............cccovevnrrinrrennnens 3.75% 3,400 4,576 3,400 4,576 4,576
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027, [§70,000].............evveeerrmeeumreermreesenereenns 3.90%-5.80% 50,842 192 4,400 46,634 4,615
1997 Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2019, [$77,525] 4.10%-5.50% 68,520 307 255 68,572 265
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2029, [$56,995] 6.125%-6.15% 56,806 8 56,814
2003 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds
-Due thru 2033, [$30,545] Variable 30,545 535 30,010 580
Total Bonds 206,713 507 5,190 202,030 5,460
Total Component Unit $ 321,563 $ 28,586 $ 28,796 $ 321,353 $ 41,745

Capital Lease Information:

The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital

leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2004:

(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Internal Service
Year Activities funds

$ 3742  § 132

3,728 107

3,756 107

3,796 94

3,824 78
2010-2014.. 14,032
2015-2019.. 5,272
2020-2024.. 73
2025-2029.. 58

Total Minimum Lease Payments... 38,281 518

Amount Representing Interest. (13,181) (55)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments.... $ 25100 $ 463
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The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit's equipment capital leases and loan obligation at December 31, 2004:

(Amounts in 000's)
Year Equipment and Loan Obligation
2005ttt et e e e teeaeenen $ 920
2006.... .ttt et h e et e et e eteeae et eebe et et e areeaeenean 786
2007 . ettt ettt sttt e re st et eaeeteerenaeneareas 785
2008.... e ettt e be et e e eaeenearan 7
2009, et ettt et reebe s a et e e eresrenaeneas 7
2010-2014 ..ottt reereeraens 33
207152019ttt e e re e 26
Total Minimum Lease Payments...........ccceiveeiiiiieneisiseeee e 2,564
Amount Representing INterest........ ..o (179)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments...........cccccocevvieneneicnenienns $ 2,385

As of December 31, 2004, the net book value of the capital assets recorded as capital leases in the
governmental activities funds and Component Unit were $46.8 million and $9.2 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, notes, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2004 are
as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2005, $ 22875 $ 23,126 $ 6,476 $ 227
20086.....ccueeeiterieeieee e 22,915 21,467 546 213
2007 .. 25,566 17,355 555 199
2008t 21,828 21,091 575 184
2009, 22,701 20,194 591 167
2010-2014 ..o 94,202 81,385 2,729 553
2015-2019. ... 93,140 34,747 1,377 153
2020-2024.......ooieeeeeee e 63,875 8,838 80 5
2025-2029.....cceeiieieeeee e 800 174
2030 e 140 7

TOtAIS. e $ 368,042 $ 228,384 $ 12,929 $ 1,701

In May 2003 the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $10 million from
the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). The money is provided through the state infrastructure bank fund,
which are federal funds, to be used to improve a road and reconstruct a bridge. The loan will carry a 0% interest rate
for the first 12 months and a 3% rate thereafter, through 2013. The County pledges its motor vehicle license tax as
the source of repayment. The County has not received any of this funding through 2004, therefore, a liability has not
been recorded. State Issue Il and ODOT monies are used first for this project and when funding is exhausted the
loan will be exercised for this purpose.

In January 2005, the County Commissioners authorized by resolution a loan in the amount of $2.6 million
from the Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) on a taxable basis and in turn, loaning the funds
received from Fannie Mae to private developers for the purpose of constructing housing projects. As security for
repayment of the borrowing, the County will pledge loan repayments from the private developers, non-tax revenues
and provide collateral in the form of cash or a letter of credit equal to 25% of the principal amount of the borrowing.
Borrowing must be repaid in full within three to five years with periodic principal and interest payments to be made
during the term of the borrowing. The County has not received nor loaned any of this funding through the date of this
audit.
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At December 31, 2004, the bonded debt service requirements of the Component Unit are as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Component Unit

Due In Principal Interest
2005.... e e e $ 5460 § 9,888
2006......eceeeeeeeee e e e 5,700 9,646
2007 .. e e 5,985 9,386
2008..... e e e e 6,270 9,118
2009, et ettt 6,575 8,821
20710-20714 e e 38,405 38,852
201572019ttt e et 49,320 28,470
2020-2024 ... e 37,475 17,822
2025-2029.....cce ettt 49,325 6,786

2030-2033.....oci e 6,335
TOtal e 210,850 $ 138,789

Unamortized difference between reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of

previously defeased debt............ccooiiiiiiiiiii i (7,092)
Unamortized diSCOUNL..........cccuvveeiie e (1,728)
Present value of net minimum payments..........cccccooovivieiieinnnieennen. $ 202,030

Component Unit Swap Agreement: The Component Unit entered into various interest rate swap
agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $142 million. The Hospital pays a rate equal to the Bond
Market Association Municipal Index (the BMA SWAP Index), an index of seven-day high-grade tax-exempt variable
rate demand obligations or a fixed rate of 1.5% or 3.5%. In return, the Hospital receives a fixed rate of 5.4% or a rate
based on the BMA SWAP Index or 75% of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The interest rate swap
arrangement with an effective date of March 2003 and a notional amount of $30.5 million includes an option whereby
the counterparty can terminate the transaction. The net interest savings for 2004 was $1.5 million and is included as
a reduction to interest expense. At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the swap agreements based on current
settlement prices is $1.4 million due from the counterparty and is included in other assets. The decrease of $2.1
million in the fair value of the net swap assets during 2004 is recorded as unrestricted investment earnings in the
statement of activities. Only the net difference is exchanged with the counterparty and the notional amount in not
exchanged.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term general obligation bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from
the Debt Service fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by
these funds. General obligation bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax
within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax
levy; however, each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The
revenue bonds are secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$88.1 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate. Balances for compensated absences are
kept at various department levels, therefore, the data is only combined annually for reporting purposes. Since data
for increases and decreases in compensated absences is not available, amounts are estimated based on sample
data.
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Payments for compensated absences are made from the following major funds: The General fund, Human
Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major funds:
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, Community Development and Other.

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $24.4 million
liability recorded in the statement of net assets (Governmental Activities) at December 31, 2004 was based were as
follows:

Amount

Governmental Activities Hours (in 000's)
SHCK ettt ettt ettt e e e et e e s e e e ereeeanbaaeaanaeas 27143 $ 526
Vacation.... 1,146,019 22,212
Overtime.... 86,494 1,677
o) - | USSP 1,259,656 $ 24,415

The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $.4 million liability
recorded in the statement of net assets (Business-type Activities) at December 31, 2004 was based were as follows:

Amount

Business-type Activities Hours (in 000's)
SHCK ettt 524 $ 10
VACALION. ...ttt 19,727 365
(@17 5 (10 1< 1,417 26
LI ¢ | O USSRt 21668 $ 401

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001, the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulated service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under OPERS (see
Note G) for certain employees close to retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
Program (ERIP) was approved for participating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
County Commissioners. Eligible employees had until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of June
30, 2002, 1,127 employees had accepted the program resulting in a total cost of $101.3 million payable to OPERS.
In addition, the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted a plan in 1999 which allows for participation by
eligible CBMR employees in OPERS and STRS. Payments for purchased credit were paid in full prior to an
employees participation before 2002. In 2002, CBMR chose to make payments on a quarterly basis for OPERS and
annual basis for STRS. The activity related to the CBMR ERIP is included with the governmental activities amounting
to $1.2 million. This cost and the related obligation allocated to the County’s funds and Governmental Activities are
as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental ACHVILIES.............oeveveveiieeeeee ettt $ 86,458
Internal SErviCe FUNAS.........cooveeieeeee e 13,556
BUSINESS-tYPE ACHVILIES. ...c.iiveeicececeee s 2,496
B o] ] TR O $ 102,510

Payments for special termination benefits are made from the following major funds: The General fund,
Human Services, County Board of Mental Retardation, Health and Community Services and the following non-major
funds: Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, and Other.

Payments are made to OPERS in quarterly installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The
following summarizes the future payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the
employees who had elected to participate in the plan at December 31, 2004:
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Governmental Business-type

Year Activities Activities

2005, ettt sttt aes $ 23293 § 592
2008.......c0eueieiiieeiere ettt ettt aeaes 18,274 467
2007 ..ottt ettt ettt et et ten s nanaas 2,568 88
Total Termination Benefit Payments.... 44,135 1,147
Amount Representing INtErest...........ocovverierienesseses s (3,641) (97)
NEE AMOUNL........eee ettt re st enn s $ 40,494 $ 1,050

Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2004 is $24.7 million. The remaining proceeds
from the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

The County issued $74 million of General Obligation (limited tax) Refunding Bonds dated April 21, 2005 to
advance refund a portion of the County’s $35.1 million General Obligation (limited tax) Various Purpose Improvement
Bonds, Series 1995, and advance refund a portion of the County’s $96.6 million General Obligation (limited tax)
Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2000. The proceeds of the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance
refund $13.3 million of the Series 1995 bonds that are callable in November 2005 and $60.1 million of the Series
2000 bonds that are callable in December 2011. The non-callable portion of the refunded bonds, which total $26.8
million, remained outstanding at the time the Series 2005 Refunding Bonds were issued. The County advance
refunded the bonds to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments
on the old and new debt) of $3.1 million.

Current Refunding of Revenue Bonds: In February 2004, the outstanding portion of the $40 million variable
rate issue for the Taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds Series 2004B (Gateway Arena Project) was
refunded and replaced with refunding bonds. The original issue was split into two series, a $10.75 million Series
2004A fixed rate bond and a $19.2 million Series 2004B variable rate bond. The decision to fix only a portion of the
refunded issue was made to provide some diversity to the County's debt portfolio. Leaving a large portion of the
issue with a variable rate enabled the county to potentially realize increased interest savings as long-term rates
continue to exhibit historically low trends. The Series 2004B variable rate bonds will bear interest initially at the rate
determined under the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Underwriters and thereafter at the
weekly rate determined by the Remarketing Agent for each weekly interest period.

The outstanding portion of the Brownfield Economic Development Revenue Bonds was refunded in
February 2004 as part of the County's debt refinancing strategy. The original issue was refunded and replaced with a
$12.88 million Series 2004C issue. The average weighted rate of the new Brownfield Refunding issue is expected to
be 4.57% over the remaining life of the bonds. Refunding at the lower rate will result in a 30% savings in interest
costs related to this issue.

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
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scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($7.1 million at
December 31, 2004) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Effective September 1, 1999, the County issued $57 million of Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 1999 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 1999 Bonds are
being used to finance the construction of a 150-bed long-term care facility and acquire, construct, renovate, equip
and improve operating rooms and other hospital facilities.

Effective March 13, 2003, the County issued $30.5 million of Hospital Improvement Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (The MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2003 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series
2003 Bonds are being used to pay costs of constructing and equipping an administrative building and the Critical
Care Pavilion. The bonds bear interest at a variable rate (not to exceed 10%) determined weekly as established by
the Remarketing Agent based on current market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until
2033. The rate at December 31, 2004 was 2.04%.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Hospital entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the Hospital entered into an Irrevocable
Letter of Credit (Letter of Credit) issued by a local bank that expires on March 22, 2008. Under the terms of the Letter
of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter
of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2004, the County had approximately 81 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2004, there were 40 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to ten years. Total rental payments for 2004 amounted to $5.1 million,
of which $.9 million was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2005 through 2009 are
$8.8 million of which $2.9 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 will be $3.1 million, $2.6 million, $1.6 million $1.1 million, and $.4 million
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2020. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
periods ranging from one to five years. Rent expense totaled $1.5 million in 2004. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2004 are as follows: 2005 - $1.1 million; 2006 -
$1 million; 2007 - $1 million; 2008 - $1 million; 2009 - $.9 million; 2010-2014 - $3.7 million; 2015-2019 - $2 million;
2020 - $.1 million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $32.9 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of bonds of two issues, the original outstanding
amount of which was $38.4 million of Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds and $31 million of Stadium Revenue
Bonds. As of December 31, 2004, the outstanding balance on these Gateway bond guarantees, including future
interest payments, was $6.7 million on the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (payable through September 1,
2005), and $33.6 million on the Stadium Revenue Bonds payable through September 15, 2014). The County has not
been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds. In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the
Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004, Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.

57



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

As of December 31, 2004, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were approximately $274 million, $2.1 billion and $235.3 million,
respectively.

NOTE G - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits
Primary Government

OPERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees under three separate retirement plans
administered by the OPERS. The plans are the Traditional Pension Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; the Member-Directed Plan — a defined contribution pension plan; and the Combined Plan — a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan. OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and post-retirement healthcare benefits, to the
Traditional and Combined Plan members however, healthcare benefits are not statutorily guaranteed. Participants in
the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefits to the OPERS Board of Trustees. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement
System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-2085.

OPERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement
employees. In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the OPERS law enforcement program into two separate
divisions with separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification
which consists of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members
of the law enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to
contribute 9%. The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is
16.7%. The total employer contributions from the County to OPERS (excluding amounts paid in 2004, 2003 and
2002 for ERIP — See Note F) for the years 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $49 million, $34.4 million, and $47.9 million ,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. In 2003, OPERS offered to change its billing cycle
from quarterly to monthly in exchange for a deferral of the 2™ quarter of 2003 employer contributions. The County
agreed to participate and deferred paying its April 2003, May 2003 and June 2003 employer charges until December
2004, December 2005 and December 2006, respectively. The deferral amounts to $3.4 million for April 2003, $5.2
million for May 2003 and $3.4 million for June 2003.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH OPERS: In addition to the pension benefits described
previously, OPERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years
of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also
available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health
care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement
health care for both 2004 and 2003 was 4% and 5%, respectively, of covered payroll. During 2004 and 2003, $14.4
million and $12.6 million, respectively, of the County’s total contribution to OPERS was used for postretirement
benefits. At December 31, 2004, the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for
OPEB under OPERS for any retirees, terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions based on the latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
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Assets Valuation Method: All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial valuation purposes, a
smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of
unrealized market appreciation or depreciation on investment assets.

Investment Return: The investment return assumption for 2003 was 8%.

Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4% base increase, were assumed to range from
.5% 10 6.3%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase at the projected wage inflation rate plus an
additional factor ranging from 1% to 6% for the next 8 years. In subsequent years (9 and beyond) health
care costs were assumed to increase at 4% (the projected wage inflation rate).

On September 9, 2004 the OPERS Retirement Board adopted a Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP)
with an effective date of January 1, 2007. The HCPP restructures OPERS’ health care coverage to improve the
financial solvency of the fund in response to skyrocketing health care costs.

Under the HCPP, retirees eligible for heath care coverage will receive a graded monthly allocation based on
their years of services at retirement. The Plan incorporates a cafeteria approach, offering a broad range of health
care options that allow benefit recipients to use their monthly allocation to purchase health care coverage customized
to meet their individuals needs. If the monthly allocation exceeds the cost of the options selected, the excess is
deposited into a Retiree Medical Account that can be used to fund future health care expenses.

At December 31, 2004, there were 369,885 active participants contributing to the plan. The County’s
actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2003 equaled the actual amount contributed to OPERS by the County. In
addition, at December 31, 2003, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets available for OPEB approximated $10.5
billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based on the actuarial method
used, were $26.9 billion and $16.4 billion, respectively.

STRS OHIO PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation
(CBMR) participate in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). STRS Ohio is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement plan. Employee benefits are available under three separate retirement plans
administered by STRS Ohio. The plans are the defined benefit plan, the defined contribution plan and a combined
plan, which allows member contributions to be allocated by members and employer contributions to be used to fund a
defined benefit payment. STRS Ohio provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefits to the STRS Ohio Board of Trustees. STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial
report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System
of Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS OHIO FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and
employer contributions. Employees were required to contribute 10% of covered payroll. The employer contribution
rate is 14% of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to
STRS Ohio for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $ 1.8 million, $1.9 million, and $2 million and, respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS Ohio also provides OPEB to plan members. The qualifications required to receive benefits
replicate OPERS. STRS Ohio has established a Health Care Stabilization Fund to accumulate monies for OPEB.
The portion of the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care Stabilization Fund was 1% of covered
payroll. The County’s contributions for OPEB for the years 2004 and 2003 were $.1 million and $.1 million,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Stabilization Fund was $3.1 billion on June 30, 2004 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2004, the net health care costs paid by STRS Ohio were $268.7 million and
there were 111,853 eligible recipients.
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Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through OPERS in the same manner as
employees of the County’s primary government. The Hospital's total contributions to OPERS for the years 2004,
2003 and 2002 were $38 million, $36.4 million and $34.6 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for
each year. The portion of the Hospital’s total contribution to OPERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years
2004 and 2003 was $11 million and $13.4 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2004, the Central Custodial Services, Maintenance Garage and Communications funds
had net assets deficits of $3.9 million, $.1 million and $.3 million, respectively. The Central Custodial Services,
Maintenance Garage and Communications funds are Internal Service funds. The deficits will be eliminated through
adjustment of the related fee schedules and subsidies as necessary.

NOTE | - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of the General fund’s equity that
includes certificates of deposit that support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the
unspent proceeds of the County’s Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2004, the balance
in this account was $27.4 million of which $20 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit
and $7.4 million represents the fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2004, $19.1 million has
been reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2004, $19 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgments against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2004, $2 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2004, $4.3 million
has been designated for future Internal Service funds' subsidies.
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NOTE J - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County. The County’s management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County’s combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.

Self-Insurance: The County has designated $2 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant to
Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies. Settled
claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past
three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2004 and estimates for
unsettled claims at December 31, 2004, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2004. The County is self-insured with respect to its prescription
drug plan. At December 31, 2004 the County’s liability for claims was immaterial. Since 1992, the County has
maintained an Internal Service fund for its self-insured workers’ compensation benefits administered through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers’
compensation benefits. The County uses a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation
benefits. These charges are contributed into the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and are based on
estimates needed to pay current claims and establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the
estimated claims payable recorded in the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund during the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable 2004 2003
Estimated claims payable beginning of year............ccccocoeeiennnnen. $ 18,766 $ 17,654
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates .................. 1,292 4,176
Less: Claim payments .........cccoooiiieeiiiiri e 2,795 3,064
Estimated claims payable end of year..........c..ccccceveeeieeecneene.. $ 17,263 $ 18,766

Component Unit

Self-Insurance:  The Hospital is self-insured for professional and patient care third party liability and
workers’ compensation benefits. For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants
have been retained to determine funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been
placed in an irrevocable, self-insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.
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Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital’s incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable 2004 2003
Estimated claims payable beginning of year............cccccoeeiennnen. $41,735 $ 36,667
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates................... 18,059 13,419
Less: Claim payments ........c.ueeieeeeeiiiiiiiieee e 14,020 8,351
Estimated claims payable end of year............ccccoeeveeiiiiciiienneen. $ 45,774 $41,735
Du€ WIthin ONE YA .........ccvveivieiieiecie ettt $ 21,925 $ 19,954

NOTE K - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2004, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2005 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GENEIAl FUND ..o $ 27,204
Human Services fund ............oooovvveeeieiiiiiieeee e, 27,682
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ........................ 12,366
Health and Community Services fund ...........c...coeeenneee. 30,796
Other Governmental funds ............cooooivveieeiiiiiiiiieeeeeees 92,151
Sanitary Engineer fund............ccccoooviiiiiiie e 1,017
Other Enterprise funds .........ccccceeeeiiiiiiiiieiieeeeee e, 780
Internal Service fuNdS.........ccevvvveeeverereririreierereererererareaees 10,120
TOMAI e $202,116

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,
2004, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GeNEral fUNG ... ... $ 3,034
Human Services fund ............oooovvviieiiiiiiiieeee e 3,682
County Board of Mental Retardation fund ....................... 3,058
Health and Community Services fund ............ccc.ceennneee. 8,525
Other Governmental funds ............ccooovvvviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeees 7,692
Sanitary Engineer fund ............oococeveiiiiiii e 74
Other Enterprise funds .........ccocceeieiiiiiiiieeie e, 379
Internal Service funds........c.coovvvviieieeiieeeeee e 1,168
Total oo $ 27,612
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NOTE L - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2004 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000’s)
REaI PrOPEIY ...t $ 26,839,357
Personal tangible property...........ccooeiiiiiiiiiennen. 2,508,313
Tangible public utility property ........cccoccvveiiieeinnneen. 957,362
Total assessed value ..........ccceeeeeeeiiieiiceeeeeeeeinn. $ 30,305,032

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.64 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 12.07 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection
Purpose Rate() Collection(?) Year
Agricultural/ Commercial/
Residential Industrial

Debt Service ........ccocveeveeeeeiiiieeeeieees $ 27 $ 27 $ 27 2013

Mental retardation.............c..ccceeeeeennis 3.90 3.16 3.40 2005

Health and human services®) ............. 3.00 1.65 213 2004

Health and welfare..............ccccoeeeeeennnnnn. 4.90 4.46 4.79 2008

Total voted millage..............cc.ccveeuvenene. $ 12.07 $ 954 $ 10.59

(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

(2) Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

(3) A three year renewal levy was approved March 2004 to be collected in 2005 through 2007.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2003. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 23% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Public utility real and
tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
on assessed values determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date.

The County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County
including the County. Taxes are payable semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to
January and July. Unpaid taxes become delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure
proceedings may be initiated by the County Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.
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Property taxes receivable represent outstanding current and delinquent taxes which are measurable as of
December 31. Property taxes receivable are levied to finance operations of the following year and, therefore, are
also recorded as deferred revenue. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2004:

Governmental Funds (Amounts in 000's)
GENEIA....c.co oo $ 21,146
Health and Human Services Levies.........cccccoeeeeeeeveeennee. 170,467
County Board of Mental Retardation ...............cccc.ceenee 86,420
Health and Community Services ........cccccccceecvvvieeeeeeinns 13,399
Other Governmental ........cccooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 23,740
Total property tax revenues.........c.cccoovieeiieeiiiniiiieeeenn. $ 315,172

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2004 for Cuyahoga County was $32 million.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for discounted cash payments that approximates
the penalty and interest on the receivable. Some older delinquencies are sold at a deeper discount. In connection
with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose on the related properties, as well as
charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments received by the County were
credited to the County’s Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various taxing districts within the County
(including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been collected directly from the
taxpayers.
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NOTE M — Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2004 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:
State Public Defender reimbursement................ccoovvvvunnn... $ 4,781
State property tax reimbursement..............cccoccoceiiiiinenne 3,514
(O] (o1 N 1,864
Total General fUNd.........coovevvieee e 10,159
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ...... 20,642
U.S. Department of Justice..........cccceevveiiiieiiieiiecieeee 5,839
U.S. Department of Labor...........ccccoeeeivciiiieeee e 51
U.S. Department of Education .............cccccvveiieeiieiiiiinneen... 1,340
U.S. Department of Homeland Security..........c.ccccccevennneee.. 3,818
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services............... 6,629
Federal and State Mental Health and Retardation............. 184,242
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
AddIiCtion SEIVICES ......ovvviiiiiiieeee e 26,352
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... 320,336
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 3,942
Ohio Department of Transportation .............cccccceeeeeeinnneen. 577
Ohio Department of Youth Services .........ccccoveeeeiiiennnnne. 5,511
State property tax reimbursement..............ccccciiiniinene 23,448
(O] o 1= N 8,663
Total Special Revenue funds..........cccoccviiiniiiiiiiei e 611,390
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement.............cccccciiiiiiiinne. 3.855

Capital Projects fund:

Ohio Department of Transportation ...............cccccveeeeeeennn. 16,200
O s 4,144
Total Capital Projects fund ...........ccoooiiiiii e 20,344
Total Other Intergovernmental............cccccovviiiiiiiiiiniieeee, $ 645,748

NOTE N - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which are
classified as transfers. Transfers are interfund transactions that do not represent loans, reimbursements or quasi-
external transactions. Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them; to move unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations;
to provide additional resources for current operations or debt service; reclassification or prior year distributed monies,
to segregate money for anticipated capital projects; and to return money to the fund from which it was originally
provided once a project is completed

Transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as nonoperating
revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2004:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer To
Health and County
Human  Board of Health and Other Other Internal
Human Services Mental Community Governmental Sanitary Enterprise Service
Transfer From General Services Levies Retardation Services Funds Engineer  Funds  Funds Total
Transfers:
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund............ o 3 $12,238 $70 $ $20,709 $ 26376 $ 999 $ 2,201 $455 $ 63,048
Human Services 210 210
Health and Human Se| 34,912 76,497 111,409
Health and Community Services 325 956 3,318 4,599
Other Governmental Funds ... ... 282 27 551 512 5,266 64 6,702
Other Enterprise Funds .......... 389 389
Internal Services Funds............cccccceeueenne. _ o - 2,039 o - 2,039
Total Transfers .........ccovvveeereeeeireerennen. $607 $48133 $70 $551 $97,718 $ 37598 $ 999 $ 2,201 $519 $ 188,396

NOTE O - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a not-for-profit corporation legally separate from any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2004, the County has $98 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note F).

In February 2004, the County refinanced the 1992 variable rate Gateway Economic Development Bonds
(See Note F). In April 2004, Gateway refinanced the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. In September 2004,
Gateway refinanced the Stadium Revenue Bonds.

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $193.8 million at December 31, 2004,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2004, Gateway repaid the County over $3.8 million and the remaining
amount is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1994 through 1998. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999. The County will receive $.2
million during each subsequent year, subject to certain adjustments. The County received $.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note F for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

During 2004, Gateway completed negotiations on its stadium leases with the owners of the Cleveland
Indians and the Cleveland Cavaliers. The new agreements free the organization from covering minor repairs and
routine maintenance. Gateway’s $4.9 million annual expenses will be divided by the teams. Gateway agreed to give
up $1 million annually in naming rights from the Indians until 2016. The Cavaliers will no longer hold Gateway
responsible for $9.5 million of capital repairs which the Cavaliers paid and offset against previous rent payments.
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Although the County believes that the revenue sources that secure the repayment of the revenue bonds the
County has guaranteed will be adequate to provide for the future debt service requirements under the bonds, if
Gateway was to become insolvent, the impact on the County’s future financial condition and operations cannot
presently be determined because of uncertainties regarding the amount of Gateway’s future cash needs and the
extent (if any) of the County’s funding of such needs.

NOTE P — Loans

Loans receivable represent economic development and property rehabilitation loans outstanding under the
Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and various other grant and development programs. The
loans are either non-interest bearing or have below market interest rates and are made to qualifying citizens and
businesses for rehabilitation of real property within the County. The loans are secured by mortgages against the
individual properties and generally have various repayment terms which may extend over several years.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR
SPECIFIC GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES (OTHER THAN
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS) REQUIRING SEPARATE
ACCOUNTING BECAUSE OF LEGAL OR REGULATORY
PROVISIONS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION AND
EXPENDITURES FOR SPECIFIED PURPOSES.

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax To account for Motor Vehicle Gas Tax federal and
state revenues which are distributed to various
municipalities and townships for repair and building of
streets and bridges.

Community Development To account for revenue from the Federal government
and expenditures as prescribed under the Community
Development Block Grant Program and Housing and
Urban Development Programs (HUD).

Other To account for miscellaneous special revenue grants
received by the county. Health and Community
Services Grants have been combined with this special
revenue fund.

Debt Service To account for revenues received and used to pay
principal and interest on all long-term bonded debt
except those payable from Enterprise funds.
Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes.

Capital Projects To account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of all county land and
buildings, major improvements and road
improvements. (Other than those financed by
proprietary funds).
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(Amountsin 000's)

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle Community
Gas Tax Development Other Total
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............c.cccocuenenee. $ 27,157 $ 3619 $ 7,654 $ 38,430
Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Loans (net of allowance for uncollectibles).... 18,078 18,078
Net receivables. ..o 18,078 18,078
Due from other governments...........cccoocceveiiireieeenieeseeenne 11,494 1,971 13,465
TOTAL ASSETS....coiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 38,651 $ 23,668 $ 7.654 $ 69.973
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable............coceriiiiiiieere e $ 1,833 § 1,343 § 4,850 $ 8,026

Deferred reVENUE...........ccvveeei e 7,170 2,135 9,305

Due to other funds...........cocoeiiiiiiiiii e 522 9 75 606

Due to other governments 2,817 2,817

Accrued wages and benefits............ccoeiiiiiiiiiie 244 36 103 383

Matured bonds payable.............cccoovreeiiniiiinii e
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...ttt 9,769 4,205 7,163 21,137
Fund Balances

Reserved for:

Loans receivable............ccouveeeiiiiviiee e 18,078 18,078

Debt SEIVICE......coiiiiiiiiiee e

Unreserved, Undesignated............cccoceevieiiniieinecieeninene. 28,882 1,385 491 30,758
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ..ot 28,882 19,463 491 48,836
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES................... $ 38.651 $ 23.668 $ 7.654 $ 69,973
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Total Nonmajor

Debt Capital Governmental
Service Projects Funds

9,349 $ 20,819 68,598
21,495 21,495
18,078
21,495 39,573
1,453 2,900 17,818
32,297 $ 23,719 125,989
$ 1,086 9,112
22,749 32,054
606
2,817
383
14 14
22,763 1,086 44,986
18,078
9,534 9,534
22,633 53,391
9,534 22,633 81,003
32,297 $ 23,719 125,989
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle Community
Gas Tax Development Other Total

REVENUES
Property taXeS.......ocuueeiiiiee e $ $
Other tax 29,633 29,633
Fines and forfeitures..........cccuuveevieeieiiciee e 275 275
Investment earnings...........cvveiviiiiiiiiee e 761 761
Other intergovernmental... 4,688 20,642 29,994 55,324
MISCEIANEOUS.........ciieeiieeee e 115 15 2,016 2,146
TOTAL REVENUES........oooiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e 35,472 20,657 32,010 88,139
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General GOVEINMMENT.......cuuiiiiiee e e et e e e e e e 67 67

Judicial.......ccccceeveennns 20,603 20,603

Development........ 21,104 147 21,251

Social services 6,838 6,838

Health and safety.........cceveiiiiiiiii, 6,277 6,277

PUDBIIC WOTKS......vviiieiieceeeeeee e 36,442 401 36,843
Capital outlay.........coccueiiiii e
Debt service:

Principal retirement.............ccoeeiiiiiieee e

Interest..........oevveevninnns e

Bond issuance COStS.........coooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiicic e
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........cctitiiieeee e 36,442 21,104 34,333 91,879
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES.......cooiiiiiiieeeeee e (970) (447) (2,323) (3,740)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TrANSTEIS IN. .. 679 1,804 3,816 6,299
Transfers out:

OtNEI ... (5,228) (1,420) (6,648)
Issuance of debt...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Bond premium (discount)-net
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)................. (4,549) 1,804 2,396 (349)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ccccceoviiiiiiieeee e (5,519) 1,357 73 (4,089)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ttt 34,401 18,106 418 52,925
FUND BALANCES AT

END OF YEAR. ... .ottt 28,882 19,463 $ 491 % 48,836
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Total

Debt Capital Nonmajor

Service Projects Governmental
23,740 $ 23,740
1 29,644
275
273 1,034
3,855 20,344 79,523
12 1,927 4,085
27,618 22,544 138,301
67
20,603
21,251
6,838
6,277
19,233 56,076
30,207 30,207
60,365 1,890 62,255
16,586 456 17,042
942 942
77,893 51,786 221,558
(50,275) (29,242) (83,257)
7,324 23,975 37,598
(54) (6,702)
45,677 81,643 127,320
5,814 5,814
58,815 105,564 164,030
8,540 76,322 80,773
994 (53,689) 230
9,534 $__ 22,633 81,003
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
REVENUES
PrOPEIY TXES. ...oveveiieiieieiceei ettt bttt s $ 19,943 § 20,159 $ 21,186
SAlES ANA USE taX.....eueviirciie e 159,020 165,408 165,408
ONEI E8X.. e 45 128 126
State local governmMENt fUNG............oeu i 38,526 38,526 38,526
LiCENSES @NA PEIMILS. ...ttt 107 100 89
Charges for services 59,336 65,450 70,155
Fines and forfeitures 6,250 6,587 5,998
Investment earnings 14,000 12,000 11,769
Other intergovernmMENtal..............couiiiiiiiii e 9,984 7,876 8,892
MISCEIIANEOUS. ...ttt 3,336 6,455 12,401
TOTAL REVENUES.......otiiiiiitiiitiei ettt 310,547 322,689 334,550
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Vital Statistics
ONET s 25 25 17
Total Vital StatiStiCS. .......c.ovvuiiiieiicec e 25 25 17
433 433 394
433 433 394
5,475 6,209 6,165
3,519 3,324 3,125
18 18 15
9,012 9,551 9,305
Board of Elections
PEISONMNEL. ...ttt ettt bbbt 6,075 6,833 6,621
ONET ottt 5,120 6,343 6,069
CAPIAL. ...ttt 17 19 17
Total Board of EIECHONS...........c.cceuiiiicieiiicicicscc e 11,212 13,195 12,707
Board of Revision
PErSONNE! ... 478 478 468
Other.. 136 149 146
Capital 2 15 15
Total Board of REVISION..........ccccciiiiiiiiiii s 616 642 629

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES—-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
County Commissioners
PEISONMNEL.... .ottt ettt e e e e e st e et e e e esaeeeeasaeeesnneeesesssaeensnseessaaenn 1,183 1,183 1,123
268 393 316
[02=T o1 ¢ USSR SPP 4 4 3
Total County COMMISSIONETS.......ccuiiiiiuiiiiatieiieit ettt ettt eeeas 1,455 1,580 1,442
County Administrator
PEISONNEL.......ciiiiicc s 814 750 749
399 687 686
[02=T o1 ¢ PP SSTSPP 2 3 2
Total County AdMINISTIAtOr.........c.iiiiiiii e 1,215 1,440 1,437
Human Resources
1,839 1,888 1,842
1,850 2,905 2,971
CAPIAL. ... s 5 22 22
Total HUMAN RESOUICES.........uuuiiiiiieee ettt e e e e e e et aa e e e e e e e e e eannns 3,694 4,815 4,835
Employment Relations
PEISONNEL..... .o 760 765 765
Other....... 275 296 308
Capital.......cccevvevrieenn 2 1
Total Employment Relations.............cociiiiiiiiiiiiii s 1,037 1,062 1,073
Benefits
PEISONNEL..... e 451 451 451
[T OSSOSO SO RSO PO OSSO UPOUSRPORRPRPRPNE 248 170 183
[02=T o1 = U PPPSRPP 2 1
Total BeNefits..........ccoiiiiiiiiiii 701 622 634
Labor Relations
PEISONNEL.......ciiiiicc s 342 342 316
NI .ttt h ettt ettt ettt er et 31 32 18
[02=T o = USSP STSPP 1 1 1
Total Labor Relations.............ocoiiiiiiiiicc 374 375 335
Office of Budget and Management
PEISONMNEL.... .ottt e e e et e e e st e e e sae e e easaeeeeasaeeesnneeesessseaeesnseensaaens 1,121 1,121 1,031
OB .ttt a ettt ettt ettt er et 542 397 354
[02=T o1 = PP STRPPR 4 4 1
Total Office of Budget and Management.............cooviiiiiiireniiieie e 1,667 1,522 1,386
Clerk of the Board
458 458 455
69 110 101
1 1 1
528 569 557
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Procurement and Diversity
PerSONNEL... ..o 826 826 794
(03T TSROSO 398 346 285
Capital......ccooevereeieeiicene 3 3 2
Total Procurement and Diversity...........ccccveeeieiiiininieice e 1,227 1,175 1,081
Risk and Property Management
PeISONNEL... ..o 537 537 520
OFNET. ettt 2,720 2,665 2,433
CAPItAL e 2 2 1
Total Risk and Property Management...........cccoeuiiiriniiiinenesiseee e 3,259 3,204 2,954
Archives
Personnel.........cooiiiiiiiiic s 190 200 195
(03 T=Y TSSOSO 578 652 645
Capital...... 1 1 1
TOtal ATCRIVES.....c.eiieiee e 769 853 841
Recorder
Personnel.. 4,184 4,973 4,904
ORI et 2,480 1,618 1,424
CAPIAL 1+ttt 14 542 475
TOtAl RECOTAE ...ttt ettt e reesnaeeseesneeennes 6,678 7,133 6,803
Treasurer
Personnel.........coiiiiiiiii s 3,398 3,398 3,307
ORI bbbttt 1,810 1,773 1,611
Capital.......cccoe.. 11 11 9
TOAl TrEASUIET ...ttt 5,219 5,182 4,927
6,000 6,000
6,000 6,000
3 3 3
3 3 3
72 72 64
72 72 64
Soldiers and Sailors Monument
Personnel. 81 81 79
Other. .ot 52 74 74
Total Soldiers and Sailors Monument 133 155 153
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Cuyahoga County School District

CAPIAL ettt
Total Capital Improvement G/F Subsidy............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiccce e
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT. ..ottt

JUDICIAL

Board & Care of Prisoners

Court of Appeals

PErSONNEL... ...

Court of Common Pleas - Law Library
PersONNEL........ooiiiii s
[02=T o] = OSSPSR

Total Court of Common Pleas - Law Library...........ccoeoiieriiiieniiiceeeceeesesie e

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts
99 99 29
99 99 29
1,978 1,978 827
1,978 1,978 827
1,310 1,539 550
1,310 1,539 550
459 208
459 208
473
814
1,287
60,462 63,432 52,983
4,509 6,359 5,448
4,509 6,359 5,448
1,317 1,527 1,519
749 669 633
20 5 4
2,086 2,201 2,156
6,342 6,280 6,279
3,903 4,660 4,616
22
10,267 10,940 10,895
206 206 204
1 1 1
207 207 205
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts

Common Pleas Legal Research

OFNET .ttt 103 103 101
Total Common Pleas Legal Research.........cccocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieccceeee 103 103 101
Common Pleas-Judicial Administration

PEISONNEL......eiiiiieeieeee e e e 6,358 6,405 6,401

OFNET .ttt ettt ettt ettt eten 16,032 16,219 14,792

Capital 100 97 96
Total Common Pleas-Judicial Administration...............ccoceveiiiininicncnieenees 22,490 22,721 21,289
Common Pleas-Referees

PEISONNEL... ..t et e 744 887 882

[0 01T OO USROS 181 221 211

CAPIAL ... 3 4 3
Total Common Pleas-Referees...........coviiiiiiiniininciciieseeeeees 928 1,112 1,096
Common Pleas-Court Services

PErSONNEL.....c.oiiiiiiiiiie e 6,439 6,667 6,661

664 736 686

L0 o] 1 = IS OSSOSO 23 23 22
Total Common Pleas-Court SEIVICES.........cuevriieirieiieiieecie e 7,126 7,426 7,369
Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric

PEISONNEL. ...ttt et e e ere e sne e nae e 8,161 7,918 7,918

OFNET e 2,391 2,245 2,221

CAPIAL .ttt 28 28 27
Total Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric...........ccccocooioiiiniiiiiicee 10,580 10,191 10,166
Coroner

PEISONNEL......uviiieeieie ettt e et e e et e e e ettt e e e eatae e eaaeees 4,859 4,905 4,904

Other.... 1,840 2,217 1,839

Capital...... 17 49 49
TOtAl COMONET ...ttt 6,716 7171 6,792
Domestic Relations Court

PEISONNEL.....c.eiiiiiieceeeee e e e 2,696 2,696 2,597

OFNET .ttt ettt 928 962 952

Capital.......ccooeeeiiiiiiiiice 10 1 1
Total Domestic Relations Court 3,634 3,659 3,550
Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support

PErSONNEL.....ceiiiiiiiiiiic 2,982 2,982 2,811

303 508 501

CAPIAL .ttt ettt enens 11 10 10

Total Domestic Relations-Bureau of SUPPOrt.........c.cceririeieriereiieieese s 3,296 3,500 3,322

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts

Justice Affairs Administration

PEISONNEL.....c.oiiiiiciiers e 575 763 738

OBt 334 463 460

CAPIAL e 2 12 10
Total Justice Affairs AdminiStration.............ccceveereiieeccceceee e 911 1,238 1,208
Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice

PEISONNEL......oiiiiiiciiiii e 507 507 464

OBt 370 157 113

CAPIAL ..t 2 4 4
Total Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice 879 668 581
Witness Victim Services

PEISONNEL......oiiiiiiciiiit e 565 628 628

OFNEI . 268 190 185

CAPIAL ..t 2
Total Witness VICtim SErVICES.........ccoiiuierniernicrieireisesseeeser s 835 818 813
Criminal Justice Intervention Services

PEISONNEL. ..ot 37 34 26

OFNB et 93 82 61
Total Criminal Justice Intervention SErvices............cocumniiicrienneiecerceenns 130 116 87
Juvenile Court-Administration

PEISONNEL......ceeiviictitcteeteetee ettt ettt ettt et ae sttt neeaens 2,271 2,043 2,043

OFNBI . e 6,500 6,371 6,005

(0o 1 TSRS 8 5 5
Total Juvenile Court-AdminiStration..............cccecevveviieeieceieee e 8,779 8,419 8,053
Juvenile Court-Legal

PEISONNEL......ceeiviictietcteeteeeteetee ettt ettt et ettt st ae sttt e eaens 6,354 6,358 6,358

OFNBI e 5,039 5,349 5,062

Capital......ocvvrerreiirinnn 711 23 23
Total Juvenile Court-Legal..........oviiiiiieiiirriccreies s 12,104 11,730 11,443
Juvenile Court-Probation

PEISONNEL......ceeivieictitcteeteeetee ettt ettt et ettt sttt st sae et neeaens 5,950 5,978 5,978

OFNBI e 4,305 4,652 4,782

CAPIAL et 21 21 21
Total Juvenile Court-Probation.............ccceieieieeeeeeeeie et 10,276 10,651 10,781
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
Juvenile Court-Child Support
PEISONNEL.....c.eiieiieceee e e e 2,969 3,256 3,256
444 985 835
CAPIAL .. 10 1 1
Total Juvenile Court-Child SUPPOIt........ccciiiiiieiiiiieeee e 3,423 4,242 4,092
Juvenile Court-Detention Home
PErSONNEL.....ceiiiiiiiiiciice 8,387 8,404 8,404
OFNET .ttt 3,823 4,376 4,345
CAPIAL .ttt ettt enens 30 19 19
Total Juvenile Court-Detention HOMe.............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccce 12,240 12,799 12,768
Municipal Judicial Costs
PEISONNEL. ... ittt ettt ae e e e nneennee e 3,053 2,863 2,851
OFNET .ttt 625 410
Total Municipal Judicial COSES..........c.coiiiiiiieiere e 3,053 3,488 3,261
Village and Township Costs
OBNBI ... e e e 5
Total Village and Township COStS...........cccccieuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccce e 5
Probate Court
Personnel.. 5,027 5,027 4,845
OFNET e 1,224 1,344 1,209
CAPIAL .t 18 18 10
Total Probate COU.............ooiiuiiiciee ettt aaes 6,269 6,389 6,064
Public Defender
5,561 5,561 5,561
2,373 1,252 1,249
20 20 20
7,954 6,833 6,830
PEISONNEL... .. e e 13,356 13,105 13,054
OFNET ettt ettt 2,671 2,991 2,859
CAPIAL .ttt 45 64 63
Total Prosecutor-General OffiCe...........ccouviiiiniiiiniiiiiecrcece s 16,072 16,160 15,976
Prosecutor-Child Support
PErSONNEL.....coiiiiiiiiiciie e 2,219 2,253 2,252
OFNET ettt 226 387 321
Capital 8
Total Prosecutor-Child SUPPOTt..........ccveieieririeieiesie e 2,453 2,640 2,573
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Prosecutor-Children and Family Services
Personnel.

[©2-1 o] 1 ¢ | SRS
Total Prosecutor-Children and Family Services...........c.ccocoviiviiiiiiiiiciiicns

Sheriff

(O o] ¢ | USROS
Total SHEFIff.....ceiieiee e

Sheriff-Inmate Services

CaPIAL . s
Total Sheriff-Inmate Services...........ccoovvviiiiiiiiiii e
TOTAL JUDICIAL. ...ttt ettt sttt st ebeneane s

DEVELOPMENT

Development-Administration
PEISONNEL....couiiiiiii ittt
Total Development-Administration..............cccoiiiiiiiiene e

Economic Development
PerSONNEL.......eiiii e
Other....
[OF= o] ¢- | S,

Total Economic Development.............ccooviiiiiiiniiiiicecece e

NOACA

Total Convention Facilities AUthOFity..........coociiiiiiiiiiie e
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ...ttt sttt

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
2,383 2,387 2,379
57 111 97
9 9 8
2,449 2,507 2,484
53,942 54,143 54,142
10,808 10,915 10,914
178 88 88
64,928 65,146 65,144
3,183 3,353 3,352
2,992 2,988 2,979
11 11 11
6,186 6,352 6,342
230,883 235,791 230,894
119
119
632 751 694
3,427 3,109 3,104
1 2 2
4,060 3,862 3,800
157 157 157
157 157 157
81 81 81
81 81 81
50 116 116
50 116 116
4,467 4,216 4,154
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amounts
SOCIAL SERVICES
Cooperative Extension
OBNBI .. e 328 328 328
Total Cooperative EXCENSION. ........ocuiiiiiiece e 328 328 328
Graves for Indigents
OBNBI ... ettt e et 12 12
Total Graves for INAIGENtS........ccuiiiiiiiiie e 12 12
Children Who Witness Violence
PEISONNEL... .t e e 105 105 104
OBNET .ttt et 331 304 303
Total Children Who Witness Violence.............ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecccccees 436 409 407
Ombudsman Program
OBNBI ... e e 214 214 214
Total Ombudsman Program............cccoeciiiiiiiiiniciie it 214 214 214
Veterans Service Commission
PerSONNEL.....coiiiiiiiiiciic e 1,598 1,671 1,603
OBNBI .. e 5,530 5,365 3,206
(0T o] - TSROSO URO 6 69 48
Total Veterans Service Commission. 7,134 7,105 4,857
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES.......oiiiiiieieiie ettt 8,124 8,068 5,808
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Agriculture and Apiary Inspection
OBNBI ... ettt e et 1 1
Total Agriculture and Apiary INSPection............ccouiiiiiiiienie i 1 1
Treatment Service Division
PEIrSONNEL... ..t e 200 117 119
189 163 153
(0= o)1 ¢ | PR PPN 1 1
Total Treatment Service DiVISION.........cc.cciiiriiiiiircre e 390 281 272
CECOMS Center
PEIrSONNEL. ... oottt 667 667 665
306 303 279
(7= o)1 ¢ SRS 3 6 4
Total CECOMS CeNtEr.......c.eiiiiiiiiiiicicee e 976 976 948
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ..ottt s 1,367 1,258 1,220
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......ciiiiiiiiiiiiicc st 305,303 312,765 295,059
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(Amountsin 000's)

General Fund
Budgeted Amounts Actual
Original Final Amount:
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES...........ccooiiiiiiiiiieceecs 5,244 9,924 39,491
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TranSTers iN........ooo e 607
Transf t
Debt retiremen LSOO (7,262) (7,422) (7,221)
O, ... (19,179) (34,299) (32,718)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES.........ooiiiiiiicice e (26,441) (41,721) (39,332)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........ooiiiiiiiiiii i (21,197) (31,797) 159
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........ccoiiiiiiiiii i 106,894 106,894 106,894
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.......oiiiiiiiieiiiiis i $ 85,697 $ 75,097 107,053
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR VEHICLE GASTAX FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
(O] (T i e PP UPPPPPR $ 29,654 $ 28,984
Fines and forfeitures. ... ... 357 255
Investment earnings 882 859
Other intergovernmental.............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,902 4,386
MISCEIIANEOUS.......iiiiiiie e 265 115
TOTAL REVENUES. ... ..ot 35,060 34,599
EXPENDITURES
Current:
PUBLIC WORKS

PerSONNEL..... e 15,988 15,206

[ {31 PO TSP 2,823 1,359

(=1 o] 1 €= | SRRt 26,755 24,087
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS . .....ciiiiiiiiiiiee et eeennaes 45,566 40,652
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..ottt 45,566 40,652
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ...ttt (10,506) (6,053)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TrAaNSTEIS M.ttt 641 679
Transfers out:

(0] {51 SRR (5,228) (5,228)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES........coiiiiiieeeeeeee (4,587) (4,549)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........cooiiiiiiieeeeee e (15,093) (10,602)
FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ..ottt 22,246 22,246
FUND BALANCES AT

END OF YEAR ...ttt ettt ettt e en s $ 7,153 $ 11,644
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Debt Service Fund

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
PrOPEItY TAXES......iiueeeieciieiieie ettt ettt ettt ene $ 23972 $ 23,801
(0T o = RSN 11
Other intergovernmental.............ooeii i 5,961 3,654
MiISCEIIANEOUS.......ccoieiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e 12
TOTAL REVENUES...... ..ottt e s s aa e nnaaeenes 29,933 27,478
EXPENDITURES
DEBT SERVICE:

Principal retirement........ ..o 23,039 21,410

[0 =T = SRS 15,646 14,540
TOTAL EXPENDITURES......co ottt 38,685 35,950
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES.........ooiiie ettt (8,752) (8,472)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
B = 10153 =T T SRRSO 7,323 7,324
[ETUE= T (o= o) e =1 o SRR 2,440 1,711
=70 aTo [ o] (=Y 41U T3 o FOR PP 5,486 5,584
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES.........cccoiieeieeeeeee e 15,249 14,619
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........c.uii ettt 6,497 6,147
FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR.......oo ottt 748 748

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR.......oirovoeoeseeseoeoeseeesossessessssesssessssssseessos s sssss s $ 7,245 § 6,895
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR OPERATIONS THAT ARE FINANCED AND OPERATED
IN A MANNER SIMILAR TO BUSINESS IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR.
THE EXPENSES (INCLUDING DEPRECIATION) OF PROVIDING
GOODS AND SERVICES PRIMARILY OR SOLELY
TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC ARE FINANCED OR RECOVERED
PRIMARILY THROUGH USER CHARGES.

County Airport

Huntington Park Garage

Cuyahoga County Information System

The airport provides landing and storage facilities for
commercial flights, private business aircraft and
recreational aircraft for the general public.

The garage provides parking facilities to nearby
County Administration, Courthouse and Justice
Center buildings for the general public.

The system provides computerized information on
criminal records and court cases to communities
within the county.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR THE FINANCING OF GOODS OR SERVICES
PROVIDED BY ONE DEPARTMENT OF THE COUNTY TO
OTHER DEPARTMENTS OF THE COUNTY ON A
COST-REIMBURSEMENT BASIS.

Central Custodial Services

Maintenance Garage

Data Processing Center

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies

Communications

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation

The Central Custodial Services division is responsible
for all maintenance, cleaning and upkeep of county
buildings and offices. It also bills all rents to county
offices and agencies.

The Maintenance Garage is responsible for the
upkeep of all county owned vehicles and equipment.

The Data Processing Center provides centralized
data processing for the entire county.

The Printing, Reproduction and Supplies division
provides the county with all printing and reproduction
services and central purchasing of supplies.

The Communications division provides all telephone
service in addition to mail and delivery services for the
county.

The Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund
provides self-insurance to the county through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio for
workers’ compensation.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............cccccoeiienninnn
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles).......
Due from other funds..........ccceiiiiiiiii e
Due from other governments...........ccccooeeveeiiieciee e
Inventory of SUPPHIES........coviiieeieeeee e
Total current @ssetsS.......occvvieiiie i

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land improvements. ...........couioiiieiie it
Buildings, structures and improvements...............ccccccoe......
Furniture, fixtures and equipment............cccoooiiiiiiiniiins
VENICIES. ...t
Construction iN Progress........ocueieeeieerieesieeseeesee e eeeas

Net capital @ssets........cccoiiiiiiiiiei e
Total noncurrent assets...........coocveviiiiiicniec e
TOTAL ASSETS ...t

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable..........cccoiuieiiiiiiiee e
Due to other funds...........coocveiiiieiii e
Accrued wages and benefits...........occooeriiiiiiiien e
Special termination benefits...........ccccovviiiiiiniii
Total current liabilities.........c.eeeiiiiie e

Noncurrent liabilities:
Special termination benefits.............ccoooiiiiiiiiii
Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....cceeeeeeeeeee e

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.................ccccoc...
UNrestricted. ......oviiiei e
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....otiiiitiiiiieiienie ettt

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals
1,689 1,063 $ 2,752
237 19 256
46 46
264 264
10 10
247 1,689 1,392 3,328
5,280 5,280
2,155 2,155
292 3,747 4,039
34 3 1 38
98 6 104
302 302
8,161 3,756 1 11,918
8,161 3,756 1 11,918
8,408 5,445 1,393 15,246
190 94 247 531
20 16 1 37
46 52 16 114
36 36
292 162 264 718
49 49
49 49
341 162 264 767
8,161 3,756 1 11,918
(94) 1,627 1,128 2,561
8,067 5,283 1129 $ 14,479
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES.........ocvvviviviieeeeetceeeieese et $ 663 $ 2,266 $ 1,437 $ 4,366
Other FEVENUE.......uiiiieieeie e 14 14
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES...........ccooiiiiciccrecee e 677 2,266 1,437 4,380
OPERATING EXPENSES
PErSONal SEIVICES......cueviuiiieieiiieiei ettt 505 626 275 1,406
Contractual services... 42 126 1,176 1,344
Commaodities.............. 138 57 5 200
Depreciation........ 414 386 800
OthEr EXPENSES......veuvieieiictieteeiee ettt eens 248 1,293 1,423 2,964
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES........coooiiriciiriincee e 1,347 2,488 2,879 6,714
OPERATING LOSS......cooiiiieeistee ettt (670) (222) (1,442) (2,334)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
GFANES. ..ttt bbbttt 123 123
Gain on disposal of capital @SSets...........coevrvreirrererereere e 1 1
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES ..ottt 124 124
LOSS BEFORE

TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS........cocooriieiniiiineecnceniins (546) (222) (1,442) (2,210)
TraNSTEIS IN...c.viveiiiceeee s 340 1,861 2,201
Transfers out:

Debt retiremMENt........ccvieeecice e s (103) (103)

OB e (286) (286)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....coooiiitiineieisctnesrcseeee e (206) (611) 419 (398)
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF YEAR......ciiiiiiiieieietrietee e 8,273 5,894 710 14,877
TOTAL NET ASSETS

END OF YEAR. ..ottt $_ 8067 $ 5283 $ 1,129 $__ 14,479
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

(Amountsin 000's)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers...
Other operating cash receipts...
Cash payments to suppliers for

goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services............cccceuueuuuuinnnnnnnne .
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........c.cccueee.

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other fUNAS............cooiiiiiiii s
Transfer to other funds
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ... .ottt

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from capital grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......cooiiiiiiiiiiiee e

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........cccviiiiiennn.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.........cccciiiiiiiiiccci

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPEIAtiNG IOSS.....ceiiiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPreCiation........ooo i
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-net.
Due from other funds......
Due from other governments
Inventory of supplies.........
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued wages and benefits
Special termination benefits
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............cc.c....

Cuyahoga
County
County Huntington Information
Airport Park Garage System Totals
878 2,265 $ 1,210 $ 4,353
15 15
(813) (1,458) (2,312) (4,583)
(506) (632) (275) (1,413)
(426) 175 (1,377) (1,628)
340 1,861 2,201
(389) (389)
15 15
355 (389) 1,861 1,827
123 123
(300) (9) (309)
(177) (9) (186)
(248) (223) 484 13
248 1,912 579 2,739
0 1689 $ 1,063 $ 2,752
(670) (222) $ (1,442) $ (2,334)
414 386 800
(161) 27 (134)
(15) (15)
(69) (69)
(1 (U]
26 18 130 174
4 8 1) 11
(5) (15) (20)
(33) 7) (40)
244 397 65 706
(426) 175 $ @37 s (1,628)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

ASSETS
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments............ccccceeveeverreennen. $ 89 $ $

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)........... 12

Due from other funds............ccooeiiiirciirceeece e 69 1

Due from other governments...........ccoceeerreneerienense e 3,000

Inventory of SUPPIIES.........coviueiririii e 35
Total CUMTENt @SSELS.......ccvcuiiieiieie s 3,089 104 13
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Furniture, fixtures and equipment............cccceovvvreicienennene. 121 2 7,309
Vehicles........... 20 779

Net capital assets....... . 141 781 7,309
Total noncurrent assets. . 141 781 7,309
TOTAL ASSETS.....oiiiiircie ettt 3,230 885 7,322
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable...........occoriiiininee e 1,066 54 588

Due to other funds............coeeveeiieciicee e 734 904 1,154

Due to other governments............ccocvvireiinincicneeeen

Accrued wages and benefits............cccoeeeiriinneinseee 1,669 22 805

Capital lease 0bligations............ccccovrureireenineiereeee e

Special termination benefits............coveiiiirienreice 1,852 691
Total current li@abilities. ...........oooveieeeeee e 5,321 980 3,238
Noncurrent liabilities:

Capital lease 0bligations............cceovrrerircinneieeee

Special termination benefits.. 1,786 580
Total noncurrent liabilities..........cccovreirieinnceee 1,786 580
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...t 7,107 980 3,818
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............cccvvvreinnne 141 781 7,309
UNFESHCIEA. ... e (4,018) (876) (3,805)
TOTAL NET ASSETS....cooiitirirese et $ (3877) $ (95 $ 3,504
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Printing Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
333 62 53,608 54,092
12
215 95 6,487 6,867
64 3,064
3 38
551 157 60,159 64,073
524 93 8,049
799
524 93 8,848
524 93 8,848
1,075 250 60,159 72,921
312 36 8 2,064
11 24 2,827
17,263 17,263
26 73 13 2,608
87 24 111
55 200 2,798
491 357 17,284 27,671
352 352
35 197 2,598
387 197 2,950
878 554 17,284 30,621
85 69 8,385
112 (373) 42,875 33,915
197 (304) 42,875 42,300
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

OPERATING REVENUES

Central Data Printing
Custodial Maintenance Processing Reproduction
Services Garage Center and Supplies

Charges fOr SEIVICES........ooviviiieueeeieieieirieieie et 46,512 $ 894 $ 14,305 $ 2,900
Other revenue..........ccocevvevrvreennnnns 62 15 9 12
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 46,574 909 14,314 2,912
OPERATING EXPENSES
PerSONAl SEIVICES........vviiiiicteiie et 27,620 273 6,321 468
Contractual services and Claims ..........ccccevvriiereninene e 1,315 2,917 883
COMMOUIEIES......ocvveeeeeiiee ettt 7,715 292 262 1,396
DEPrECIatioN........cvviviiieciiiiriece e 33 299 1,374 17
Other eXpenses........cccccevvevereenrane. 5,654 354 4,388 256
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.........coocoiiiiieieieiecese e 42,337 1,218 15,262 3,020
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....ccuttitenieieienieieneetesenieesieeseeeseeiesienens 4,237 (309) (948) (108)
NONOPERATING EXPENSES
INEErESt EXPENSE ... ettt e (8)
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets.. 54 (142) (2)
TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES........ccccooviieiiiiece e 54 (142) (10)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS..........ccooceiivieeeeseeciee 4,237 (255) (1,090) (118)
TrANSTEIS IN...viitieeieeetee et 457 7 55
Transfers out:

OBNBT ...ttt (2,039)
Capital contributions 2,386
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....ooiiiceceee et 2,655 (255) 1,303 (63)
TOTAL NET ASSETS

BEGINNING OF YEAR........ooiiieieieieeeeeee e (6,532) 160 2,201 260
TOTAL NET ASSETS

END OF YEAR. ...ttt (3,877) $ (95) $ 3,504 $ 197
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Self-Funded
Workers

Communications Compensation Totals
3,909 $ 8,966 $§ 77,486
4 66 168
3,913 9,032 77,654
999 114 35,795
15 3,619 8,749
2 9,667
20 1,743
2,690 16 13,358
3,726 3,749 69,312
187 5,283 8,342
(3) (11)
(90)
®3) (101)
184 5,283 8,241
519
(2,039)
2,386
184 5,283 9,107
(488) 37,592 33,193
(304) $ 42,875 $__ 42,300
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from CUSTOMETS. ..........coiiiuiiiiieciie ettt $ 62 $ 15 $ 9
Other operating Cash reCeiPtS. ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 43,726 889 14,295
Cash payments to suppliers for
GOOAS AN SEIVICES......uuiiiiitiie ettt ettt et e e et e e e e e e (16,330) (613) (8,443)
Cash payments to employees for services (27,922) (273) (6,377)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.... (464) 18 (516)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from other funds 457 7
Transfer to other funds................ (2,039)
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan-net.............cc.ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiii s 674 1,142
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. . ..ottt (1,582) 674 1,149
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of capital @ssets............ccocceeiiiiiiiiiiiii 62
Acquisition and construction of capital @ssets.............ccccocvieiiiiiiiiiiecn 9) (754) (1,328)
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......coiiiiiiieiiieiee et (9) (692) (1,328)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................. (2,055) (695)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........ccccciiiiiiins 2,144 695
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee $ 89 $ 0 $ 0
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (I0SS).......cuueeiuieeieeaie st esie ettt et et et e s e e e aneeesneeenneean $ 4,237 $ (309) $ (948)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPIECIALION. ... e e e e 33 299 1,374
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable-net 11)
Due from other funds........ 4) 1
Due from other governments (2,786)
INventory of SUPPIIES.........cccciiiiiiiiii (13)
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. .....ciiiiiiiiiitiiieeee et e e e e 173 45 (197)
Due to other funds 285 3 (10)
Due to other governments...
Accrued wages and benefits... (591) 3) (53)
Special termination benefits (1,815) (672)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (4,701) 327 432
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.......ccccccvveenn $ (464) $ 18 $ (516)
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets acquired through capital lease $ $ $
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Printing, Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
12 $ 4 $ 66 168
2,798 4,075 6,551 72,334
(2,558) (3,017) (5,131) (36,092)
(473) (1,007) (115) (36,167)
(221) 55 1,371 243
55 519
(2,039)
1,816
55 296
62
(29) (2,120)
(21) (30) (51)
(8) (3) @an
(58) (33) (2,120)
(224) 22 1,371 (1,581)
557 40 52,237 55,673
333 $ 62 $ 53,608 54,092
(108) $ 187 $ 5,283 8,342
17 20 1,743
(11)
(102) 166 (2,395) (2,334)
(19) (2,805)
4 (9)
24 (116) 8 (63)
5 6 (1) 288
(1,503) (1,503)
(10) (17) (2) (676)
(51) (191) (2,729)
(113) (132) (3,912) (8,099)
(221) % 55 % 1,371 243
376 $ $ 376

99



(This page intentionally left blank.)

100



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR ASSETS RECEIVED AND HELD BY THE
COUNTY ACTING IN THE CAPACITY OF AN AGENT

OR CUSTODIAN.

Payroll Agency Fund To account for payroll taxes and other related payroll
deductions collected for other governmental units or
funds.

Undivided Tax Agency Fund To account for all undivided taxes collected by the
county and their distribution to the proper
beneficiaries.

Other Agency Fund To account for all other monies held by the county as
custodian.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Total
Agency

Payroll Undivided Tax Other Funds
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............c..cccceevenee. $ 17,337 $ 180,421 $ 15,308 $ 213,066
Cash and investments-segregated accounts........................ 36,071 36,071
Taxes receivable...........c.cooveeiiieii i 1,301,608 1,301,608
TOTAL ASSETS ..o $ 17,337 $ 1,482,029 $ 51,379 $ 1,550,745
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments...........ccccceeeeveeeeecieceece e $ 17,217 $ 1,481,423 $ 7,055 $ 1,505,695
Other liabilities. .........ccveveiiirereeee e 120 606 44,324 45,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ... $ 17,337 $ 1,482,029 $ 51,379 $ 1,550,745
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

PAYROLL
Balance at
Beginning Balance at

of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments.............c.ccooiiiiiiininineens $ 16,488 $ 571,631 $ 570,782 $ 17,337
TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,488 $ 571,631 $ 570,782 $ 17,337
LIABILITIES
Due to other gOVEINMENES..........cccveiiiiiiiiieie e $ 16,442 $ 118,056 $ 117,281 $ 17,217
Other liabilities 46 453,575 453,501 120
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot $ 16,488 $ 571,631 $ 570,782 $ 17,337

UNDIVIDED TAX
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments............cccccovoiiiiinieneeieee $ 177,538 $ 2,345,982 $ 2,343,099 $ 180,421
Taxes receivable 1,185,290 1,301,608 1,185,290 1,301,608
TOTAL ASSETS .ottt $ 1,362,828 $ 3,647,590 $ 3,528,389 $ 1,482,029
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments...........c.evoiiiiiiiieieeeee e $ 1,359,757 $ 3,631,706 $ 3,510,040 $ 1,481,423
Other liabilities.............c......... 3,071 15,884 18,349 606
TOTAL LIABILITIES $_ 1,362,828 $__ 3,647,590 $__ 3,528,389 $__ 1,482,029
OTHER

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments...............cccecveeveiiieiiecneene, $ 12,718 $ 65,051 $ 62,461 $ 15,308
Cash and investments-segregated accounts... 41,645 638,790 644,364 36,071
TOTAL ASSETS....coviieeeiee ettt $ 54,363 $ 703,841 $ 706,825 $ 51,379
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmMents...........cccooviieiiiieiiee e $ 6,272 $ 245,446 $ 244,663 $ 7,055
Other liabilities 48,091 458,395 462,162 44,324
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot $ 54,363 $ 703,841 $ 706,825 $ 51,379
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments..............cccoeoiiiicicieienne. $ 206,744 $ 2,982,664 $ 2,976,342 $ 213,066
Cash and investments-segregated accounts. 41,645 638,790 644,364 36,071
Taxes receivable............ccoocvveeeeieicieeeeeceeeeeenns 1,185,290 1,301,608 1,185,290 1,301,608
TOTAL ASSETS. ...ttt $ 1,433,679 $ 4,923,062 $ 4,805,996 $ 1,550,745
LIABILITIES
Due to other goOVErNMENTS. .........cccoiriiiiiie e $ 1,382,471 $ 3,995,208 $ 3,871,984 $ 1,505,695
Other liabilities 51,208 927,854 934,012 45,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ottt $ 1,433,679 $ 4,923,062 $ 4,805,996 $ 1,550,745
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE
OPERATIONS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULESBY SOURCE ¥

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS: 2004 2003
(1= 3T ST O PP SUUPRROP $ 44,535 $ 38,034
Land iMPrOVEMENES. .......ccouiiiiiiiee ittt et e e aae e et eeessaaee e 12,323 3,500
Buildings, structures and improvements. ...........ccocvveiieiiienieieese e 540,912 480,068
Furniture, fixtures and eqUIPMENt..........ccciiiiii i 21,321 20,381
VBNICIES.......eeieieeee ettt 11,286 10,871
Infrastructure..........ccoociiiiiii e —————— 440,205 432,191
CONSLIUCION IN PrOGIESS. ... ecueeitieiiieeiie st eieeseeesteestee e e sreeeseesnaeenteesaeeereesneeenneeas 41,480 90,822

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS......coiiiiiiiiieeeiee e $ 1,112,062 $ 1,075,867

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE:

GeNEral fFUNA FEVENUES. ...........eeeeeee et ee e eee s $ 110,171 § 108,817
Special revenue fund revenues 528,890 523,160
Capital projects:
General obligation DONAS...........cooiiiiiieee e 395,875 374,440
Federal, state and 10Cal grants............cocveieriierieeeese e 77,111 69,435
[ ToT g = i) o T USSP 15 15
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAP I T AL ASSET S . ittt e e e e e et e e e e e er et e e e e e eesraaanns $ 1,112,062 $ 1,075,867

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated
depreciation. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY @

DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000’s)

Buildings, Furniture,
Land Structures and Fixtures and
Function and Activity Land Improvements Improvements Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Totals
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration $ 13617 § 523§ 90,939 §$ 144 $ 20 $ $ 105,243

Fiscal management.. 2,242 1,474 3,716

Records and elections.. 450 481 5,789 3,048 9,768

Supportive service 424 137 3,614 70 4,245
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT .......cooovmvrire 14,491 1,141 102,584 4,736 20 122,972
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication 10,688 304 140,182 1,662 152,836

Legal service 389 19,195 2,431 22,015

Adult offender management.............coocrveerrrerriins 1,333 92,323 2,363 59 96,078

Juvenile offender management. 4277 9,882 22,423 508 19 37,109

Support enforcement. . 436 148 584
TOTAL JUDICIAL 16,298 10,575 274,559 7,112 78 308,622
DEVELOPMENT:

Economic 30 6 36

Community. 26 26
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT.......oovvvmmrrirrinrrincrinenees 30 32 62
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance. 1,521 9 43,604 1,306 17 46,457

Protective services, 106 39 3,596 1,036 4777

Support service 9,730 549 83,587 3,199 6,749 103,814

Employment and training.............cooceeeeeveenreeneiens 337 26,601 226 54 27,218
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES..........ccoooimmriinrrivnrrie 11,694 597 157,388 5,767 6,820 182,266
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health 94 379 541 1,014

Emergency assistance. 1,220 223 1,443

Alcohol and drug abuse.... . 8 8

Animal control 1,659 5,213 6 146 7,024
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ..o 1,753 5,592 1,775 369 9,489
PUBLIC WORKS:

Public works 299 10 759 1,899 3,999 440,205 447171
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS........covvirnrriirreierienns 299 10 759 1,899 3,999 440,205 447171
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 41,480 41,480
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL ASSETS......cocivirinriiriiesissinsiiinens $ 44535 $ 12323 $ 582,392 $ 21,321 $ 11286 $ 440205 $ 1,112,062

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated depreciation. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are
excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGESBY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY®

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
(Amountsin 000's)

Balance at

Beginning Balance at
Function and Activity of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration $ 92,988 $ 12,255 § $ 105,243

Fiscal management 3,004 712 3,716

Records and elections.... 8,616 1,152 9,768

Supportive services 4,183 62 4,245
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ............. 108,791 14,181 122,972
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication 121,213 31,623 152,836

Legal services 20,613 1,402 22,015

Adult offender management 89,294 6,784 96,078

Juvenile offender management. 23,174 15,208 1,273 37,109

Support enforcement 570 14 584
TOTAL JUDICIAL....coetiiiiiiiieiireieeeeee 254,864 55,031 1,273 308,622
DEVELOPMENT:

Economic 36 36

Community.... 12 14 26
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT.....ocviiiiiiiiieriieiens 48 14 62
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance.... 45,626 831 46,457

Protective services 4,657 120 4,777

Support services 102,034 3,356 1,576 103,814

Employment and training... 27,218 27,218
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES..........ccccevnuennne 179,535 4,307 1,576 182,266
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health 1,014 1,014

Emergency assistance.... 1,443 1,443

Alcohol and drug abuse.. 51 43 8

Animal control 508 6,516 7,024
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 3,016 6,516 43 9,489
PUBLIC WORKS:

Public works 438,791 8,439 59 447,171
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 438,791 8,439 59 447171
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS............... 90,822 24,915 74,257 41,480
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL ASSETS.....ccoiiiiiiiiiiciicce, $ 1075867 $ 113,403 $ 77,208 $ 1,112,062

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, excluding accumulated depreciation.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Statistical Section

The information presented in the schedules and tables in this section is provided
to reflect social and economic data, financial trends and the general fiscal capacity of
the County.







COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATISTICAL SECTION
STATISTICAL DATA TABLES

THE STATISTICAL SECTION PROVIDES SELECTED
FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
WHICH MAY BE USED TO INDICATE TRENDS
FOR COMPARATIVE FISCAL PERIODS.

THE STATISTICAL TABLES INCLUDE INFORMATION
ON GENERAL FUND RATIOS AND TRENDS,
ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES, LONG-TERM DEBT
AND MISCELLANEOUS DATA.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF STATISTICS-GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

OPERATING RATIOS-GENERAL FUND-GAAP BASIS
FOR 2004

REVENUE DOLLAR BY SOURCE

Where the money came from: %
a. Property taxes.........ccoccveeveeevecinnnenn.. 6.4
b. Sales, use and other tax................... 50.8
c. State local government fund ............. 11.6
d. Licenses and permits...........ccccceueee... A
e. Charges for services.........cccceveveeens 21.2
f. Fines and forfeitures ............ccccc... 1.7
g. Investment earnings ..........ccoccceeeenee 1.3
h. Other intergovernmental................... 3.1
i Miscellaneous ..........ccccovvveeeeiiieeenns 3.8
Total e 100.0
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EXPENDITURE DOLLAR BY FUNCTION

Where the money was spent: %
a. General government...........ccccocuee. 17.7
b. Judicial ....ooooiiiiieee 77.6
C. Development .........ccccovveeeiiiinennnen. 2.3
d. Social services 2.0
e. Health and safety 3
f. Debt......oooveviiiiin, 1
TOtal e 100.0
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL FUND CASH RECEIPTSBY SOURCE AND
CASH DISBURSEMENTSBY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amountsin 000's)

RECEIPTS: 1995 1996 1997
Property taXes ........ccccouveieiieiie et $ 19,065 $ 16,952 $ 16,531
Sales and USE taX.........ccevvuuieiiieeiiieee e 126,790 130,830 137,113
(O] (V=T =) O 14 15 13
State local government fund ............ccccoeeiiiiiiiini e 31,794 33,432 35,559
Licenses and permits .........cooceiiriieeeiiiiee e 146 130 129
Charges for SErviCeS .......cuvvviiiiiiieieee e 36,075 42,529 44684
Fines and forfeitures ............coeeeiiiiiiiiieee e, 5,166 4,731 5,840
Investment earnings ...........oooviiiiiiiii i 39,584 22,682 23,106
Other intergovernmental ..........cccccooeieeiiie e 7,370 7,073 7,531
MISCEIANEOUS ... 1,333 6,864 13,179
Proceeds from 10an ............oiiieiiiiiiie e 5,000

TranSfers iN...ouuee e 2,707 20 195
Residual equity transfers in...........ccccooveiiiiieeee

TOTAL RECEIPTS ..ottt avasssasaaasannnees $ 270,044 $ 270,258 $ 283,880

DISBURSEMENTS:

General gOVEINMENL ..........eeeeiiiiiieiiiiee e $ 38,604 $ 34,224 $ 40,621
JUAICIAL ... 133,474 140,267 159,080
DevelopmMENt........oii e 1,038 941 1,019
SOCIAl SEIVICES ... 3,793 4,325 3,990
Health and safety .........oocieiii e 827 945 880
Miscellaneous!™ ............ooioioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 2,922 23,180 5,874
TranSfers OUL.......c.uue i 56,615 25,449 34,405
Residual equity transfers out...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiii 298
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS .....ouvttuieiriniriiriieirrrrsrnnssnreennsnnnee $ 237,273 $ 229,331 $ 246,167

M Miscellaneous disbursements since 2002 have been reclassified and are included in the General government
function.
@ Disbursements have been adjusted for current and prior year encumbrances.
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1998 1999 2000 2001 2002® 2003® 2004®
$ 24,094 $ 22,064 $ 19,328 $ 22,571 $ 21,021 $ 19,611 $ 21,186
144,339 151,168 160,664 158,018 158,432 157,125 165,408
16 12 10 13 7 9 126
37,530 39,800 40,922 41,048 39,000 38,248 38,526
130 128 124 104 101 126 89
46,919 47,564 55,070 61,163 60,371 64,713 70,155
5,896 6,075 5,458 6,013 6,216 5,817 5,998
28,157 26,549 26,325 28,750 22,002 16,895 11,769
9,421 8,010 10,257 10,343 11,737 10,971 8,892
2,357 1,890 3,783 5,286 3,332 9,321 12,401
579 10,894 938 6,680 2,297 3,842 607
7 - ___ 68 .
$ 299,445 $ 314,154 $ 322,879 $ 340,057 $ 324,516 $ 326,678 $ 335157
$ 40,732 $ 43,118 $ 49,100 $ 50,689 $ 47,481 $ 45,853 $ 52,194
177,836 190,004 199,371 212,289 209,872 213,468 230,894
4,245 1,659 2,169 2,328 2,387 1,861 4,154
4,080 5,836 9,473 11,167 7,770 5,339 5,808
1,033 796 1,376 1,368 9,501 9,601 1,220
2,656 1,289 978 1,438
78,678 42,162 55,210 54,668 89,228 43,562 40,728
245
$ 309,260 $ 284,864 $ 317,922 $ 333,947 $ 366,239 $ 319,684 $ 334,998

115



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUESBY
SOURCE AND EXPENDITURESBY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amountsin 000's)

1995 1996 1997

REVENUES
Property taXES .......ccveueeeeeieieeeteeeeeeee e ee st $ 190,172 $ 199,469 $ 201,941
Sales and USE taX.........cceuvueiiiiiiiiiieee e 127,585 131,551 138,519
(@101 o 7= R 26,562 26,950 27,452
State local government fund ..........ccccoovviiieniieiie e 31,804 33,723 35,791
Licenses and permits ..o 1,454 1,352 1,318
Charges for SEerviCes ........uuuiiiiiiiiiieee e 48,861 55,595 59,056
F